
Page 1 of 3 
 

 

REVISED AGENDA 
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

October 10, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

Council Chambers - Apex Town Hall, 73 Hunter Street 
The meeting will adjourn when all business is concluded or 10:00 PM, whichever comes first 

Town Council and Administration 

Mayor: Jacques K. Gilbert | Mayor Pro Tempore: Audra Killingsworth 
Council Members: Brett D. Gantt; Terry Mahaffey; Edward Gray; Arno Zegerman  

Interim Town Manager: Shawn Purvis  
Assistant Town Managers: Demetria John and Marty Stone 
Town Clerk: Allen Coleman | Town Attorney: Laurie L. Hohe 

COMMENCEMENT 

Call to Order | Invocation | Pledge of Allegiance 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All Consent Agenda items are considered routine, to be enacted by one motion with the adoption of the Consent Agenda,  
and without discussion. If a Council Member requests discussion of an item, the item may be removed from the 

 Consent Agenda and considered separately. The Mayor will present the Consent Agenda 
 to be set prior to taking action on the following items: 

CN1 2023 Revised Town Council Meeting Calendar    

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN2 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 – Position Reclassifications (Building Inspections 

and Permitting and Community Development and Neighborhood Connections)   

Mary Beth Manville, Director, Human Resources Department  

CN3 Community Special Event Policy  

Taylor Wray, Cultural Arts Center Manager, Parks, Recreation, and Cultural Resources Dept.  

CN4 Construction Contract Award – North American Pipeline Management Inc. – Sewer 

Rehabilitation Project – Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall Replacement and Capital 

Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2023-7 

Matthew Reker, Utilities Engineer, Water Resources Department  

CN5 Council Meeting Minutes – Various   

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN6 Encroachment Agreement – 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10   

Chris Johnson, P.E., MPA, Director, Transportation and Infrastructure Development Dept.  

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

CN7 Encroachment Agreement – 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18   

Chris Johnson, P.E., MPA, Director, Transportation and Infrastructure Development Dept.  

CN8 Human Resources (HR) Policy Updates – Town’s Paid Parental Leave, Paid Caregiver 

Leave, and Tuition Reimbursement 

Mary Beth Manville, Director, Human Resources Department  

CN9 Tax Report – August 2023 

Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

CN10 Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments – Statement – Sept. 2023 

Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, Planning Department     

PRESENTATIONS 

PR1 Proclamation – Fire Prevention Week – October 8, 2023 through October 14, 2023 

Tim Herman, Chief, Apex Fire Department (AFD) 

PR2 ADDED – Proclamation – Down Syndrome Awareness Month – October 2023  

Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert  

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Mayor Gilbert will call for additional Agenda items from Council or Staff and set the  
Regular Meeting Agenda prior to Council actions. 

PUBLIC FORUM 

Public Forum allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  The speaker is requested not to address items 
that appear as Public Hearings scheduled on the Regular Agenda.  The Mayor will recognize those who would like to speak at the  

appropriate time.  Large groups are asked to select a representative to speak for the entire group. 
Comments must be limited to 3 minutes to allow others the opportunity to speak. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

PH1 Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map Amendment - Schieffelin Road Upgrade 

Jenna Shouse, Senior Long-Range Planner, Planning Department  

PH2 Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on Major 

Collectors 

Jenna Shouse, Senior Long-Range Planner, Planning Department  

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

NEW BUSINESS 

NB1 Façade Grant Program - Proposed Eligibility Changes 

Dianne Khin, Director, Planning Department  

 

UPDATES BY TOWN MANAGER 

CLOSED SESSION – None  

ADJOURNMENT 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk    

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office    

Requested Motion 

Motion to amend the 2023 Town Council Meeting Calendar.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 143-318.12, a schedule of regular meetings shall be 

filed with the Town Clerk to the Town Council.  The schedule must show the date, time, and place of each 

meeting.   

It is proposed that the 2023 Town Council Meeting Calendar be amended as follows:  

• CHANGE – Town Council Work Session – October 2023 (10/19) 

o Location From:  Apex Police Department 205 Saunders Street, Apex, North Carolina  

o Location To: Apex Town Hall 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

• CHANGE – Town Council Work Session – November 2023     

o Date From: Thursday, November 16, 2023 

o Date To: Thursday, November 30, 2023 

o Location From:  Apex Town Hall 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina 

o Location To: Apex Police Department 205 Saunders Street, Apex, North Carolina 

• CHANGE – Joint Collaboration Meeting w/Wake County (10/30) 

o Time From: 5:00 PM  

o Time To: 5:30 PM  

• ADD – Town Council Strategic Planning Session – Friday, October 27 2023     

o Time: 2:00 PM – 5:00 PM  

o Location: Apex Town Hall 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 

 



• ADD – Rules Committee Meeting – Friday, November 17 2023     

o Time: 2:30 PM – 4:30 PM  

o Location: Apex Town Hall 73 Hunter Street, Apex, North Carolina  

 

Attachments 

• CN1-A1: Revised - 2023 Council Meeting Calendar No. 8 
• CN1-A2: Revised – 2023 Text Calendar No. 8 

 



S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 T1 2 3 4 1 T2 3 4
8 9 T10 11 S12 13 14 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 5 6 7 8 T9 10 11

15 16 T17 18 19 20 21 12 13 T14 15 16 T17 18 12 13 T14 15 16 17 18
22 23 T24 25 T26 27 28 19 20 T21 22 23 24 25 19 20 P21 22 T23 24 25
29 30 T31 26 27 T28 26 27 T28 29 30 31

10th 1st 2nd
12th 17th 9th
17th 21st 21st
26th 23rd
31st 

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 1 2 3 4 T5 6 O1 2 3

2 3 4 5 T6 7 8 7 8 T9 10 11 T12 13 4 5 6 7 T8 9 10
9 T10 T11 12 13 14 15 14 15 T16 T17 T18 19 20 11 12 T13 14 15 16 17

16 17 T18 19 20 21 22 21 22 T23 24 25 26 27 18 19 T20 21 22 T23 24
23 24 T25 26 T27 28 29 28 T29 30 31 25 26 T27 28 29 30
30

6th 5th 1st 
10th 12th 8th
18th 16th 22nd
27th 17th 23rd

18th

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 1 2 3 4 5 1 2

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 T8 9 10 T11 12 3 4 5 6 T7 8 9
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 T15 16 17 18 19 10 11 T12 13 14 15 16

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 T22 T23 T24 25 26 17 18 T19 T20 T21 22 23
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27 28 S29 30 31 24 25 T26 27 T28 29 30
30 31

11th 7th
15th 19th
23rd 20th
24th 21st 
29th 28th

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S
1 2 T3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 1 2
8 9 T10 11 12 13 14 5 6 7 8 T9 10 11 3 4 5 T6 7 T8 9

15 16 17 18 T19 T20 21 12 13 T14 15 16 T17 18 10 11 T12 13 T14 15 16
22 23 T24 25 T26 T27 28 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
29 H30 31 26 27 T28 29 P30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

31
3rd 7th 6th
12th 9th 8th
20th 16th 14th
26th 17th
27th 30th
30th

13
21 P
11 T
22 S

3 H
4 O

2

3 65
1

65 65

Questions should be directed to the 
Town Clerk's Office 

919-249-1260 or allen.coleman@apexnc.org 

August

Total MeetingsTotal Meetings

Committee Meetings
Budget Hearings/Work Sessions

Retreat/Strategic Planning

Joint Collaboration Meetings

MEETING LOCATION(S)

Town Hall 

Finance Committee

Holidays

Work Sessions
Police Department 

Meeting days
Two meetings same day

Economic Development Committee 

Work Session / Planning Committee

Budget Work Session

Joint Finance/Personnel Committee Mtg

July

April May

Work Session

Joint Collaboration Meeting/Holly Springs

September

Other

October

January

Council Strategic Planning - Location TBD Annual Council Retreat - Location TBD

Finance Committee Meeting 

Personnel Committee 

Finance Committee 
Finance/Personnel Committee (optional)

Planning Committee

Personnel Committee
Work Session

Work Session

June

Rules Committee
Work SessionWork Session

Rules Committee

CS - Evaluation (Appointed)

Senior Center 
Halle Cultural Arts Center

Closed Session - Evaluation (Appointed)
Work Session

Municipial Election 
Economic Development Committee

Joint Collaboration Meeting / Wake County

Rules Committee Work Session

Organizational Meeting (Swearing-In)
Personnel Committee 
Work Session

Regular Meetings 
SPECIAL NOTE

Meeting Times, Location, Etc. are 
noted on the next page titled:
"Apex Town Council Meeting 
Calendar for Year 2023 - Text"

Finance Committee
Joint Collaboration Meeting / Morrisville 
Rules Committee

Work Session 

Revised 10/3/2023                       Town Council 2023 Meeting Calendar         DRAFT

Pre-Budget Public Hearing/ Regular Mtg

Work Session

Economic Development Committee

March

Budget Work Session 

Economic Development Committee

Joint Collaboration Meeting/Cary

February

Planning Committee

Council Strategic Planning Update 
Rules Committee

Personnel Committee

Personnel Committee Planning Committee

Closed Session - Evaluation (Appointed)
Work Session

November December



Revised 10/10/2023 
 

Page 1 of 6 
 

DRAFT – AMENDMENT NO. 8 
TOWN OF APEX TOWN COUNCIL  

MEETING CALENDAR FOR YEAR 2023 
TEXT Calendar  

 
 

In accordance with North Carolina General Statute 143-318.12, a schedule of regular 
meetings shall be filed with the Town Clerk to the Town Council.  The schedule must show the 
date, time, and place of each meeting.  Questions should be directed to the Office of the Town 
Clerk by phone at 919-249-1260 or by email to allen.coleman@apexnc.org.  

Special Accommodation Notice: Anyone needing special accommodations to attend the 
meeting(s) below and/or if this information is needed in an alternative format, please contact 
the Town Clerk’s Office. The Town Clerk is located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex Town Hall on the 
2nd Floor, (email) allen.coleman@apexnc.org or (phone) 919-249-1260. 

 
Meeting Date Type Start Time Location 

Tuesday, January 10 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, January 12 Town Council  
Retreat  

2:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, January 17 Town Council  
Work Session  

2:30 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, January 24 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, January 26 Finance Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, January 31 Joint Collaboration 
Meeting  

Town of Holly Springs 

6:00 PM Bass Lake Retreat Center 
900 Bass Lake Road 

Holly Springs, NC 27540  
 

Wednesday, February 1 Economic 
Development 

Committee Meeting  

4:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, February 14 Regular Town  
Council Meeting  

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

mailto:allen.coleman@apexnc.org


Revised 10/10/2023 
 

Page 2 of 6 
 

Friday, February 17 Town Council  
Strategic Planning/ 

Budget Work Session  

8:30 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, February 21 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, February 28 Regular Town  
Council Meeting 

7:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, March 2 Planning Committee 

Meeting  
10:30 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, March 9 Personnel Committee 
Meeting  

5:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, March 14 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, March 21 Town Council  
Work Session 
Public Safety  

3:30 PM  Apex Police Department 
205 Saunders Street 

Apex, NC 27502 
Thursday, March 23 Joint Personnel and 

Finance Committee 
Meeting  

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, March 28 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, April 6 Finance Committee 

Meeting  
9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Monday, April 10 Joint Personnel and 
Finance Committee 

Meeting  

4:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, April 11 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, April 18 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, April 25 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 



Revised 10/10/2023 
 

Page 3 of 6 
 

Apex, NC 27502 
Thursday, April 27 Rules Committee 

Meeting  
3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Friday, May 5 Budget Work Session  2:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, May 9 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, May 12 Personnel Committee 
Meeting  

2:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, May 16 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Wednesday, May 17 Economic 
Development 

Committee Meeting 

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, May 18 Planning Committee 
Meeting 

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, May 23 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, June 1 Joint Collaboration 

Meeting  
Town of Cary 

5:30 PM  Halle Cultural Arts 
Center 

237 North Salem Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, June 8 Budget Work Session 2:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, June 13 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, June 20 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, June 23 Rules Committee 
Meeting  

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 



Revised 10/10/2023 
 

Page 4 of 6 
 

Tuesday, June 27 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Tuesday, August 8 Regular Town 

Council Meeting 
6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, August 11 Personnel Committee 2:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, August 15 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, August 22 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Wednesday, August 23 Economic 
Development 

Committee Meeting 

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, August 24 Rules Committee 
Meeting  

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, August 29 Joint Collaboration 
Meeting  

Town of Morrisville  

5:30 PM  Apex Senior Center  
63 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, September 7 Planning Committee 

Meeting  
9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, September 12 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, September 19 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Wednesday, September 20 Closed Session  
Appointed Personnel 

Evaluation  

5:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, September 21 Finance Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Tuesday, September 26 Regular Town 6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 



Revised 10/10/2023 
 

Page 5 of 6 
 

Council Meeting 73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, September 28 Personnel Committee 4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Tuesday, October 3 Closed Session  

Appointed Personnel 
Evaluation 

5:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, October 10 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, October 19 Town Council  
Work Session 

 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, October 20 Rules Committee 
Meeting  

3:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, October 24 Regular Town 
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, October 26 Finance Committee 
Meeting  

9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, October 27 Council Strategic 
Planning Update  

2:00 PM Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Monday, October 30 Joint Collaboration 
Meeting  

Wake County  

5:30 PM  Halle Cultural Arts 
Center 

237 North Salem Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Thursday, November 9 Economic 

Development 
Committee Meeting  

4:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, November 14 Regular Town  
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, November 17 Rules Committee 
Meeting  

2:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, November 28 Regular Town  
Council Meeting  

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 



Revised 10/10/2023 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 

Apex, NC 27502 
Thursday, November 30 Planning Committee 

Meeting  
9:00 AM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, November 30 Town Council  
Work Session 

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 
Wednesday, December 6 Organizational 

Meeting  
5:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 

73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Friday, December 8 Personnel Committee 
Meeting  

2:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Tuesday, December 12 Regular Town  
Council Meeting 

6:00 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

Thursday, December 14 Town Council  
Work Session  

3:30 PM  Apex Town Hall 
73 Hunter Street 
Apex, NC 27502 

 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Mary Beth Manville, Director 

Department(s): Human Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to adopt Budget Ordinance Amendment No.10 for position reclassifications in the Building 

Inspections and Permitting Department and the Community Development and Neighborhood Connections 

Department.  

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

 
Community Development & Neighborhood Connections Department:  

- Request to change 311 Manager to Community Connections Manager and increase grade from 

MR10 to MR12 due to Market 

- Request to change Community Engagement Coordinator, Grade MR09, to Community Engagement 

Manager, grade MR12 

Building Inspections & Permitting Department: 

- Request to convert two LSE Office Assistant positions to one full-time, benefited Permit Specialist 

position. 

Attachments 

 CN2-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 - Position Reclassifications (Building Inspections 
and Permitting and Community Development and Neighborhood Connections) 

 

- Page 12 -



General Fund
Section 1. Revenues:

$143,500
$143,500

Section 2. Expenditures:
Community Develoment & Neighborhood Connections $103,500
Building Inspections & Permitting $40,000

$143,500

Adopted this the 10th day of October, 2023.

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC
Town Clerk

Total Revenues

Total Expenditures

Town of Apex 
Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the following Budget Amendment for the Fiscal
Year 2023-2024 Budget Ordinance be adopted:

Appropriated Fund Balance

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance
Officer and Town Clerk.

- Page 13 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Taylor Wray, Cultural Arts Center Manager 

Department(s): Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve Draft No. 25 of the Community Special Event Policy.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Staff is recommending the approval of the Community Special Event Policy as it is listed in Draft 25. This 

policy is for Community events only and does not pertain to Town events.    

 

Attachments 

 CN3-A1: Community Special Event Policy – Draft 25 
 

 

- Page 14 -



 

P a g e  1 | 18 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL 
EVENT 
POLICY 

 
This policy is for Community Events only. This does not include Town Events. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Draft #25 edits start on September 27, 2023. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Policy reviewed and approved on ____________________. 

- Page 15 -



 

P a g e  2 | 18 

 

INTRODUCTION 
Special events are very important to the quality of life for the residents of Apex. These events 
bring special excitement and vitality to the community. Special events can produce endless 
benefits such as personal, social, and economic growth and development, as well as social and 
environmental awareness.  
 
Much time and planning go into these events. Approval of special events will be determined 
once a completed application has been received, reviewed, evaluated by the appropriate Town 
staff, and it has been decided that use of public space and allocation of public resources are 
appropriate.  
 
The Town must be very careful in which events it chooses to approve. Due to the number of 
requests and demands placed on Town Departments during these events, it is impossible to 
accept every event where a request is made. Staff time, availability of equipment, the nature of 
the event, and several other factors are considered.  
 
The Town of Apex Special Event Coordinator will be the event organizers main point of 
contact with the Town. It is the Town of Apex Special Event Coordinator’s responsibility to 
process applications, serve as a liaison between the Town and event organizers, conduct the 
Special Event Logistics Committee meetings, review event requests for compliance to Town 
Ordinances, and much more! 

Please review the following Special Events Policy for the Town of Apex. 
Questions should be directed to the Town of Apex Special Events Coordinator, Lisa Raschke. 

Lisa.Raschke@apexnc.org              919-372-7465 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

This policy is not for internal Town of Apex events.  

An information workshop about the Special Events Policy will 
be held biannually: 

 
3rd Wednesday in January at 6pm 
3rd Wednesday in August at 6pm 
The Halle Cultural Arts Center 

 
These workshops are open to all event organizers who want to 

learn more about this policy and the process to apply for 
events. 

- Page 16 -

mailto:taylor.wray@apexnc.org


 

P a g e  3 | 18 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  
Application Process ……………………………………………………... Page 4 
       How to Apply For a Special Event ………………………………… Page 4 
       Tier Explanation ……………………………………………………. Page 4 
       Deadlines …………………………………………………………… Page 5 
       Process After Application Is Submitted ……………………………. 
       When Are New Applications Required …………………………….. 

Page 5 
Page 5 

  
Policy Overview ………………………………………………………… Page 6 
       Regulations …………………………………………………………. Page 6 
       Requirements ……………………………………………………….. Page 7 
            Sanitation, Recycling, & Sustainability ………………………… Page 7 
            Insurance & Liability  …………………………………………... Page 8 
            Electricity ……………………………………………………….. Page 9 
            Toilets …………………………………………………………… Page 9 
            Noise ……………………………………………………………. Page 10 
            Food Sales ………………………………………………………. Page 10 
            Alcohol ………………………………………………………….. Page 10 
            Tents, Stages, Inflatables, Accessories, etc. …………………….. Page 11 
            Safety & Security ……………………………………………….. Page 11 
            Communications & Marketing ………………………………….. Page 12 
            Nondiscrimination………………………..…………………….. Page 12 
            Town Parks ……………………………………………………… Page 13 
            Event Site Plan ………………………………………………….. Page 13 
            NCDOT Roadways ……………………………………………... Page 13 
            Town Streets, Alleys, and Parking Lots ……………………….... Page 14 
            Town Facilities ………………………………………………….. Page 14 
  
       During & After The Event ……………………………………….…  Page 14 
       Definitions …………………………………………………………. Page 15 
  
Helpful Links …………………………………………………………… Page 17 

 
  
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 17 -



 

P a g e  4 | 18 

 

APPLICATION PROCESS 
 
HOW TO APPLY FOR A SPECIAL EVENT 

1. Read this Special Events Policy thoroughly.  
2. Ask the Special Event Coordinator any questions that you 

may have. 
3. Complete the online Town of Apex Special Event 

Application. 
4. Pay the non-refundable $50 Application Review Fee  

a. [For-Profit Organizations only] 
 
 

Applying for an event does not guarantee approval. 
 

 
TIER EXPLANATION 
The Town of Apex differentiates events by tiers. Each tier differs based on projected attendance, 
Town services, street closures, and whether alcohol will be served. The event organizer must 
review the table below to understand which tier their event will be classified as: 
Tiers Details Examples 

TIER 
1 

• Fewer than 200 people 
• No Town services 
• No closure of public right-of-way  
• No inflatables, tables, food trucks, tents, alcohol  

 

o Fitness class in the 
courtyard 

 

TIER 
2 

• 201-500 people 
• Minimal Town services 
• Possible closure of public right-of-way  
• No alcohol 

 

o Pancake Breakfasts 
o Farmers’ Market 
o Memorial Day 

Ceremony 
o Veterans Day 

Ceremony 
o WWCM Food 

Drive 

TIER 
3 

• 501-1000 people 
• Minimal Town services 
• Possible closure of public right-of-way  
• No alcohol  

 

o Chanukah Festival 

TIER 
4 

• 1001 people and more, or any number of people 
with alcohol 

• Multiple Town services 
• Closure of Town parking lots, greenways, and/or 

streets 
• Alcohol can be present with proper approval & 

permits 
 

o PeakFest 
o Pride Festival 
o Pig Fest 
o Oktoberfest 
o Christmas Parade 

The Town of Apex assumes 
no liability if an event is not 
approved – Selling tickets, 

advertising, gaining 
sponsorship, and other 

activities done prior to event 
approval is done at the risk 

of the event organizer.  

- Page 18 -



 

P a g e  5 | 18 

 

 
 
DEADLINES 
All applications for consideration must have their applications completed and submitted online 
no later than the dates below:  

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 
14 days prior to event date 

 
December 1* December 1* 

 

Tier 4 
December 1* 

 
 

 

*Tiers 2, 3, & 4 may apply under the “multi-year application” while maintaining the deadline of 
December 1 for the initial application. These applicants are required to submit their initial 
application by December 1. This application would reflect up to 5 years’ worth of dates for the 
event. Once the multi-year application is approved, the Tier 4 organizations will be required to 
check in every 6 months prior to their event. 

 
PROCESS AFTER APPLICATION IS SUBMITTED 

1. Upon submitting your application, you will receive a confirmation email within five 
business days that your application has been received.  

2. An application is not considered ‘complete’ until all required information and documents 
are submitted. Incomplete applications will not be considered. 

3. The application will then be reviewed by the Town of Apex’s Special Event Logistics 
Committee consisting of members from relevant departments.  

4. The application, with committee comments, will then be reviewed by Town 
Administration. 

5. If available, the location and date will be tentatively reserved.  
6. This application, with all comments, will then be reviewed by Town Council. (This step 

is only applicable for Tier 2, 3, & 4 events.) 
7. Based on the approvers feedback, the application will be: 

a. Approved 
b. Approved with conditions 
c. Denied 

8. If approved, a Special Event Contract will be provided and signatures will be required 
from the event organizer and the Town agreeing to any stipulations put in place.   

a. For-Profit events will be provided with the associated costs. 
9. For approved events, Town staff will determine the funding required from the Town to 

serve the event. Town staff will process approved Tier 2, Tier 3, and Tier 4 events for a 
budget appropriation either as part of the annual appropriation ordinance or as an 
amendment thereto, as appropriate. Budget appropriations require council action.  

 

- Page 19 -



 

P a g e  6 | 18 

 

WHEN ARE NEW APPLICATIONS REQUIRED: 
• When a significant change has occurred. Please see the definition of significant change 

on page 16.  
• When an established event skipped a year. See definition for established event on page 

14.  
• When this is a new event. 
• When an established event is being organized by a new organizer.  
• When the multi-year application has expired. 

 
 
 
 
POLICY OVERVIEW 
GENERAL 
For purposes of this policy, “Special Event” is defined as an event, festival, parade, run, walk, or 
other recreational, cultural, entertainment, community, or social awareness activity. This special 
event will engage the community, promote tourism, showcase local talent, expose artists and 
performers to new audiences, invigorate community spirit, provide economic health and 
wellness, or cultural/social benefits to a community or organization. 
 For all other definitions relevant to this policy, please see page 14.  
Outdoor special events held on private property require a Temporary Use Permit (issued by the 
Town of Apex Planning Department) and are not covered under the Special Event Policy. You 
can find a link to the Temporary Use Permit on page 17. 
 
REGULATIONS 
The regulations in this section shall apply to all accepted special events unless otherwise 
expressly stated.  

A) Non-Profit & For-Profit. As defined in the definition section. 
a. All proposed events are open to the general public. 
b. Non-Profit and For-Profit organizations are allowed to charge for 

entry/participation.  
c. Non-Profit organizations are exempt from the fee structure on page 19.  
d. For-profit organizations will not be granted any discounts and will be required to 

pay all fees in full.  
B) Signs. All special event signage must meet the requirements of the Town of Apex Sign 

Ordinance; Please review this ordinance link on page 17. 
a. This includes but is not limited to flyers, yard signs, posters, banners 
b. Yard signs are permitted on private property with owner’s permission, no sooner 

than 1 week prior to the commencement of the event and must be removed no 
later than 2 days after the end of the event. Please contact the Planning 
Department at planninginfo@apexnc.org or 919-249-3426 at least three weeks 
prior to the event in order to have adequate time to apply for, and receive approval 
of, the required sign permit. 

c. Over-the-street banners and light-post banners are not permitted for community 
events.  

- Page 20 -

mailto:planninginfo@apexnc.org


 

P a g e  7 | 18 

 

C) Conditions of Approval. Special events shall not violate or deviate from any applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, Town Ordinances, conditions of approval for the site or 
conditions noted in the Special Events Contract.  

a. Please review the Town ordinance section 15.9 for details on 
i. Unlawful to operate bicycle or other wheeled vehicle 

ii. Unlawful to throw balls, unless pursuant to an official approved festival 
activity. 

iii. Unlawful to use fireworks at the special event  
iv. Failure to cease activities 
v. Animals at events 

vi. Failure to comply 
D) Obtain all other applicable permits and approvals. The event organizer must obtain 

all other required permits and approvals prior to their event. This may include but is not 
limited to: ABC permits, Wake County Food Permits, use of private property and/or 
right-of-way. 

E) Evaluation Criteria. The Town of Apex utilizes the following criteria when evaluating 
and scheduling special events: 

a. The nature of the event and how it can serve the Town of Apex and its residents; 
b. The dates and times during which the proposed event will occur; 

i. Including set up and breakdown times 
c. The location(s) of the event and traffic impacts; 
d. Whether the activities are in compliance with other applicable laws and Town 

ordinances; 
e. The general health, safety, and welfare of the participants in/or attending the event 

and the residents of Apex; 
f. Environmental impacts; 
g. Economic benefits; 
h. The impact and/or cost of the event on Town supported services; 
i. The frequency of the event or similar events; 
j. Awarding community grants; 
k. Priority will be given to Apex based groups, chapters, and organizations; 
l. The proposed event is community, art, culture, history focused and/or recreational 

in nature; 
m. The proposed event has been planned to facilitate a positive impact to the 

community;  
n. The proposed event is inclusive to all; 
o. If alcohol will be served; 
p. No political events; 

i. Events may invite political parties as vendors if they wish. Event 
organizers are required to invite the full representation of political parties 
in order to comply with this policy 

 
REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. Sanitation, Recycling, & Sustainability. The event organizer is responsible for litter and 

debris cleanup of the special event site both during and after the event. The event 

- Page 21 -



 

P a g e  8 | 18 

 

organizer is responsible for all costs should the Town be required to clean up following 
the event. All organizations are responsible for site clean up after their event. 

a. The Town of Apex requires recycling at all events. 
b. Trash cans, liners, and dumpsters must be purchased and organized by the event 

organizer (for-profit organizations only). 
c. Town of Apex will have oversight over all cleaning.  
d. All special events must provide an appropriate number of staff or volunteers 

devoted to litter pick-up for the entire event area during and after the event. Event 
organizers should apply a “cleaner than we found it” mindset to respect the 
environment in which the event was held.  

i. A cleanup plan will be required on the application.  
e. The Event Organizer is responsible for arranging for the proper disposal of grease 

and other similar waste with a private service or agency in advance of the event. 
i. Please see page 18 for Grease-Cycle’s Raleigh location information to rent 

their grease collection containers  
ii. Food ash collection will need to be arranged with the Special Events 

Coordinator 
f. Improper disposal or spills may be classified as a hazardous waste and result in 

fines in accordance with Chapter 2703.3 of the North Carolina Fire Prevention 
Code. The entirety of the festival boundaries must be left in the same condition as 
prior to the event.  

 
2. Insurance & Liability. Event organizers shall assume all risks to or in connection with 

the special event and shall be solely responsible for damage or injury, of whatever kind or 
nature, to person or property, directly or indirectly arising out of or in connection with the 
special event or the conduct of the organizer’s operation. The event organizer shall 
indemnify, defend and hold the Town harmless from any penalties for violation of law, 
ordinance, or regulation affecting its activity and from any and all claims or suits for 
damages or losses (including, but not limited to, attorney’s fees and other litigation 
expenses) for personal injury and for property damage directly or indirectly arising out of 
or in connection with the special event or conduct of its operation or resulting from the 
negligence or intentional acts or omissions of the event organizer or its officers, agents, 
volunteers and employees. 

a. In addition:  
i. If required by the Town’s Safety and Risk Manager, the event organizer 

must furnish a fully paid liability damage insurance policy procured from 
a company licensed to do business in North Carolina. This policy must 
protect the Town of Apex, its officers, officials, employees and agents 
from any and all claims for damages to property and/or bodily injury 
which may result from or in connection with any of the operations carried 
on by the organizer of the special event.  

ii. The Town of Apex must be named as an additional insured.  
iii. The Additionally Insured must read: The Town of Apex (73 Hunter Street, 

Apex, NC 27502) 
1. Tier 1 events do not need to provide a proof of insurance. 

- Page 22 -



 

P a g e  9 | 18 

 

2. Tier 2: The Town of Apex must receive a copy of insurance policy 
at time of contract. Insurance requirements are as follows: A 
minimum of $1,000,000 for personal injury per person, $1,000,000 
for personal injury for aggregate liability and $1,000,000 for 
property damage each occurrence, or certificates of insurance 
acceptable to the Special Event Logistics Committee is required. 

3. Tier 3: The Town of Apex must receive a copy of insurance policy 
at time of contract. Insurance requirements are as follows: A 
minimum of $2,000,000 for personal injury per person, $2,000,000 
for personal injury for aggregate liability and $2,000,000 for 
property damage each occurrence, or certificates of insurance 
acceptable to the Special Event Logistics Committee is required. 

4. Tier 4: The Town of Apex must receive a copy of insurance policy 
at time of contract. Insurance requirements are as follows: A 
minimum of $5,000,000 for personal injury per person, $5,000,000 
for personal injury for aggregate liability and $5,000,000 for 
property damage each occurrence, or certificates of insurance 
acceptable to the Special Event Logistics Committee is required. 

b. When collecting proof of insurance, the Town of Apex Special Events 
Coordinator will require the Additionally Insured Endorsement sheet and the 
Certificate of Insurance cover sheet with the following included in the 
“Description of Operations”  

i. The Town of Apex and the “Event Group Name” 
ii. Regarding the General Liability coverage, Blanket Additional Insured 

applies to the entities listed below in the certificate holder section. 
iii. Regarding the General Liability coverage, Waiver of Subrogation applies 

to the entities listed below in the certificate holder section. 
iv. Regarding the General Liability coverage, Primary and Non-Contributory 

coverage applies to the entities listed below in the certificate holder 
section. 
 

3. Electricity. Specific requirements for the use of electricity must be submitted and 
approved at the time of the application. Access is not guaranteed. Anything requested 
beyond what already exists must be reviewed and approved by the Special Event 
Logistics Committee.  

a. Power provided by extension cords from a building shall not pass through 
doorways or windows but shall be supplied by an exterior outlet, which is 
protected by a Ground Fault Circuit Interrupter (GFCI). Extension cords shall be 
grounded and shall not be placed over walking surfaces. If there is anything 
placed over walking surfaces, “yellow jacket” covers must be provided by the 
event organizer.  

b. It is the responsibility of the event organizer if the event requires the use of 
generators; the Town will not provide this.  

c. Exterior outlets are extremely limited. 
d. The event organizer must be cognitive of the proper amps required for what is 

being plugged in. (Example: A stage or sound equipment cannot be plugged into a 

- Page 23 -



 

P a g e  10 | 18 

 

standard wall plug on the outside of a Town of Apex building. This will trip the 
breaker.) 

e. The Town will have an Electric Department employee on-call for all special 
events.  

 
4. Toilets. The event organizer is responsible to provide adequate on-site toilets to facilitate 

the needs of their event. 
a. The number of toilets is determined by the type and size of event in consultation 

with the Town of Apex. 
b. Handicapped accessible toilets are required for all special events. 
c. All portable toilets must be maintained daily if contracted for a multiple day 

event. 
d. The use of Town of Apex restroom facilities is contingent on the normal 

operating hours of the building. 
e. The Special Event Logistics Committee must approve of the location and duration 

of any portable toilets.  
 

5. Noise. Permission to include music or amplified sound, including megaphones, as part of 
a special event may be given, provided that compliance with the Town’s noise ordinance 
is assured. Event organizers must be sensitive to local businesses and residences when 
preparing sound equipment for special events. 

a. The Town reserves the right to limit the sound amplification equipment so that it 
will not unreasonably disturb non-participating persons around the event.  

b. Complaints of loud, disturbing, or unnecessary noise in violation of the noise 
ordinance may result in the immediate revocation of the Special Event Contract 
and approval. 

c. Link to the ordinance is on page 17. 
 

6. Food Sales. The event organizer is responsible for arranging for all food permits and 
approvals from the Wake County Health Department a minimum of (4) four weeks prior 
to the event.  

a. In addition:  
i. All rules and regulations regarding any food preparation and service as 

established by the Wake County Health Department must be followed. 
ii. A fire inspection is required to make sure all fire safety equipment is in 

place. Inspectors have the right to close booths operating outside of health 
regulations. 

iii. All permits must be clearly displayed. 
iv. All clean-up including grease removal is the responsibility of the event 

organizer. 
v. All vendors at the special event must follow the Town of Apex Code of 

Ordinances for Transient and Mobile Food Vendors to meet National Fire 
Protection Association (NFPA) Recommendations for Food Truck Safety.  

1. Sec. 13-63. - General operating standards. 
2. Link to the ordinance is on page 17. 

 

- Page 24 -



 

P a g e  11 | 18 

 

7. Alcohol. Tier 4 are the only events permitted to request alcohol. Alcoholic beverages are 
prohibited on Town property and rights-of way unless approved in the Special Events 
Contract. 

a. Please review Section 14-14 of the Apex Town Code of Ordinances for more 
important details.  

b. An ABC permit is required for the sales and serving of any alcoholic beverages 
during the special event. Applications must be submitted directly to the ABC 
Commission, but are subject to Apex Police Department review. This review 
process may take several weeks.  

i. Please note that the event may be subject to off-duty police charges for 
both for-profit and non-profit events.  

ii. Please see the Town of Apex ABC Permit information guide. Link on 
page 17. 

 
8. Tents, Stages, Inflatables, Accessories, etc.  Temporary structures, containers or storage 

tanks required for the event may require a safety inspection by an Apex Fire Marshal. 
The Town of Apex defines and classifies any structure, enclosure, or shelter constructed 
of canvas or pliable material supported in any manner as a tent. Temporary structures 
such as decks, platforms, stages and kiosks will require an inspection. Any approval of 
these items may be rescinded if the inspected items do not meet the standards.  

a. All tents are required to have flame retardant certification.  
b. The event organizer must provide the following: 

i. A copy of flame-retardant certification (This should be attached to the 
tent, and inspector will check and approve in the field) 

ii. A site plan showing the location of the tents 
iii. A description of the activity(s) to be conducted under the tent(s) 
iv. A method of providing adequate anchorage against collapse from winds or 

other loads. Anchorage type will be determined at time of review.  
v. No tents may be staked into asphalt, the Town Campus Courtyard, or any 

other locations determined by the Special Event Logistics Committee. 
vi. All tents must be secured or weighted down at all corners. 

vii. No tent may be erected in front of a building used as a place of public 
assembly, within fifteen (15) feet of a fire hydrant, or in any way 
obstructing any building exit or doorway. 

viii. Tents may not block streets such that Special Event Logistics Committee 
deems the layout / location dangerous or in appropriate for public safety. 

ix. All tents may be inspected and approved before occupancy or use by the 
public 

x. At least one UL rate 2A: 10BC extinguisher shall be provided for all tents 
where there is cooking. Additional extinguishers may be required after the 
inspection. 

c. LP Gas use shall be restricted to cylinders no larger than one, 100lb tank (24 
gallons of propane). Cylinders shall not be expired and must be adequately 
secured to prevent over turning. Cylinders may not be secured to items such as 
fire hydrants, temporary electric poles or barricades. Cylinders may be secured to 
the grill, a tent post, a signpost or permanent electric pole. 

- Page 25 -



 

P a g e  12 | 18 

 

 
9. Safety & Security. 

a. Safety barricades ensure the safety of patrons, volunteers, staff, and others 
during special events. Any event that involves the closure of a public street may 
require barricades, variable message boards, and/or Police presence.  

b. The Town can provide event organizers with a limited number of barricades or 
other special event related equipment. 

i. There is a fee associated with this for For-Profit organizations. This can be 
requested on the application. Quality and type of barricade must be 
approved by the Special Event Logistics Committee.  

c. The Special Event Logistics Committee will determine type, quantity, and 
location of the barricades.  

d. Weather Conditions. It is the responsibility of the event organizer to track 
weather conditions and make the final call for cancelation. The Town of Apex 
reserves the right to cancel an event if there is a crisis or threat to public health 
and safety. 

e. The Special Event Logistics Committee may require the organizer to hire Wake 
County EMS or similar services.  

f. The Special Event Logistics Committee will develop an Emergency Action Plan 
for all Tier 3 and Tier 4 events.   

i. The Emergency Action Plan in turn may dictate site plan alterations. This 
will be communicated to the event organizer prior to the event.  

g. Security. The Special Event Logistics Committee will review each application 
and provide requirements on the number of officers or other security needed for 
the event. To hire off-duty officers, the event organizer will need to contact the 
Apex Police Department through their Extra Duty Solutions application; this 
pertains to for-profit and non-profit events. The link for such can be found on 
page 17. 

h. No Parking Signage. The Apex Police Department will post “no parking” signs 
at least 24 hours before any parking lot closure.  

 
10. Communications & Marketing.  

a. Community Events that fall within tiers 2-4 will be promoted by the Town of 
Apex.  

b. The Town will provide a standard Town of Apex graphic with limited text 
language on the event and refer the community to the organizer’s website.   

c. The Town of Apex will create a unified plan for promotion between the Town of 
Apex and the community event organizers, ensuring both parties understand what 
group is responsible for each promotional piece. 

d. The event organizer will be responsible for providing a point of contact for the 
public and a URL/website for the public to access information provided for the 
Community Event. Without this information included in the application, the event 
organizer will not be able to submit their application. 

e. All events approved by the Town of Apex are required to add “This event is not 
organized by the Town of Apex” to their publications, regardless of web, social, or 
print.  

- Page 26 -



 

P a g e  13 | 18 

 

f. The event organizer must provide public notification to all adjacent businesses 
and residents of the date and time of the event with a description of the roads to 
be closed a minimum of thirty (30) days before the event. 

 
11. Nondiscrimination. The Town of Apex strives to be a welcoming and diverse 

community with a sense of belonging for anyone that chooses to live, work, or visit and 
enjoy the “Peak of Good Living”.  Special events are examples of how we embrace this 
goal. To achieve this goal, the Town’s special events shall be inclusive to all.  

a. Inclusivity in events means creating an experience that’s supportive of everyone 
in attendance, no matter their age, race, religion, religious belief or non-belief, 
ethnicity, color, national origin, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, 
marital status, natural hair style, genetic information, pregnancy, familial status, 
disability, veteran or military status, or disabled veteran status.  An event cannot 
be considered a success until every attendee is empowered to participate without 
barriers. Additionally, the Town will uphold its nondiscrimination ordinance and 
policy in relation to special events.  

b. The Town will ensure that no special event excludes any person on the basis of 
Protected Class status, as defined in Town of Apex Code of Ordinances Section 3-
3(k).  

c. For more information on the Town’s nondiscrimination policy and commitment to 
inclusivity, please refer to Chapter 3 of the Town of Apex Code of Ordinances. 

 
12. Town Parks. Due to heavy use and demand the Town does not rent or close entire parks 

for special events. In rare cases, approved by the Director of Parks, Recreation, and 
Cultural Resources, the Town may close a portion or specific area within a park provided 
it does not disrupt the day-to-day operation or use by Apex residents. A rental fee may be 
charged to cover costs associated with the use of Town facilities.   
 

13. Event Site Plan. Sidewalks, Greenways and Multi-Use Paths are to be used for public 
refuge and pedestrian traffic only and must remain clear and unobstructed in case of 
emergency; unless the closure permit specifically states that the sidewalk, greenway or 
multi-use path is to be closed.  

a. Submit a high quality 8.5” x 11” map of the proposed festival boundaries 
including: 

i. Street closures 
ii. Barricades 

1. Entrances and exits if barricades create enclosures 
iii. Vendor locations 
iv. Vendor driving directions 
v. Tent locations 

1. Entrances and exits if tent is enclosed 
vi. Restrooms 

vii. Trash Can locations 
viii. Dumpster locations 

 

- Page 27 -



 

P a g e  14 | 18 

 

14. NCDOT Roadways. Any North Carolina Department of Transportation State Highway 
or road must receive permission of NCDOT to be closed. Please see the link on page 19 
for NCDOT contact info. 

a. To differentiate between NCDOT roads and Town of Apex roads, please see the 
link on page 17 and page 18. 

 
15. Town Streets, Alleys, and Parking Lots. Following council approval for the budget 

associated with a Tier 2, Tier 3, or Tier 4 Community Event, the Town Manager or their 
designee may temporarily close a public rights-of-way, including streets, alleys, and 
parking lots as necessary for the approved event. Pursuant to Town Code Sec. 20-17. 
Temporary parking restrictions may be implemented by police officers as necessary for 
the event.  
 

16. Town Facilities. The use of inside Town Hall will not be approved. Other Town facilities 
will be approved based on availability and overall impact. The use of rentable Town 
property is subject to their individual rules, regulations, availability, and completion of 
rental contracts.  

a. Please see links on page 17 for more info. 
 
 
 
DURING & AFTER THE EVENT 

• The event organizer must be present during the entire duration of the event (this includes 
set up and clean up). The event organizer may enlist a committee of people to assist with 
this timeline. This responsibility is on the event organization.  

• Site Visit. The Town of Apex performs routine site visits during special events. During 
this visit, the Town of Apex Special Events Coordinator will continue to serve as a 
liaison for event organizers to address last minute event needs as they arise. The Town of 
Apex Special Events Coordinator and other Town staff will also ensure compliance with 
the regulations outlined in this Special Events Policy, Special Event Contract, and with 
the regulations enforced by other Town departments or partner agencies as applicable.  

o Failure to meet these conditions may result in the immediate shutting down of the 
event.  

• Following the Event. The After-Action Evaluation will be emailed to the event organizer 
30 days or less after the event. 

o After-Action Evaluation. The Special Event Logistics Committee will complete 
an internal evaluation form for each event to measure the success of special 
events and event organizers in conforming to policies and permitted activities. 
Events with an unsatisfactory evaluation may have additional requirements 
imposed for future years or may be denied for future events.  

o Completing Payment. Payment, as a result of the payment formula, must be paid 
within 120 days post event (for-profit organization only). 

 
 
 
 

- Page 28 -



 

P a g e  15 | 18 

 

DEFINITIONS: 
 
COMMUNITY EVENT 
This is an event that is created, facilitated, planned, and funded by a non-profit or for-profit 
group outside of the Town of Apex organization.  
 
EMERGENCY ACTION PLAN 
An emergency action plan is defined as comprehensive documentation of procedures based on 
the required emergency standard. 

ESTABLISHED EVENT 
This is an event that has occurred for 2 consecutive years (or more) in a row in the same location 
as prior years. 
 
EVENT ORGANIZER 
The event organizer is the person whose name is on the Special Event Application. This person 
will be the point-of-contact with the Town of Apex Special Events Coordinator.  

• The event organizer must share the event planning meeting schedule with the Town of 
Apex Special Events Coordinator.  

o The Town of Apex Special Events Coordinator may attend any/all planning 
meetings.  

• The event organizer shall attend the proposed event for the full duration of set up, event 
time, and clean up.  

• Any requested changes to the event from anyone other than the event organizer will be 
invalid. 

• If the event organizer steps down, a new event organizer must be designated in writing.  
Notice of this change may be sent to Town of Apex Special Events Coordinator by email. 

 
FESTIVAL BOUNDARIES  
The festival boundaries are defined as the approved geographical location of the festival. The 
Festival Boundaries may not exceed the barricades as shown on the site map.  
 
FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATION 
For this application, this is defined as an organization that is outside of the definition of non-
profit organization.  

(See “Non-Profit Organization” definition for what is considered a non-profit.) 
 
HISTORIC DOWNTOWN 
The historic downtown is defined as the section of Salem Street between Hunter Street and 
Highway 55/Williams Street. 
 
MINIMAL TOWN SERVICES 
Minimal Town services is designated as no more than 2 departments needed the day of the event. 
 
MULTIPLE TOWN SERVIES 
Multiple Town services is designated as 3 or more departments needed the day of the event.  

- Page 29 -



 

P a g e  16 | 18 

 

 
NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATION 
For this application, this is defined as an organization under the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
status of 501(c)(3), 501(c)(6), 501(c)(19) or if they are an Apex Public School. 

(See “For-Profit Organization” definition for what is considered for-profit.) 
 
PARADES, RACES, AND WALKS 
Parades, races, and walks are defined as an organized activity following 
a set course that involve full or partial closure of any Town streets, 
Town property, sidewalks, and/or greenways. 

• A Special Event application is required for any run or walk.  
• Any Special Event with a Parade component will be required to 

fill out a Special Event Application in addition to the parade 
permit required by Article X, Chapter 20 of the Apex Town 
Code of Ordinances.  

o Example: Apex Christmas Parade 
• Parades unrelated to a special event must follow the permit 

process in Article X, Chapter 20 of the Apex Town Code of Ordinances. 
• The event organizer is responsible for the cost of all Town services incurred in 

connection with the parade, race, or walk.  
• The Special Event Logistics Committee may require the organizer to provide one or more 

off-duty personnel as deemed necessary. The Apex Police Department will determine 
final safety plans for Tier 3 & 4 events. 

 
PROTECTED CLASS 
Protected Class means an individual’s age, race, religion, religious belief or non-belief, ethnicity, 
color, national origin, creed, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, marital status, natural hair 
style, genetic information, pregnancy, familial status, disability, veteran or military status, or 
disabled veteran status. 
 
SIGNIFICANT CHANGE 
This is any large change made to an event like a change in the outer festival boundary, alcohol, 
personnel, or more.  
 
SPECIAL EVENT 
A special event is defined as an organized activity that has a stationary footprint requiring the 
closure of streets, public spaces, or plazas. These events often contain amplified noise, food, 
beverage, merchandise, and other entertainment. Examples would include: festivals, markets, 
memorials, demonstrations, marches, and ceremonies. Special Event Contract is required for any 
event which is held on Town Property or any event to be held on Public Rights-of-Way.  
 
THE TOWN 
This notes the Town of Apex 
 
TOWN EVENT 

Parades also require a 
permit from the Apex 

Police Department 
after applying as a 

Special Event.  

See page 17 for a 
link. 

- Page 30 -



 

P a g e  17 | 18 

 

Sometimes referred to as a “Town Owned Event”. This is an event that the Town of Apex 
Organization created, facilitated, planned, and funded. 
 
YELLOW JACKETS 
Yellow Jackets are defined as the equipment that covers cords and cables that go over walking 
paths with a smooth transition. These can be purchased online.  
 
 
HELPFUL LINKS 
Town of Apex 
Temporary Use Permit 
 

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/459/Temporary-
Use-Permit-EVENT-Private-Property-Only-PDF 

Town of Apex Code of 
Ordinances 
 

https://www.apexnc.org/149/Code-of-Ordinances 

Town of Apex ABC 
Permit Information 
Guide 
 

https://www.apexnc.org/787/ABC-Permits  

Wake County Health 
Department 
 

http://www.wakegov.com/food/festivals/Pages/tfe.aspx 

Town of Apex Shelter 
and Facility Rental 
Details 
 

http://www.apexnc.org/514/Facilities-and-Rentals 

Photos of the Town of 
Apex Shelters 
 

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31866/Park-Shelter-
Photos 

Apex Police Department 
Off-Duty Request 
Application 

https://extradutysolutions.com/app/apex-extra-duty-detail-
application/ 
Phone: 919-589-1205  
Email: ApexNC@ExtraDutySolutions.com 
 

Group Demonstration, 
Picket, or Parade Permit 
Application 
 

https://www.apexnc.org/696/Forms-Permits 

John M. Brown 
Community Center 
Rental Form 

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/9522/John-M-
Brown-Community-Center-Facility-Reservation-Form 
Phone: (919) 249-3402 
 

The Halle Cultural Arts 
Center Rental Form 

http://thehalle.org/DocumentCenter/View/38273/The-Halles-
Rental-Request-Form 
Phone: (919) 249-1120 
 

- Page 31 -

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/459/Temporary-Use-Permit-EVENT-Private-Property-Only-PDF
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/459/Temporary-Use-Permit-EVENT-Private-Property-Only-PDF
https://www.apexnc.org/149/Code-of-Ordinances
https://www.apexnc.org/787/ABC-Permits
http://www.wakegov.com/food/festivals/Pages/tfe.aspx
http://www.apexnc.org/514/Facilities-and-Rentals
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31866/Park-Shelter-Photos
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/31866/Park-Shelter-Photos
https://extradutysolutions.com/app/apex-extra-duty-detail-application/
https://extradutysolutions.com/app/apex-extra-duty-detail-application/
mailto:ApexNC@ExtraDutySolutions.com
https://www.apexnc.org/696/Forms-Permits
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/9522/John-M-Brown-Community-Center-Facility-Reservation-Form
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/9522/John-M-Brown-Community-Center-Facility-Reservation-Form
http://thehalle.org/DocumentCenter/View/38273/The-Halles-Rental-Request-Form
http://thehalle.org/DocumentCenter/View/38273/The-Halles-Rental-Request-Form


 

P a g e  18 | 18 

 

Apex Senior Center 
Rental Form 

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/40069/Apex-
Senior-Center-Facility-Reservation-Form 
Phone: (919) 249-3354 
 

Apex Shelter Rental 
Form 

http://www.apexnc.org/514/Facilities-and-Rentals 
Phone: (919) 249-3402 
 

NCDOT Website https://www.ncdot.gov/Pages/default.aspx 
 

What is an NCDOT road 
and what is a Town of 
Apex road? 
 

https://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id= 
506270ba8fa546bcb790203def056a13 
 

Town of Apex Unified 
Development Ordinance 
(UDO) 
 

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/24/Unified-
Development-Ordinance-UDO-PDF 

Grease-Cycle 
 

https://grease-cycle.com/contact-us 
Phone: 919-817-6792 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Page 32 -

http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/40069/Apex-Senior-Center-Facility-Reservation-Form
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/40069/Apex-Senior-Center-Facility-Reservation-Form
http://www.apexnc.org/514/Facilities-and-Rentals
https://www.ncdot.gov/Pages/default.aspx
https://apexnc.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/24/Unified-Development-Ordinance-UDO-PDF
http://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/24/Unified-Development-Ordinance-UDO-PDF
https://grease-cycle.com/contact-us


 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Matthew Reker, Utilities Engineer 

Department(s): Water Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to award the construction contract with North American Pipeline Management, Inc., for Lawrence 

Crossing Sewer Outfall Placement Project, and adopt Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2024-7 and 

to authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to execute the contract on behalf of the Town. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

On August 8, 2023, the Town received only two (2) bids for the Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall 

Replacement Project.  As a result, a second bid advertisement was required and on August 24, 2023, the 

low bidder was North American Pipeline Management, Inc., (NAPM), with a total construction price of 

$1,559,775 exceeding the original estimate of $1,100,000. Funds already appropriated in the project fund 

will be transferred to cover the additional project costs.   

 

This project will remove the existing deteriorated sanitary sewer outfall from James Street to Perry Rd and 

replace it with approximately 2,325 LF of new 8-inch, 12-inch and 18-inch gravity sewer pipe.  Water 

Resources Department believes this section of gravity sewer pipe is a major contributor to inflow and 

infiltration resulting in reduced sewer treatment capacity at the Town’s Middle Creek Water Reclamation 

Facility.  The Town’s engineering consultant, Hydro structures, PA, recommends awarding the contract to 

NAPM and staff is in agreement.  

 

Attachments 

• CN4-A1: Recommendation of Award & Certified Bid Tab - Construction Contract Award - North 
American Pipeline Management, Inc 

• CN4-A2: Notice of Award - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, 
Inc 

• CN4-A3: North American Pipeline Management Bid Package - Construction Contract Award - North 
American Pipeline Management, Inc 



• CN4-A4: Construction Contract - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline 
Management, Inc 

• CN4-A5: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2024-7 - Construction Contract Award - North 
American Pipeline Management, Inc 

 



- Page 35 -



- Page 36 -



- Page 37 -



 

EJCDC® C-510, Notice of Award. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 1 
 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance: September 26, 2023   

Owner:  Town of Apex Owner's Contract No.:  

Engineer: Hydrostructures Engineer's Project No.: NCAP.19.01 

Project: Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall 
Replacement 

Contract Name:  

Bidder: North American Pipeline Management, Inc 

Bidder’s Address: 12 East Montclair Ave. Greenville, SC 29609 

TO BIDDER: 

 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated __August 24, 2023___ for the above Contract, and 
that you are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for:  installation of approximately 2,300 LF of 8”, 
12”, and 18” gravity sewer to replace an existing 24” sewer outfall. 
The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $_1,559,775.00_. 

        [4] unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one copy of the 
Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or made available to 
Bidder electronically.  

           a set of the Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents.  

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice 
of Award: 
 

1. Deliver to Owner [4] counterparts of the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g., performance and payment bonds] 
and insurance documentation as specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions, 
Articles 2 and 6. 

3. Other conditions precedent: None 
 

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in 
Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions. 

Owner: Town of Apex 
                         Authorized Signature 

By:  

Title:  
 
Copy: Engineer 

Acceptance of Notice 
Receipt of the above Notice of Award is hereby acknowledged by   

this the    day of   , 20     . 

By:      Title:   

- Page 38 -



- Page 39 -



- Page 40 -



- Page 41 -



- Page 42 -



- Page 43 -



- Page 44 -



- Page 45 -



- Page 46 -



- Page 47 -



- Page 48 -



- Page 49 -



- Page 50 -



- Page 51 -



- Page 52 -



- Page 53 -



- Page 54 -



- Page 55 -



- Page 56 -



- Page 57 -



- Page 58 -



- Page 59 -



- Page 60 -



- Page 61 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 1 of 7 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR 

FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE) 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between Town of Apex (“Owner”) and 

North American Pipeline Management, Inc. (“Contractor”). 

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE 1 – WORK 

1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The 
Work is generally described as follows: 

ARTICLE 2 – THE PROJECT 

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as 
follows: Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall Replacement  

ARTICLE 3 – ENGINEER 

3.01 The part of the Project that pertains to the Work has been designed by Hydrostructures   . 

3.02 The Owner has retained Hydrostructures to act as Owner’s representative, assume all duties and 
responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract 
Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 

ARTICLE 4 – CONTRACT TIMES 

4.01 Time of the Essence 

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

4.02 Contract Times: Days 

A. The Work will be substantially completed within  90    days after the date when the 
Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, 
and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the 
General Conditions within 120   days after the date when the Contract Times commence to 
run. 

B. Parts of the Work shall be substantially completed on or before the following Milestone(s): 

1. N/A 

4.03 Liquidated Damages 

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed 
and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any 
extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the 

- Page 62 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 2 of 7 

delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the 
actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of 
requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay 
(but not as a penalty): 

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $750 for each day that expires 
after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 
4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete. 

2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall 
neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times (as 
duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final 
payment, Contractor shall pay Owner $750 for each day that expires after such time 
until the Work is completed and ready for final payment. 

3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final 
completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently. 

4. Milestones: Contractor shall pay Owner $750 for each day that expires after the time 
(as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified above for achievement of 
Milestone 1, until Milestone 1 is achieved. 

ARTICLE 5 – CONTRACT PRICE 

5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract 
Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract: 

A. All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with Paragraph 
13.02 of the General Conditions. 

B. Total of Unit Price Work  $_1,559,775.00_     . 

C. All Work, at the prices stated in Contractor’s Bid, is attached hereto as an exhibit. 

ARTICLE 6 – PAYMENT PROCEDURES 

6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments 

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the 
General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage 

A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of 
Contractor’s Applications for Payment on or about the 25th day of each month during 
performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such 
Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the 
requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of 
Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price 
Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of 
Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract. 

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount equal 
to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of payments 
previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold, including but not 
limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract 

- Page 63 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 3 of 7 

a. 95 percent of Work completed (with the balance being retainage). If the Work has 
been 50 percent completed as determined by Engineer, and if the character and 
progress of the Work have been satisfactory to Owner and Engineer, then as long 
as the character and progress of the Work remain satisfactory to Owner and 
Engineer, there will be no additional retainage; and 

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (with 
the balance being retainage). 

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total 
payments to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off 
by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 200 percent of 
Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the 
punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. 

6.03 Final Payment 

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of 
the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as 
recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06. 

ARTICLE 7 – INTEREST 

7.01 Interest on final payments due to prime contracts shall accrue in accordance with North Carolina 
General Statute 143-134.1. 

ARTICLE 8 – CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS 

8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following 
representations: 

A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 

B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site 
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and 
Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect 
cost, progress, and performance of the Work. 

D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to 
existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the 
Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and 
drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if 
any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, 
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings. 

E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information 
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and 
observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related 
reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of 
such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance 
of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 

- Page 64 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 4 of 7 

construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs. 

F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, 
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, 
or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the 
Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract. 

G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 

H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or 
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written 
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 

I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of 
all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 

J. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 

ARTICLE 9 – CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

9.01 Contents 

A. The Contract Documents consist of the following: 

1. This Agreement (pages 1 to _7__, inclusive). 

2. Performance bond (pages _1__ to _3__, inclusive). 

3. Payment bond (pages _1__ to _3__, inclusive). 

4. Power of Attorney (pages __1_ to ___, inclusive). 

5. Certificate of Insurance (pages _1__ to ___, inclusive). 

6. General Conditions (pages _1__ to __65_, inclusive). 

7. Supplementary Conditions (pages _1__ to _20__, inclusive). 

8. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 

9. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of _17__ sheets with 
each sheet bearing the following general title: _Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall 
Replacement__. 

10. Addenda (numbers _1__ to __2_, inclusive). 

11. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows): 

a. Contractor’s Bid (pages _1__ to _23__, inclusive). 

b. Notice of Award (pages _1__ to ___, inclusive). 

c. Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award. 

d. Affidavits. 

12. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the 
Contract and are not attached hereto: 

- Page 65 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 5 of 7 

a. Notice to Proceed. 

b. Work Change Directives. 

c. Change Orders. 

B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9. 

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in 
the General Conditions. 

ARTICLE 10 – MISCELLANEOUS 

10.01 Terms 

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and 
the Supplementary Conditions. 

10.02 Assignment of Contract 

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of 
any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto 
without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without 
limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited 
by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an 
assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or 
responsibility under the Contract Documents. 

10.03 Successors and Assigns 

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to 
the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all 
covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. 

10.04 Severability 

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under 
any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue 
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 
Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid 
and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the 
stricken provision. 

10.05 Contractor’s Certifications 

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive 
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.  For the purposes of this Paragraph 
10.05: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of 

- Page 66 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 6 of 7 

Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels, or (c) 
to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition; 

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices 
at artificial, non-competitive levels; and 

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or 
affect the execution of the Contract. 

10.08 Anti-Human Trafficking 

                      A. The Contractor warrants and agrees that no labor supplied by the Contractor or the 
Contractor’s subcontractors in the performance of this Agreement shall be obtained by 
means of deception, coercion, intimidation or force, or otherwise in violation of North 
Carolina law, specifically Article 10A, Subchapter 3 of Chapter 14 of the North Carolina 
General Statutes, Human Trafficking. 

 

 

- Page 67 -



EJCDC® C-520 (Rev. 1), Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (Stipulated Price). 
Copyright © 2013 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,  

and American Society of Civil Engineers.  All rights reserved.    Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.  

This Agreement will be effective on _9/26/23_________ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). 

OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 

Town of Apex  North American Pipeline Management, Inc. 

By:   By:  

Title:   Title:  

  
(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a joint 
venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)   

Attest:   Attest:  

Title:   Title:  

Address for giving notices:  Address for giving notices: 

P.O. Box 250   12 East Montclair Ave 

Apex, NC 27502-0250  Greenville, SC 29609 

   

  License No.: 70877 

   
(where applicable) 

If Contractor is a corporation, partnership, or joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign. 

 

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

 

__________________________________ 
 Antwan Morrison, Finance Director 

- Page 68 -



Section 1. The revenues anticipated for the projects are:

65-9275-1208-39732 Inflow & Infiltration: Transfer from W/S Fund (640,000)           

65-9275-1223-39732 Lawrence Crossing: Transfer from W/S Fund 640,000             

$0

Section 2. The expenditures anticipated are:

65-9275-1208-47300 Inflow & Infiltration: Capital Outlay Improvements (640,000)           

65-9275-1223-47300 Lawrence Crossing: Capital Outlay Improvements 640,000             

$0

Attest:

Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor Allen L. Coleman, CMC, NCCCC

Town Clerk

Total Expenditures

Section 3. Within five (5) days after adoption, copies of this Amendment shall be filed with the Finance

Officer and Town Clerk.

Adopted this the 10th day of October, 2023.

Total Revenues

Town of Apex 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 2024-7

Water & Sewer Capital Project Fund

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the Town of Apex that the Capital Project Ordinance previously entitled

"Water & Sewer  Capital Project Fund" be amended as follows:

- Page 69 -



- Page 70 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve, as submitted or amended, Meeting Minutes from the following meeting: 

 September 19, 2023 – Work Session Meeting Minutes   

 September 26, 2023 – Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes 

 October 3, 2023 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes – Appointed Personnel Evaluations 

Approval Recommended? 

The Town Clerk recommends the Town Council approve the meeting minutes as presented or amended.  

Item Details 

In accordance with 160A-72 of North Carolina General Statues (NCGS), the Governing Board has the legal 

duty to approve all minutes that are entered into the official journal of the Board’s proceedings.  

 

Attachments 

 CN5-A1: DRAFT Minutes – September 19, 2023 – Work Session Meeting Minutes 
 CN5-A2: DRAFT Minutes – September 26, 2023 – Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes  
 CN5-A3: DRAFT Minutes – October 3, 2023 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes – Appointed 

Personnel Evaluations 
 

 

- Page 71 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 1 of 22 

 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
TOWN COUNCIL WORK SESSION   2 
TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2023 3 

3:30 P.M.  4 

The Apex Town Council met for a work session on Tuesday, September 19, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. 5 
at the Apex Town Hall located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex North Carolina. 6 

This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this 7 
meeting in-person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel: 8 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3W5fcSjWifI 9 

 10 

[ATTENDANCE] 11 

 12 
Elected Body  13 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  14 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth  15 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  16 
Councilmember Ed Gray  17 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 18 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  19 
Absent: None 20 

 21 
Town Staff  22 
Interim Town Manager Shawn Purvis  23 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  24 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 25 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 26 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  27 
Deputy Town Clerk Ashley Gentry  28 
Electric Utilities Director Eric Neumann 29 
Budget and Performance Director Amanda Grogan 30 
Finance Director Antwan Morrison 31 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below.  32 

 33 

[COMMENCEMENT] 34 

 35 

 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 3:38 p.m. and led the Pledge of 36 
Allegiance. 37 

- Page 72 -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3W5fcSjWifI


DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 2 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-1]  1 

 2 

 3 

[AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 – NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 4 
TRANSPORTATION (NCDOT) RECONNECTING COMMUNITIES AND 5 
NEIGHBORHOODS GRANT – S-LINE RAIL CORRIDOR – MOBILITY HUB FUNDING 6 
MATCH] 7 

Shannon Cox, Long-Range Planning Manager, gave an overview of the funding. She 8 
added this was presented to Council at the September 12, 2023 Town Council meeting. She 9 
said the requested motion before Council is to approve a Resolution of Support and Letter of 10 
Commitment, that would authorize 20% match for the grant, totaling 460,000 thousand 11 
dollars and to authorize the Interim Town Manager to execute on behalf of the Town.  12 

Councilmember Zegerman asked if 460,000 thousand dollars came out of reserves.  13 

Ms. Cox said NCDOT indicated that the town can spread the funding out over 14 
multiple budget years.  15 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said the town doesn’t have plans for the funding this 16 
year. He stated this commitment would include this project on the CIP moving forward. 17 

 Mayor Gilbert said the motion has been presented. 18 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Gantt, seconded by Councilmember 19 
Zegerman, to approve a Resolution to Support Development of the S-Line Rail Corridor and 20 
to Provide Local Funding to Match a Federal Grant Opportunity for Mobility Hub Design and 21 
Project Development Activities, and to authorize the Interim Town Manager to sign the Letter 22 
of Commitment. 23 

 24 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 25 

   26 

- Page 73 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 3 of 22 

 

[ITEM NO. 2. ELECTRIC UTILITY PRESENTATION] (REF: RES-2023-061 and 1 
OTHER-2023-092) 2 

Interim Town Manager Shawn Purvis stated it’s important to be prepared for the 3 
future and to make sure the town is planning for growth. He stated not just the physical 4 
growth of the town but also how the demand on the electric system is growing. He stated 5 
direction will be asked of Council and stated these items will be reflected in the next budget.   6 

 Eric Neumann, Electric Utilities Director, gave an overview presentation of electric 7 
utilities bulk power, distribution system investments, load management issues & options, and 8 
a discussion on EV Charger usage.   9 

[SLIDE-2] 10 

 11 

[SLIDE-3] 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

 16 

- Page 74 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 4 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-4] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE-5] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE-6] 5 

 6 

- Page 75 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 5 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-7] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE-8] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE-9] 5 

 6 

- Page 76 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 6 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-10] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE-11] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE-12] 5 

 6 

- Page 77 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 7 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-13] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE-14] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE-15] 5 

 6 

- Page 78 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 8 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-16] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE-17] 3 

 4 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if these would be town-owned EV chargers. 5 

 Director Neumann said yes, these would be town-owned chargers. 6 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked how an EV charger would be throttled without 7 
load management. 8 

 Director Neumann said a lot of them were programmable, so the town could 9 
program them to work that way. 10 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said residential or commercial customers who 11 
installed EV chargers would have to do that and pay for it on their own.  12 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if it would only cover 1/3 of the power bill. 13 

 Director Neumann said yes, they just have to make sure they are able to cover their 14 
rates. 15 

- Page 79 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 9 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-18] 1 

 2 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if transformers are stressed by the amount of power 3 
that’s flowing through them. He said he assumes people are charging the EV’s at night which 4 
is low peak, which would help to even things out more.  5 

 Director Neumann said with EV charging increasing and the work in promoting 6 
certain behavior, everyone is going to plug in at the same time, and the town has more 7 
diversity in times when vehicles are charged now.  8 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if not every car will be plugged in at the same time 9 
because not every car will need to be charged.  10 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said the issue is the town can’t control when 11 
someone is going to plug it in, unless there is an Ordinance in place. He said it’s a matter of 12 
being able to serve your customer whenever they plug their EV in, and ensure the maximum 13 
amount is available.  14 

 15 

[SLIDE-19] 16 

 17 

- Page 80 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 10 of 22 

 

 Paul Broussard, Budget and Performance Analyst, gave an overview on the cost 1 
estimates for proposed EV chargers.  2 

[SLIDE-20] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE-21] 5 

 6 

 7 

 8 

 9 

 10 

 11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

 15 

- Page 81 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 11 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-22] 1 

 2 

[SLIDE-23] 3 

 4 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the cost would be one hundred thousand dollars 5 
per year per charger. 6 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said it’s over a lifetime.  7 

 Councilmember Zegerman confirmed that it’s a hundred thousand dollars per 8 
charger over 10 years, which potentially would be a hundred-thousand-dollar subsidy a year.  9 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he was glad it was coming from charging during the 10 
peak window. 11 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if the length of that was an hour per day. 12 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said it depends on when the peak time is set, but they 13 
don’t know when that will be. He said there is a window of about 4-6 hours where the peak 14 
could be. 15 

- Page 82 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 12 of 22 

 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingworth asked if the town trying to restrict four to six hours 1 
of use randomly to address the problem. 2 

 Director Neumann said it’s predictable by season. He said if the town had a control 3 
mechanism, they could potentially use it to dynamically identify when those periods would 4 
be.  5 

 Director Grogan said the town can typically narrow it down to a specific window.  6 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he thinks its important to keep consistency so the 7 
users know. He said it would be good if they understood that Apex chargers wouldn’t work 8 
between 5 and 6 PM, or whatever the window may be. 9 

 Director Neumann said most of the EV chargers are programmable to throttle, so 10 
someone can connect during the highest hours and still get a limited charging rate if that’s 11 
what they chose to do instead of cutoff. 12 

 Councilmember Gray asked if the town is incorporating the price of who would be 13 
managing the program, and whether it’s high-end or low-end. 14 

 Director Grogan said that’s part of the analysis and the cost is captured. 15 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said she would prefer to adjust the rates, since 16 
the times would be inconsistent across the year, to minimize confusion. 17 

 Councilmember Gray said the time of day will reflect how much the charge will be. 18 
He said it would show what the price was when somebody would be wanting to plug in. 19 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said that would be time of use, and the town does 20 
have the technology to be able to implement that. 21 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the town still needed to manage the time 22 
depending on conditions, or if it would be able to be programmed up front.  23 

 Director Neumann said the companies he has talked to, that’s part of the contract 24 
where they build the programing and it’s highly flexible. He said the structure can be 25 
changed throughout the day or seasonally. 26 

 Mr. Broussard said one thing they would need to look out for if they offered it for free 27 
at point of service to the consumer would be expected demand. He said the model built in an 28 
assumed 15% demand increase for that scenario. He said this would need to be monitored 29 
and adjusted over time. 30 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said the town is more likely to be installing more EV’s 31 
than other municipalities, based on their own UDO requirements. He said he has seen 32 
citizens come and try to charge at Town Hall or other town facilities. He said his 33 
recommendation would be if the Town moves towards a time to charge, he said there’s a 34 
system mechanism for capturing that charge. He said this would help with not having to put 35 
up signs or having to deter the public from charging. He said it would actually open up to the 36 
public, where if a citizen wants to charge their EV and they’re willing to pay, then the Town 37 

- Page 83 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 13 of 22 

 

would not be fighting back and forth. He said this might increase the number of charges and 1 
EV chargers available. 2 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said could create issues for certain departments as 3 
more town cars transition to electric, if the public was using up a town vehicle charger that an 4 
employee would plug the car into to have it ready for the next morning. He said it’s important 5 
to ensure town services can still be consistently provided. 6 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said her preference is not to offer for free but to 7 
use time of use. 8 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he was concerned about the time of use, because it 9 
was a variable rate, and he wasn’t sure if that would accomplish their goal.  10 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he liked the idea of throttling during peak hours, so 11 
the town wouldn’t see a big bill on the back end. 12 

 Councilman Mahaffey said it seems unavoidable to throttle during that time because 13 
the costs are so high. He said he prefers to be consistent so people don’t have to guess if the 14 
charge would be throttled at varying times. He said it would be good to be able to narrow it 15 
down to a smaller window of time, such as 15 or 30 minutes. He said the town’s contract with 16 
ElectriCities dictates a lot of the policy choices they can make.  17 

 Councilmember Zegerman said Director Neumann mentioned the 23 dollar raise 18 
with Duke, and asked how long that price was locked in for. 19 

 Director Neumann said he has five-year projections. 20 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said the town has two more years on the current 21 
contract. He said renegotiations will be starting very soon as it’s a long process. He said the 22 
town just got a 53 million dollar true-up. 23 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if that charge was because the town did not use 24 
enough energy. 25 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said it was fuel adjustment. 26 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said the true-up was an additional month for the town. 27 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked when the contracts are renegotiated, if more costs 28 
would be passed onto the town, such as 30 percent from Duke Energy. 29 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said it’s likely. He said what would likely get better 30 
would be the resources that the town is allowed to have. He said they may can expand the 31 
capacity, 32 

Councilmember Mahaffey asked if Duke is wanting to incentivize the town to have 33 
that capacity. 34 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said they did not want the town to have that capacity. 35 
He said that is money out of their pocket. 36 

- Page 84 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 14 of 22 

 

Councilmember Zegerman asked to what extent town solar capacity can offset or 1 
generate additional the 10 mW that is needed. 2 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said commercial or residential solar only goes back to 3 
that building and doesn’t contribute to the system.  4 

Councilmember Zegerman asked if that was giving back to the grid. 5 

Councilmember Mahaffey said only if there is more generated than is used. 6 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said a large amount is needed to make an impact. 7 

Councilmember Mahaffey said time is the issue as well, such as where the peak 8 
comes in. 9 

Councilmember Zegerman asked if the results of the study are in regarding terms of 10 
division of solar revenue.  11 

Assistant Town Manager Stone said he should have something in a couple weeks to 12 
share.  13 

Mayor Gilbert asked about the EV police vehicles being taken home and what is the 14 
plan for that.  15 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said that’s next on the list, but public safety and other 16 
large vehicles present complications, and the technology isn’t fully there yet for an overall 17 
electric transition. 18 

Mayor Gilbert said the town could offer compensation to staff who charge vehicles at 19 
home. 20 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said those are the things they know will have to tackle.  21 

Director Grogan said one of the priorities is to map out what a time-frame looks like 22 
for where infrastructure needs to be, then look at if there is infrastructure that needs to be 23 
upgraded in order to support a long-term plan.  24 

Interim Town Manager Purvis said the staff needs to know what kind of billing 25 
model. He said it’s not happening right now, at least two years out, but there needs to plan to 26 
know how to set up a system and set up communications plans to encourage behaviors. 27 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth asked if there any other energy that could 28 
generate some sort of electricity other than solar energy.  29 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said wind and hydro are not an option here. He said 30 
there is a difference between renewable and clean energy, and most of the town’s energy 31 
comes from the nuclear plant, which is considered clean energy. 32 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked why wind was not an option. 33 

 Councilmember Gantt said Apex is in the least windy part of the state. 34 

- Page 85 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 15 of 22 

 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said there is always technologies that are coming 1 
out.  2 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said the town would be open to new technologies. He 3 
said battery storage is another clean option since the energy comes from clean energy. 4 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said the town is working to drive down the peak. He 5 
said on a really hot week, they may do load management on several days a week because 6 
they don’t know what Duke would select as the peak.  7 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said there is technology out there, such as 8 
something that can be put in a road and when someone dries over it, it produces electricity. 9 
She said there are things out there that can be explored.  10 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said they are open to exploring any options, but the 11 
cost-effectiveness of things is also important to consider. 12 

[SLIDE-24] 13 

 14 

[SLIDE-25] 15 

 16 

- Page 86 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 16 of 22 

 

 Director Grogan said this includes solar and pending, and that as of July the town has 1 
975 solar customers.  2 

[SLIDE-26] 3 

 4 

[SLIDE-27] 5 

 6 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if we could decide today about the battery, and said he 7 
thinks there’s at least three votes to get it passed. He asked if Council agreed.  8 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked what is the useful life on the battery.  9 

 Director Neumann said upwards to 20 years. He said there are guarantees and full 10 
maintenance on the battery, and that there would be several options. 11 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said staff is looking for direction to pursue one of the 12 
options. 13 

 Councilmember Gray asked if the town needs to have additional land purchases for 14 
the placement. 15 

- Page 87 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 17 of 22 

 

 Director Neumann said he does not know, and that it is still in discussion. He said he 1 
would like to try and put them next to one of the town’s substations, particularly the Mt. Zion 2 
substation. He said the reason for that is that’s where staff is housed so they can monitor it 3 
easily. He said there is storage area in the back, but they are unsure of the size of the 4 
footprint.  5 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said even batteries with a 10-year life could have a 6 
payback within 6 years. 7 

  8 

A motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth, seconded by 9 
Councilmember Gantt, to pursue battery storage options.  10 

 11 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 12 

 13 

 Director Neumann said that will help him, and he will come back to them with plenty 14 
of options. He discussed system expansion and possible future substation sites. He said the 15 
town needs to get some land for the fourth subsite as soon as possible, and it needs to be 16 
close to a transmission line. He also discussed that if the town is going to more EV’s, then the 17 
town needs more land. He said Perry Road could be one site. He said another sub site could 18 
be purchased and have land be turned back over to the town for other purposes. 19 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked about the pump station on Perry Road that is 20 
meant to be removed. 21 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said if the town has almost 50 acres of land and put a 22 
substation in which puts a line across US-1.  23 

 Councilmember Zegerman said there is a sewer pump station there that needs to be 24 
moved.  25 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said it’s not being moved. He said they have enough 26 
land at Perry Road, and that it’s the most logical place to split the transmission. He also said 27 
the facility is doing a plan study looking at how the town could use the road site over the next 28 
20 years.  29 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth asked if a decision is being asked of Council to 30 
decide to expand or not to expand.  31 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said any actual decision would come from Council. He 32 
said if Council doesn’t want to expand the system and instead look for other options that can 33 
be explored.  34 

- Page 88 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 18 of 22 

 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said its more reasonable to look for property for 1 
this purpose, because it would severely limit the town if they don’t. She said she doesn’t see 2 
why it wouldn’t be a good idea.  3 

 Mayor Gilbert said he understands strategically staff is looking at areas for expansion 4 
and making sure they don’t have to travel long distances, he said there are other priorities in 5 
place for land acquisition, such as for affordable housing. He asked is this being looked at as 6 
well in order to make sure things are not being overlooked. 7 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said that those would be looked at separately. 8 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there were any worries about having enough 9 
funds for both. 10 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said they are financially in two separate buckets, but if 11 
they found land that would be suitable for either, they could come back and evaluate the 12 
options with Council.  13 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he really liked the slide about the EV’s and the cost. 14 
He said land is not getting cheaper, the demand is up, and he fully supports this. 15 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she liked the idea of the transition over to 16 
the time of use model. 17 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he thought the town had a time of use option today. 18 

 Director Neumann said they do, but nobody wants it. 19 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked why that was the case. 20 

 Director Neumann said people don’t like change, and the system is very punitive 21 
right now, and people are scared of the on-peak rate. He said lots of people don’t want to 22 
think that much about when they are using energy. 23 

 Councilmember Zegerman said instead of waiting two years for an AMI to come in 24 
and then beginning to educate, maybe they should review the rate structure and bring them 25 
closer together so that the on-peak rate isn’t so scary. He said the education and 26 
communication process could be started now. 27 

 Director Neumann said the problem was that they system that is currently in place 28 
has problems which make it more difficult to work with time of use. He said there is a high risk 29 
right now, because they don’t have extra collectors and they would have to do some manual 30 
readings if one of them went down.  31 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth asked if he wanted a vote on this or needed 32 
direction.  33 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said a general direction would be good, and he said 34 
staff would be going to come back to Council with the structures and then a vote. He said the 35 
town does want to start the communication and education piece. 36 

- Page 89 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 19 of 22 

 

 Director Neumann said there would be a heavy education component, and staff is 1 
going to be communicating to customers about the whole thing. He said it would be a win-2 
win, and most people would get on it once they learn about it. 3 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he would agree to explore it.  4 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said that she agreed. 5 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said that would give the ability to start looking at what 6 
the town’s rate structures are now, in order to potentially help soften what the transition 7 
would be like so it wouldn’t be as scary to customers. 8 

 Councilmember Zegerman said they could also have rate changes over time. He said 9 
the rates could potentially be closer initially, and then expanded once people got used to it. 10 

 Director Neumann said Fayetteville Electric mandated time of use all at once 5-6 11 
years ago. He said it didn’t drive any behavior change, but it took several years for the rates 12 
to drive behaviors. He said the town will be counting on this more from the beginning to help 13 
offset the effects from residential.  14 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the town may need to recover all of the costs on the 15 
front end of this. 16 

 Director Neumann said he wasn’t saying the rates aren’t going to be super high, but 17 
a time of use rate would be lower than a flat rate. 18 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he doesn’t want to set that expectation. He said the 19 
bill on either may not be lower because rates could be set higher to help offset costs from 20 
additional infrastructure. He said he wants to be careful about how things like that are 21 
messaged to residents. 22 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth asked what to do in regards to giving direction 23 
on EV chargers. 24 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said it would be good to know, because the town will 25 
need to replace the chargers at town hall, and there will be new chargers installed at the 26 
Mason Street building and at the cemetery. He said it would be good to know what they 27 
would want billing to look like to help inform what chargers they get. He said they don’t need 28 
an exact number, just an idea of what structure they want to do.  29 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said all of the above. 30 

 Councilmember Zegerman said they needed the options. He said a system needs to 31 
be set up for billing. 32 

 Councilmember Mahaffey recommended time of use with a throttle, because even 33 
the high rates at-peak wouldn’t recover the costs. He said he wants to ensure that it’s 34 
consistent so that EV users are able to know when it is not a good hour to plug into town 35 
chargers.  36 

- Page 90 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 20 of 22 

 

 Mayor Gilbert asked for a motion. 1 

  2 

 A motion was made by Councilmember Mahaffey, seconded by Mayor Pro 3 
Tempore Killingsworth, to direct staff to pursue the time-of-use with on-peak throttling 4 
model for town-owned EV chargers, and to ensure that there is consistency regarding when 5 
people would know the best hours not to charge. 6 

 7 

 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 8 

  9 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said that staff is looking to get direction around these 10 
topics, since they will be setting up the new ERP and they know what AMI can do. He said 11 
they don’t want to do education after everything is set up. He said almost 4% of the town’s 12 
customers were solar, and Dukes is only around one percent. He said the town has more 13 
solar customers than all of the Eastern ElectriCities combined. He said there other ways to 14 
incentivize, such as rebate programs, to help push toward the benefit. He said there is a base 15 
charge in order to make sure the lines are functional and power can get to someone’s house 16 
if their solar is not working. 17 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said he views the time of use as a sort of compromise 18 
solution there. He’s not opposed to smaller changes to the pricing model which might 19 
recover some of the costs. He added that he views going from retail costs to avoided costs as 20 
a pretty big change. He said he would like a continuous update on the actual costs once they 21 
come in.  22 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he agrees, but thinks that there should be a 23 
minimum system charge to offset the infrastructure. He said there is a cost, and he thinks this 24 
is fair, but the system also needs to allow for a buyback rate.  25 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said it would be like a monthly fee.  26 

 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if everyone agreed to offset usage and still pay the 27 
monthly rate or rollover indefinitely. 28 

 Director Grogan said eventually it would have to stop. 29 

 Director Neumann said the thing about rollovers is that is zero’s it out and doesn’t 30 
get transferred to the new owner. He said managing and keeping track of that would be an 31 
administrative burden. He said the system should not be designed to sell it back to the town. 32 
He said it has viewed that if people produce additional energy, they would be able to store it 33 
with the town for their own use if needed. He said he wants to ensure people know that the 34 
town wants them to use everything that they generate, but if not, that issue has been 35 
alleviated with battery storage. 36 

- Page 91 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 21 of 22 

 

 Director Grogan said Apex’s system is much larger than the state or national average, 1 
which is because the system can be oversized to get a return on investment much quicker.  2 

 Mayor Gilbert asked what is the recommendation.  3 

 Director Neumann said he would zero it out at whatever period it is, rather than 4 
adding on keeping track of rollover credit and keeping track of it. 5 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there is a system in place where the town does 6 
an annual estimate of electric usage and smooth that out over a 12-month period so 7 
customers don’t get hit with a bill.  8 

 Director Grogan said there is a budget billing component for utility customers, but 9 
it’s not something that’s done for every customer, but customers can sign up. 10 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the town already as that mechanism in place.  11 

 Mayor Gilbert asked where Council is at in this discussion.  12 

 Councilmember Zegerman said the town should buy back at retail rates.  13 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said time of use would then make that more efficient for 14 
everybody. 15 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said any credit would go towards the base charge.  16 

 Councilmember Zegerman said he was okay with buying back at retail rates, and 17 
they could see over time how time of use changes things. He said to keep the price attractive 18 
and to put solar on a roof, he said a twenty-five-dollar contribution for infrastructure is 19 
reasonable.  20 

 Director Grogan said the base charge would be $26.38. 21 

 Councilmember Gray said he’s unsure if the town is dis-incentivizing solar by 22 
requiring some of the costs of the infrastructure to be paid. He said psychologically, he 23 
doesn’t believe that is the case. 24 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked out of the 900 plus solar customers that the town 25 
has, how many are actually getting money back because of over production.  26 

 Assistant Town Manager Stone said that report hasn’t been run in a while, but a 27 
rough estimate would be twenty-percent. He said they could run it again for a current 28 
number. 29 

 Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth said she agrees with the base charge, and then 30 
they could adjust rates as they AMI comes in. 31 

 Director Grogan said to be clear, base charge doesn’t go negative and a fixed rate 32 
that’s designed to carry distribution and buy back at retail.  33 

 Interim Town Manager Purvis said the credit would be held for a year and it would 34 
zero out. 35 

- Page 92 -



DRAFT MINUTES  

Page 22 of 22 

 

[SLIDE-28] 1 

 2 

 3 

[ADJOURNMENT] 4 

 5 
 Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 5.41p.m.  6 

 7 

 8 
Jacques K. Gilbert 9 

Apex, Mayor  10 

 11 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 12 

Apex, Town Clerk  13 

 14 

Submitted for approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  15 

 16 

Minutes approved on _______ of ___________, 2023. 17 

- Page 93 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 1 of 47 
 

TOWN OF APEX 1 
REGULAR TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 2 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 3 
6:00 PM 4 

 5 
The Apex Town Council met for a Regular Town Council Meeting on Tuesday, September 26, 2023 6 
at 6:00 PM in the Council Chambers at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter Street in Apex, North 7 
Carolina. 8 
 9 
This meeting was open to the public.  Members of the public were able to attend this meeting in-10 
person or watch online via the livestream on the Town’s YouTube Channel. The recording of this 11 
meeting can be viewed here: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=x0LA_v-nss8 12 
 13 
[ATTENDANCE] 14 
 15 
Elected Body 16 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  17 
Mayor Pro Tempore Audra Killingsworth 18 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  19 
Councilmember Ed Gray  20 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman  21 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey 22 
Absent: None 23 
 24 
Town Staff 25 
Interim Town Manager Shawn Purvis 26 
Assistant Town Manager Demetria John  27 
Assistant Town Manager Marty Stone 28 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 29 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  30 
All other staff members will be identified appropriately below 31 
 32 
[COMMENCEMENT] 33 
 34 
 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order, and thanked everyone for coming out, and 35 
thanked Yunjun Jung of the town’s Information Technology (IT) Department for helping keep the 36 
livestream of the Council Meeting running.  37 
The Invocation for the meeting was offered by Pastor Adam King of Family Church, Apex. 38 
 Mayor Gilbert then led a recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance. 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 

- Page 94 -

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=x0LA_v-nss8


DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 2 of 47 
 

[SLIDE 1] 1 

 2 
 3 
[CONSENT AGENDA] 4 
 5 

A motion was made by Councilmember Zegerman, seconded by Councilmember Gantt, 6 
to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 7 
 8 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 9 
 10 
CN1 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9 – White Oak Creek Consortium Reimbursement 11 

(REF: ORD-2023-099) 12 
Council voted to adopt Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 9 which appropriates funds to pay 13 
amounts due under the first amendment to the Utility Infrastructure Reimbursement Agreement with 14 
Pulte Home Company, LLC, Standard Pacific of the Carolinas, LLC, and Taylor Morrison of Carolinas, 15 
Inc. and which authorizes a transfer of funds from the Water Sewer HB 463 Capital Fund to fund the 16 
payment 17 
CN2 Construction Contract Award - Carolina Civilworks, Inc. - Sunset Hills Pump Station 18 

Improvement Project (REF: CONT-2023-286 and OTHER-2023-097) 19 
Council voted to award the construction contract with Carolina Civilworks, Inc. for the Sunset Hill 20 
Pump Station Improvement project and to authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to 21 
execute the contract on behalf of the Town. 22 
CN3 Construction Contract Award – Lanier Construction Company Inc. – Apex West 23 

Greenway and Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2024-6 (REF: CONT-2023-24 
287 and OTHER-2023-094 and ORD-2023-100) 25 

Council voted to award the construction contract with Lanier Construction Company, Inc., for Apex 26 
West Greenway construction project and adopt Capital Project Ordinance Amendment 2024-6, and 27 
authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to execute on behalf of the Town. 28 
CN4 Construction Contract Technical Amendment – Fred Smith Co. - Beaver Creek Greenway 29 

(Phase 1, Phase1A, and Phase 2) (REF: CONT-2023-288 and OTHER-2023-095) 30 
Council voted to award a construction contract, upon NCDOT concurrence, for EB-6021 Beaver 31 
Creek Greenway (PH1, 2 and 1A) construction which amends the previous action by Town Council 32 

- Page 95 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 3 of 47 
 

on August 8, 2023, to ensure compliance with Locally Administered Project funding requirements, 1 
and to authorize Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to execute the contract on behalf of the 2 
Town. 3 
CN5 Council Meeting Minutes – Various 4 
Council voted to approve, as submitted or amended, Meeting Minutes from the following meeting: 5 
September 12, 2023 – Regular Town Council Minutes 6 
CN6 Design-Build Delivery Method for Construction Projects and Design-Build of a Bike Park 7 

Facility at Hunter Street Park (REF: PLCY-2023-008) 8 
Council vote to approve the establishment of criteria for a Design-Build delivery method for 9 
Construction Projects and for the Design-Build of the Bike Park Facility at Hunter Street Park. 10 
CN7 Fee-In-Lieu (FIL) of Land Dedication - Townes on Tingen 11 
Council voted to approve a fee-in-lieu of dedication for the Townes on Tingen. 12 
CN8 Ordinance Amendment Chapter 20 - Section150(13) - No Parking in a Bike Lane (REF: 13 
ORD-2023-101) 14 
Council voted to adopt an Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 20 Traffic – Section 150 with the 15 
addition of subsection (13) prohibiting parking in a bike lane, except that a driver may stop 16 
temporarily during the actual loading and unloading of passengers or materials unless deliveries are 17 
otherwise prohibited. 18 
CN9 Resolution - Abandon Existing Utility Easements (REF: RES-2023-062)  19 
Council voted to adopt a Resolution entitled “A Resolution to Abandon Existing Utility Easements” 20 
for multiple Dry Utility Easements (DUE) located at The Park at Wimberly. 21 
CN10 Resolution - Water Shortage Response Plan (REF: RES-2023-063 and PLCY-2023-009) 22 
Council voted to adopt a Resolution entitled “A Resolution Approving Water Shortage Response 23 
Plan” to implement water conservation measures to respond to drought or other water shortage 24 
conditions as set out in the Water Shortage Response Plan (WSRP). 25 
 26 
[PRESENTATIONS] 27 
 28 
PR1 Proclamation – Cyber Security Awareness Month – October 2023 (REF: PRO-2023-028) 29 

 Mayor Gilbert, along with the rest of Council, read the Cyber Security Awareness Month 30 
Proclamation in unity.  31 
 Erika Sacco, Information Technology (IT) Director, and Conrad Sain, Information Technology 32 
(IT) Security Administrator, were present to receive the Proclamation. 33 
 Mr. Sain thanked Council for lending their voice to why Cyber Security is important. He said 34 
this is the 7th year of the town’s security awareness program, and they are continuing to add to it 35 
each year. He said this is a very relevant concept and prioritizes communities over individuals. He 36 
said they will continue to work with local organizations and leaders to promote the good of the 37 
community. 38 
 39 
PR2 Proclamation – Hindu Heritage Month – October 2023 (REF: PRO-2023-029) 40 

 Mayor Gilbert, along with the rest of Council, read the Hindu Heritage Month 2023 41 
Proclamation in unity. 42 

- Page 96 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 4 of 47 
 

 Members of the Triangle Region Hindu Community, and Celeste Sherer, DEI Coordinator, 1 
accepted the Proclamation. 2 
 Sameer Ponkshe, on behalf of the Hindu Community in the Triangle Region, thanked the 3 
Mayor and Council for having them, and said it was a moment of great pride for them. He said 4 
Hindus around the world believe in one philosophy, translated to say “the whole world is one 5 
community.”  6 
PR3 Vision Zero Traffic Safety Program - One (1) Year Update  7 

 Russell Dalton, Traffic Engineering Manager, and Sajid Hassan, Traffic Safety Engineer, 8 
gave the following presentation regarding the One Year Update for the Vision Zero Traffic Safety 9 
Program. 10 
[PR3 – SLIDE 1] 11 

 12 
[PR3 – SLIDE 2] 13 

 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 

- Page 97 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 5 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 98 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 6 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 8] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 99 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 7 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 9] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 10] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 11] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 100 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 8 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 12] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 13] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 14] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 101 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 9 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 15] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 16] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 17] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 102 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 10 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 18] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 19] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 20] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 103 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 11 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 21] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 22] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 23] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 104 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 12 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 24] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 25] 3 

 4 
[PR3 – SLIDE 26] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 105 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 13 of 47 
 

[PR3 – SLIDE 27] 1 

 2 
[PR3 – SLIDE 28] 3 

 4 
 5 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Dalton and Mr. Hassan for the report, and welcomed Mr. Hassan 6 
to Apex.  7 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if he was interpreting the chart correctly to say out of the 8 
1,894 crashed, 20 of them involved pedestrians or cyclists, meaning only about 1 percent of crashes 9 
involved pedestrians or cyclists. 10 
 Mr. Dalton said that was correct.  11 
 Councilmember Zegerman said that much less than he thought. He asked if any modular  12 
pilots have been conducted yet, or if that would be an item to be discussed and tested in the future.  13 
 Mr. Hassan said they have not tested any yet, but they have planned some areas for them to 14 
be tested.  15 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked about signal timings from when lights turn red versus 16 
turning green, and asked if they are working to address that, or if it they were there for a reason. 17 
 Mr. Hassan said that is one of the countermeasures, and it allows intersections with sides 18 
with pedestrian crossing and without to operate independently. He said the delay is caused by the 19 
leading pedestrian interval.  20 

- Page 106 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 14 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the interval between one side turning red and the other 1 
turning green was there intentionally to allow for the intersection to clear. 2 
 Mr. Dalton said that was correct, and there are engineering standards regarding that interval 3 
time.  4 
 Councilmember Gantt asked how they look at the data in regards to balancing offering safer 5 
ways to walk, such as sidewalks, with the increased pedestrian population along and across 6 
roadways they bring.  7 
 Mr. Dalton said that is a concern when looking at the data, but the idea is always to make the 8 
infrastructure as safe as possible when it gets put in. He said this also speaks to the education and 9 
enforcements components of Vision Zero, to ensure drivers and pedestrians are aware of safe 10 
roadways practices and behaviors. 11 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if engineers typically expect an uptick in incidents originally, 12 
and then a lower rate as time goes by. 13 
 Mr. Dalton said in many cases pedestrian and bicycle incidents are random, so providing 14 
more infrastructure may cause the data to show more incidents total, but if there was not 15 
infrastructure provided, people who do walk along roadways would do so in a much less safe 16 
manner. He said they try to add infrastructure in places where people already walk or want to walk to 17 
enhance the safety of doing so.  18 
 Councilmember Gray thanked Mr. Dalton and Mr. Hassan, and said the Transportation 19 
Department booth at Party in the Peak was well-received. He said it was good letting residents know 20 
that they were the most important component in this process, and he appreciates the flexibility in 21 
their approach. 22 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said traffic calming requests are one of the things he hears most 23 
often from residents, and was wondering what “expanding the toolbox” for this meant. 24 
 Mr. Hassan said this could be things like increasing road signs and marking, narrowing 25 
roadways to encourage people to slow down, mechanisms to reduce cut-through traffic, and 26 
reducing conflict with motorists, pedestrians, and cyclists. He said there are many examples of this in 27 
other Traffic Calming Policies in the state, and they can provide that information as they gather it to 28 
include in the town’s own policy. 29 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) 30 
was receptive to those conversations, and potentially designing roadways with more traffic calming 31 
measures and separating vehicles and pedestrian/bicycle traffic.  32 
 Mr. Hassan said North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) is willing to listen, 33 
but when looking at implementation, they want to spend more time looking at their own standards 34 
and seeing what fits in within their policies and structures.  35 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said in her experience it was, “yes, as long as you pay for 36 
it”. 37 
 Mayor Gilbert asked if having a Vision Zero program in place helped with things like grant 38 
funding or project scoring, and if there have been conversations with the surrounding communities 39 
to join in with Vision Zero. 40 
 Mr. Hassan said they work with Raleigh and other Vision Zero communities in Wake County, 41 
as well as Capital Area Metropolitan Planning Organization, who are working to bring Vision Zero to 42 
the whole region.  43 

- Page 107 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 15 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Gantt asked if there has been an uptick in Vision Zero communities 1 
because of the Federal Government Planning grant.  2 
 Mr. Hassan said that funding was for creation of the action plan, which Apex already had. He 3 
said Apex and Charlotte were the only two communities with that already in place, and Charlotte got 4 
the last round of funding available for that. 5 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if that meant those communities would have Vision Zero 6 
implemented in the next few years. 7 
 Mr. Hassan said yes, since the funding went to the implementation of the action plan.  8 
 9 
PR4 Wake County Land Cover Analysis & Tree Canopy Assessment 10 

 Timothy Maloney, Director, Wake County Planning, Development, & Inspections, and Bill 11 
Shroyer, Senior GIS Analyst, Wake Council Department of Planning, Development, & Inspections, 12 
gave the following presentation regarding the Wake County Land Cover and Tree Canopy 13 
Assessment. 14 
[PR4 – SLIDE 1] 15 

 16 
[PR4 – SLIDE 2] 17 

 18 
 19 

- Page 108 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 16 of 47 
 

[PR4 – SLIDE 3] 1 

 2 
[PR4 – SLIDE 4] 3 

 4 
[PR4 – SLIDE 5] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 109 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 17 of 47 
 

[PR4 – SLIDE 6] 1 

 2 
[PR4 – SLIDE 7] 3 

 4 
 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 8] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 110 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 18 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 9] 2 

 3 
[PR4 – SLIDE 10] 4 

 5 
[PR4 -SLIDE 11] 6 

 7 
[PR4 – SLIDE 12] 8 

- Page 111 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 19 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 13] 2 

 3 
 4 
 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 14] 6 

 7 
[PR4 – SLIDE 15] 8 

- Page 112 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 20 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 16] 2 

 3 
 4 
 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 17] 6 

 7 
[PR4 – SLIDE 18] 8 

- Page 113 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 21 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 19] 2 

 3 
 4 
 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 20] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 114 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 22 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 21] 2 

 3 
[PR4 – SLIDE 22] 4 

 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 23] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 115 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 23 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 24] 2 

 3 
[PR4 – SLIDE 25] 4 

 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 26] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 116 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 24 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 27] 2 

 3 
[PR4 – SLIDE 28] 4 

 5 
[PR4 – SLIDE 29] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 117 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 25 of 47 
 

 1 
[PR4 – SLIDE 30] 2 

 3 
[PR4 – SLIDE 31] 4 

 5 
 6 
 Councilmember Mahaffey thanked Mr. Maloney and Mr. Shroyer for the report. He said 7 
trees have been a focus for Apex for a while, and it was great to see it quantified. He said what was 8 
important would be how it was acted upon. He said Apex has been sincere in its approach to 9 
increasing trees, but has done so on a more “ad-hoc” basis. He said he would like to have some rules 10 
on the books that operationalize canopy preservation and re-plantings. He said a big step forward 11 
would be rebuilding some of the lost canopy using the date provided in the report. He wondered 12 
how the County-wide approach would look, and said it would be good to have a set of model 13 
ordinances that could be adopted by the County and its municipalities. He added there were several 14 
projects that haven’t fully got going that would decrease this number more without additional 15 
measures. He said it is important to increase the overall canopy amount, but also targeted increases 16 
in places that could lessen the impact of the urban heat island effect. He said he would be digging 17 
into the data from the report, and he encouraged town and county staff to work together to come up 18 
with an operationalized plan to respond to this. 19 

- Page 118 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 26 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Gantt said as someone with background using GIS, he really enjoyed 1 
looking at this study. He said when he saw Apex had the highest amount of canopy loss, he thought 2 
about blaming past Councils for approving more low-density developments, but he looked at the 3 
map closer and saw that a lot of the canopy loss was from the construction of 540. He said if 540 was 4 
not included, Apex would not have the highest canopy loss. He said there are also Civic uses that 5 
contributed to the loss, such as the Apex Friendship Campus, Scott’s Ridge, and the Western Wake 6 
Water Reclamation Facility. He was wondering their thoughts on the policy implications of balancing 7 
canopy preservation with still doing projects that benefitted residents of the town.  8 
 Mr. Maloney said those were policy questions for local governments to look at and address. 9 
He said the Town of Morrisville had the lowest tree canopy percentage and the most impervious 10 
surface percentage, and they had worked with a consultant to check the most recent year’s data as 11 
well. He said their policies for preservations and plantings with development have been starting to 12 
show some benefit in the last few years. 13 
 Mayor Gilbert said it was important to bring everyone to the table when looking at policy 14 
decisions, including developers.  15 
 Councilmember Gray said he appreciated being able to have the data. He said they have 16 
been working to balance tree preservation with landowner’s ability to do what they wanted to with 17 
their property. He said this data could be used to help drive UDO changes that they have been 18 
discussing that didn’t have a data-driven approach to back it before. He said he tried to use the Tree 19 
Keeper program, but was not having much success. 20 
 Mr. Maloney said they would be putting tutorials out that showed how to utilize the 21 
program. He said it was important to be patient with it, because there was so much data behind it.  22 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he agrees this gives data to back their positions on the 23 
importance of tree canopy. He said the data indicated some priority areas in places that he did not 24 
expect them. He said it takes personal preference more out of the conversation, and uses data that 25 
backs all of it up. He thanked Mr. Maloney and Mr. Shroyer for their work. 26 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she did recall some data from a study the town did 27 
just after she got on Council, but not to the detail that this study provided.  28 
 Shelly Mayo, Planner II, said that study was looking at a smaller timeframe of data, and was 29 
also looking at how trees could mitigate stormwater. She said there was some tree canopy 30 
information included, and looking back at those studies is worthwhile. 31 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked specifically what the next steps were. He asked if town staff 32 
could work with the County to get some operational plans in place for this in the next few months.  33 
 Councilmember Zegerman added they could also expand existing programs, such as the 34 
Plant Apex program, to help drive canopy growth. He said priority areas from this report could be 35 
expanded. 36 
 Councilmember Mahaffey agreed, and said it was interesting to be able to have data that 37 
could inform where the program may have the most impact.  38 
 Mayor Gilbert asked if there were any concerns from staff about moving in that direction.  39 
 Interim Town Manager Purvis said staff would need time to fully review the information in 40 
the report, and then to engage the Environmental Advisory Board on this as well and get their input. 41 
He said after staff and the EAB has had time to review and look at option, they could come with 42 
options or hold a Council workshop. He said he knows this is a Council priority and is part of their 43 
environmental leadership goal.  44 

- Page 119 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 27 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked if there could be any target dates on that. 1 
 Interim Town Manager Purvis said he doesn’t think something before the end of the year 2 
would be feasible, but he will work with staff to determine a goal for getting things put together for 3 
Council.  4 
 Councilmember Gray said he would recommend the first step to be a Work Session to get 5 
everybody in the same room and be able to ask the right questions.  6 
 Councilmember Gantt said he estimated about 580 acres in Apex were taken up by 7 
Highway 540, and said with other DOT projects he had seen trees come back naturally, yet slowly. 8 
He was wondering if what Morrisville did expedited that process for them.  9 
 Mr. Maloney said there are likely circumstances where DOT maintains areas without trees in 10 
situations where they don’t need to be maintained, and that planting seedlings would accelerate the 11 
natural process of trees spreading.  12 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if there were any plans to do this on the middle parts and not 13 
just the on/off ramp areas.  14 
 Mr. Maloney said no, that is likely off-limits by the DOT. He said they use more land than they 15 
need for the highway to keep things safe for vehicular traffic. He said they recognize there is room to 16 
get closer with trees on those main portions of highway. He said hopefully the pilot project can 17 
demonstrate low-cost, low-maintenance options, and in the future, they could potentially replant in 18 
places that were overly cleared.  19 
 20 
[REGULAR MEETING AGENDA] 21 
 22 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gray, seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore 23 
Killingsworth, to approve the Regular Meeting Agenda as presented. 24 
 25 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 26 
 27 
[PUBLIC FORUM] (NOTE: To view Public Forum and Public Hearing sign-up sheets, see OTHER-28 
2023-096) 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
[SLIDE 2] 33 

- Page 120 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 28 of 47 
 

 1 
 2 
First to speak was Kurt Kuechler, of 2721 Silver Stirrup Lane: 3 
 4 
 “I had in mind what I was going to talk about tonight, but I’m going to go on the fly because it 5 
hasn’t been said, and I think it should be. Unfortunately, probably a lot of the staff who were 6 
responsible for it aren’t here tonight, but thanks to them for the quick transition on Saturday from 7 
outside events to inside events, transforming the Community Center and Senior Center, and you still 8 
had a great event. So those people need to be applauded. The other thing I wanted to talk about, 9 
obviously it goes without saying, this tree canopy study, and what’s going to become of a potential 10 
amendment to RCA, obviously one helps the other. It’s a fantastic thought, I wish it was an even 11 
higher percentage increase, and I’d also like to have you consider separating the solar aspect from 12 
the RCA aspect. They’re both great programs, both great ideas, but I think it’s kind of unfair to hurt 13 
the RCA just because you’re doing something good with solar. Keep ‘em separate, award efforts to 14 
solar, award efforts to RCA. That’s all I’ve got, thanks.” 15 
 16 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Mr. Kuechler for his comments.  17 
 18 
Next to speak was Beth Bland, of 3724 Friendship Road: 19 
 20 
 “I wanted to make you aware of something concerning Holly Springs plans, and their 21 
innovation park. We received a notice, Tom and I did, from the Timmons Group, that they’re 22 
rezoning, and they’re adding residential into their Innovation Park. Including the possibility of a 7-23 
story high apartment building with over 600 residents, at 2 different places. One would be 24 
Friendship Road and the New Hill Holly Springs Road, and the other I believe is closer to Woods 25 
Creek and Friendship Road. You know, it’s the Timmons Group, Trustwell Properties, Helix 26 
Properties, they’re all part of this huge conglomerate that is working the park, buying more property, 27 
so my question to you is, is there any way you can work more closely with Holly Springs. With what 28 
their plans are, and what Apex’s plans are, because I feel like there’s a really big disconnect. With 29 
what they’re going to do with the Innovation Park, it’s going to bring more traffic onto Friendship 30 
Road, which is already a problem. They have done a traffic study, it’s 575 pages, so I briefly went 31 
through it, but basically, they show they do include the Friendship Road and Old US 1 intersection, 32 

- Page 121 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 29 of 47 
 

and the grade they have for it is an F. And they don’t really have the infrastructure in place to handle 1 
the additional rezoning that they’re wanting to do in this Innovation Park. And then we have Veridea 2 
that’s coming up here, we have, you know, the Force Main, which this is off on a tangent, but in my 3 
mind, we just heard about the canopy study, the other side of the road, the trees are already gone. 4 
The trees that are going to be affected on our property, we have 80-foot-tall pine trees, and we have 5 
a stand of cedar trees, and they’re coming down. A lot of them. So, it just seems like the two towns 6 
are interconnected, but not working together. And I was concerned, from the last Board Meeting, 7 
when Councilman Gray and Councilman Gantt, Councilman Gray mentioned getting together with 8 
Holly Springs, then there was a conversation about well, if we ask them for something then they’re 9 
going to ask us for something, and I think you should be able to work through that better. So, all I’m 10 
asking is, please consider having the two towns work a little more closely together with what the 11 
plans are.” 12 
 13 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Bland for her comments. 14 
 15 
Next to speak was Elizabeth Stitt of 3113 Friendship Road: 16 
 17 
“I was joking with staff earlier that I might start using some of my other addresses just to keep things 18 
lively. So, Beth and I went to the Holly Springs Town Council meeting last Tuesday, and fortunately 19 
they are on the first and third Tuesdays, and you guys are second and fourth, so Tuesday nights are 20 
going to be Town Council meetings. But we made the same ask of Holly Springs, to please start 21 
talking with Apex. I’m going to take what Beth shared one step further. When you look at their TIA, 22 
they included 8-10 background developments that were 2-4 miles away from Amga and what they’re 23 
wanting to do. But within 2 miles, across our side of Apex, we have multiple projects that were not 24 
included. And so, I’m looking at this TIA, and it’s under scoped, because our traffic goes back and 25 
forth, their traffic is coming back and forth. So, then I looked at the Pleasant Park TIA, I looked at 26 
Holland Road Mixed Use Assembly, I looked at the Sears PUD, I looked at West Village. We aren’t 27 
including any of their plans with Amga, and with this current rezoning that they’re looking for, it is 28 
taking it to unlimited commercial space, plus an addition of 1200 apartments. And you go their TIA, 29 
and their TIA is only estimating traffic on 2.1 million square feet of commercial, and only 1,000 30 
apartments, so it’s under scoped from the very beginning, and they haven’t even come up with the 31 
list of what the developer is going to do. So, here’s what’s going to happen: their TIA is under 32 
scoped, it’s going to dump much more traffic over onto Friendship Road. That is going to make it 33 
very congested so those businesses at Holland Road Mixed Use Assembly, people aren’t going to 34 
shop there. They’re going to go elsewhere, where it’s easier to get to. It is going to hurt the 35 
economic benefits of that development. It’s going to hurt people trying to get to Pleasant Park, 36 
because they can’t get through Friendship Road because GPS is sending them that way, and they’re 37 
getting stuck. So, this is this is more than about hey let’s have conversation, this is going to hurt your 38 
business community. And as more development tries to happened in our area, the cost of those 39 
road improvements are going to be greater on Apex businesses and property owners, because 40 
Amga is under scoped. So, this is more than you know hey, we’re tired of the traffic, this is one of 41 
those watershed moments where you’ve got to stop and say what is happening there, what are the 42 
implications. So, I’m going to be going back and forth, I’m going to talk to them, I’m going to talk to 43 
you, I don’t want to be your go-between. But I feel like I have to be, because it’s clearly 44 

- Page 122 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 30 of 47 
 

acknowledged in their meeting that they haven’t talked to you, and it’s clear you guys haven’t talked 1 
to them. So, I will be that intermediary, and unless you want me representing both towns, please 2 
have those conversations with each other.” 3 
 4 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Stitt for her comments.   5 
 6 
Next to speak was Dawn Cozzalino of 3632 Bosco Road: 7 
 8 
“So, I wanted to talk about safety tonight, in our area. And when I think of government, I think of the 9 
things that they can do, and one of them is security, safety, protections. So, when I looked at the 10 
Hazen group, this is the schematic, of this Force Main, it’s a huge building right, there’s a tractor-11 
trailer pulling in there. Okay, in the document, there was preference made by this Town Council to 12 
only look at north of US 1, so it’s suggesting in the document that no other options were considered, 13 
and you’re going to be destroying people’s land, their livelihoods, their tree canopy, their 14 
environment, when if the approach was taken differently, or different discussions were taking place, 15 
it could be done in an area that does not interfere with that. So, I wanted to say that about safety, 16 
protecting that. I also wanted to say about these documents, you know, when you get a nice 17 
schematic, which I looked at, it looks good on paper but some things in life don’t always work out as 18 
planned. There’s no contingencies in here, there’s no audit, I haven’t seen anything about an audit 19 
that helps me feel confident in the commitments that are being made. So that makes me feel unsafe. 20 
There’s adverse events in life. And one of those was just reported 9/14. So, a million people, 21 
wastewater treatment, there was a dumping into the Haw River, a million people are infected with 22 
their water. Okay what does this mean? There’s no controls over that company that’s dumping, and 23 
you know how it works with the sewer system right, it goes in one end, comes out the other, and 24 
that’s your drinking water. They can’t treat all the chemicals, this is one for Dioxane, can’t treat them 25 
all. So that’s hazardous safety, that’s effecting people’s safety. And I bring this up to, because if 26 
there’s another case, how are you going to control and audit this? And I brought up Durham County 27 
and Chatham County about the dumping and about the water. So, is enough, enough? First to take a 28 
stand. You want the legacy to be that you just looked the other blind eye to environment and risk to 29 
people and just, you know, it’s like a third world country, they have to go down and pick up water in 30 
osmosis systems. They have to bring their own containers, it’s a third-world country. And this is right 31 
in our hometown. In our beautiful North Carolina. And I appreciate your time, but this is getting 32 
serious.” 33 
 34 
 Mayor Gilbert thanked Ms. Cozzalino for her comments. 35 
 36 
With no further sign ups, Mayor Gilbert closed Public Forum and moved the meeting to Public 37 
Hearings. 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
[PUBLIC HEARINGS] 43 
 44 

- Page 123 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 31 of 47 
 

PH1 Annexation No. 764 - Pleasant Plains Elementary School - 30.047 acres 1 

 Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager, gave the following presentation regarding 2 
Annexation No. 764 – Pleasant Plains Elementary School. 3 
 4 
 5 
[SLIDE 3] 6 

 7 
 8 
[SLIDE 4] 9 

 10 
 11 
 12 
 13 
[SLIDE 5] 14 

- Page 124 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 32 of 47 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
[SLIDE 6] 4 

 5 
[SLIDE 7] 6 

 7 
 8 

- Page 125 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 33 of 47 
 

 Mayor Gilbert opened Public Hearing for this item. With no one signed up to speak, he 1 
closed Public Hearing. 2 
 3 
 A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth, seconded by Councilmember 4 
Gray, to approve Annexation No. 764 – Pleasant Plains Elementary School. 5 
 6 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 7 
 8 
PH2 Unified Development Ordinances (UDO) Amendments - September 2023 9 

 Ms. Bunce gave the following presentation regarding the proposed UDO Amendments for 10 
September 2023.  11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
[SLIDE 8] 15 

 16 
[SLIDE 9] 17 

 18 
 19 

- Page 126 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 34 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Zegerman asked why it was considered a special use in the first place.  1 
 Ms. Bunce said communities change over time, and historically this was not seen as a 2 
beneficial use, and now people’s opinions about tattoos and piercings are different.  3 
 Councilmember Gantt said at one point it was not permitted at all, then got changed to 4 
special use, and now it’s changing incrementally again to be more flexible with this use.  5 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said a local business owner had reached out and said it 6 
was very difficult to find other places because of this. 7 
[SLIDE 10] 8 

  9 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if this would mean if they wanted to install a greenway 10 
where one did not exist, that they could go right up against a property line.  11 
 Ms. Bunce said theoretically they could if that was the desire, and often times they need 12 
flexibility with where greenways are installed, because they are kept closer to sewer easements or 13 
riparian buffers, but she is not saying that would necessarily be the standard practice of the town.  14 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked her to give him an example of how this was consistent 15 
with current use. 16 
 Ms. Bunce said generally greenways are not against property lines. She said greenways are 17 
also not planned near residential property lines, because they are often near riparian buffers from 18 
streams. 19 
 Councilmember Zegerman said they did a new greenway update a few months ago, and 20 
there are greenways on that that would go through existing neighborhoods. He said he would be 21 
uncomfortable removing the buffer requirement because it may mean homeowners who bought 22 
property near a conservation area may see a trail right on their property line.  23 
 Councilmember Gantt said the Beaver Creek Greenway that he jogs every day functions 24 
perfectly fine as far as he can tell, but the houses knew that they were buying next to a greenway.  25 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the greenway was already there when the houses came 26 
in. 27 
 Councilmember Gantt said he thinks the greenway had already been planned before the 28 
houses were built.  29 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he was more concerned about houses being there and 30 
then putting a greenway right on people’s property lines without a buffer requirement. 31 

- Page 127 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 35 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Gantt said he was just saying the Beaver Creek Greenway works fine right 1 
up against the property lines. 2 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he is sure this would function fine, but it is the optics of 3 
clearing a piece of land that was previously RCA.  4 
 Ms. Bunce shared that Director Khin said in some cases the buffer requirement may mean 5 
that there is no room for a greenway, so that is something for Council to consider as they talk about 6 
where to put greenways, and keeping them far enough away from residential areas while also 7 
preserving trees and providing additional greenway access.  8 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he would rather work this through a variance process than a 9 
blanket no buffer scenario.  10 
 Ms. Bunce said the variance process is not the route to go for this because there has to be 11 
hardship in the area shown and meet 4 standards required by the state, and justifying a variance in 12 
these situations could be very difficult based on the state standards.  13 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he thinks giving the town the blanket right to do this would 14 
be the wrong way to go. 15 
[SLIDE 11] 16 

  17 
[SLIDE 12] 18 

 19 
 20 

- Page 128 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 36 of 47 
 

[SLIDE 13] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 14] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 15] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 129 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 37 of 47 
 

[SLIDE 16] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 17] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 18] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 130 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 38 of 47 
 

[SLIDE 19] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 20] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 21] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 131 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 39 of 47 
 

 Mayor Gilbert opened up Public Hearing for this item. With no one signed up, he then 1 
closed Public Hearing for this item.  2 
 3 
 Councilmember Gray said it appears they likely to vote per amendment on this, based on 4 
the conversation. 5 
 Councilmember Gantt suggested grouping amendments 1 and 3-6 together, and 6 
discussion amendment 2 separately.  7 
 Councilmember Gray said that would be a good way to resolve it.  8 
 9 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gray, seconded by Councilmember Mahaffey, to 10 
approve Amendments 1, 3, 4, 5, and 6 to the Unified Development Ordinance. 11 
 12 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 13 
 14 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Zegerman to deny Amendment 2 to the Unified 15 
Development Ordinance. 16 
 17 
 Without a second, Councilmember Zegerman’s motion failed. 18 
 19 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gantt, seconded by Councilmember Gray, to 20 
approve Amendment 2 to the Unified Development Ordinance. 21 
 22 
 VOTE: 3-2, Councilmember Mahaffey and Councilmember Zegerman dissenting 23 
 24 
[OLD BUSINESS] 25 
 26 
OB1 Report of Separation Agreement and Release 27 

 Mayor Gilbert said this item was one that he removed from the last meeting’s agenda to 28 
ensure the entire elected body could be present. He added that this was a matter of transparency for 29 
him, as he will be voting tonight based on Senate Bill 9. He thanked Senator Adcock and 30 
Representative Paré for working together to provide this opportunity for him to cast this vote. He 31 
said there a lot of things he wants to say that he cannot say. But he wanted the community to know 32 
that transparency is important to him. He said as they move forward with these kinds of things, they 33 
need to make sure the community understands and sees everything that they do. He reiterated he 34 
wants to make sure that members of the community understand that transparency is important to 35 
him.  36 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Gray, seconded by Mayor Pro Tempore 37 
Killingsworth, to accept the Report of Separation Agreement and Release. 38 
 VOTE: 5-1, Mayor Gilbert dissenting 39 
 40 
CLERK Note: North Carolina General Assembly Session Law No. 2023-112 authorizes the Apex 41 
Town Council and Mayor to make appointments and vote on certain matters regarding the 42 
appointees of the Town Manager, Town Attorney, and Town Clerk for the Town of Apex.  43 

- Page 132 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 40 of 47 
 

 1 
[NEW BUSINESS] 2 
 3 
NB1 Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Possible Amendments - Increase Resource 4 

Conversation Area (RCA) requirement and Solar Panels 5 

 Ms. Bunce gave the following presentation regarding possible UDO Amendments – Increase 6 
Resource Conservation Area (RCA) requirement and Solar Panels. 7 
[SLIDE 22] 8 

 9 
[SLIDE 23] 10 

 11 
 12 
 13 
 14 
 15 
 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 

- Page 133 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 41 of 47 
 

[SLIDE 24] 1 

 2 
[SLIDE 25] 3 

 4 
[SLIDE 26] 5 

 6 
 7 
 8 

- Page 134 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 42 of 47 
 

[SLIDE 27] 1 

 2 
 3 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said this was a discussion, and nothing would be approved 4 
tonight. He said in the past few years, there have been multiple rezonings where solar panel 5 
requirements were proposed and discussed. He said the issue that came up was that there was no 6 
policy in place to specify what they were doing, which led to inconsistent requirements and 7 
inconsistent requests. He said there was no incentive involved, and there was pushback. He said he 8 
has felt for a few years that there was a sense of trying to codify this and put it in a policy, to settle the 9 
question of what happens when you offer these things with solar. He said he proposed raising the 10 
RCA requirement, which they can do by ordinance, and provide incentive for developers to provide 11 
solar panels, which are a desirable feature of their single-family rezonings. He said it would put it at a 12 
level where if a lot of solar panels were provided, it would all work out. He said the levels could be 13 
discussed. He said his proposal would raise the levels required by 20%, and provide up to a 20% 14 
incentive if there was a commitment to provide solar panels on homes. He said he brought it to the 15 
planning committee earlier the year, and that reception was mixed, with at least one person in the 16 
room favorable. He said with the split decision, he would like to hear the thoughts of his colleagues.  17 
 Councilmember Gantt said when he joined Town Council in 2017, he talked to the Town 18 
Attorney about codifying something related to solar panels in rezonings. He said he was told that 19 
could not be done because of state law. He said when he and Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth 20 
joined the Council, this area of Apex had an RCA requirement of 25% and mass grading penalty of 21 
2%. He said this was likely what was the case when the developments came in that effected that 22 
canopy. He said now the RCA is at 30%, and the mass grading penalty is at 5% in this area. He said 23 
he saw Apex had the highest RCA in Wake County. He said his concern was regarding state law. He 24 
said this discussion had been before a supermajority was in the State House, and he has fears that 25 
this could be used as an example of further limiting municipalities in their ability to enforce tree 26 
preservation. He said he imagines a scenario where people talk to legislators and tell them what 27 
Apex is doing, which could potentially stop that and all of that across the state. He said he also didn’t 28 
feel the 1:1 with trees was not appropriate, since trees do a lot more than just CO2 reduction. He 29 
said those reasons were why he did not agree with the amendment at the time.  30 
 Councilmember Zegerman said he appreciates the objective. He said they have been 31 
successful working with developers with solar in some cases, but not in others. He said this is very 32 

- Page 135 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 43 of 47 
 

similar to affordable housing, which they just adopted a policy regarding in order to codify things, 1 
whether than having projects 5 months down the road be asked for different things. He said 2 
something to guide those conversations is a valuable objective. He said it is not a secret that he 3 
wants to see more trees preserved during development, and he likes the idea of raising the RCA 4 
standard. He added he also likes the idea of some give-back if the developer is displaying the right 5 
types of behaviors in terms of other desirable impacts such as solar, EV charging, and affordable 6 
housing. He said they can discuss the numbers, but nothing was being voted on at this point. He said 7 
he was in favor of moving in this direction, but he does want to acknowledge Councilmember 8 
Gantt’s concern about the General Assembly and their recent demonstrations of retaliating against 9 
specific municipalities, or putting things in the state budget such as “you cannot outlaw Styrofoam in 10 
your municipality.” He said there is a risk of that, but eliminating something like this at the state level 11 
would invoke an outcry from the League of Municipalities and every municipality that has a vested 12 
interest in this. He said to his observation, the risk of that currently is very small. He said he isn’t sure 13 
if that should be the sole factor in their decision to not go with it.  14 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she wanted to acknowledge that this is trying to 15 
address the amount of mass grading happening and the amount of bare land that they end up with. 16 
She said she was quite sure she agreed with the solar versus tree canopy issue. She added with the 17 
affordable housing policy, there were things behind it such as a study that done and a plan put in 18 
place. She said there is some data on trees and preserving them, but they don’t quite have that on 19 
solar. She said that doesn’t mean it can’t come in the form of some environmental initiative that they 20 
study in the future. She wondered if an increased penalty for mass grading would be useful to 21 
address this instead of doing 1:1 with solar and RCA. She said potentially a 10 or 15% mass grading 22 
penalty. 23 
 Councilmember Gantt said that would be coming to the Council at some point, in addition 24 
to this.  25 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if that was a split decision as well. 26 
 Councilmember Gantt said yes. He said that it would be a few months away.  27 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he would be wanting to remove the penalty for mass 28 
grading, because he would want to remove mass grading altogether.  29 
 Councilmember Gray said he had been pondering some comments from public forum 30 
about whether they should decouple solar and RCA. He said that may be a solution set around him. 31 
He said it was a laudable goal, and one thing that they should never do as a Council is break the law. 32 
He said there are places they come close to the law, and some cases in which they should be a 33 
vanguard and take a leadership approach on things. He said he draws a hard line at not breaking the 34 
law. He said he does like the idea of increasing RCA, and the tree canopy study is a great data point 35 
on that. He said he would love to get the same data on solar. He said he likes encouraging solar, but 36 
there should be consideration given to decoupling RCA from solar. 37 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said the reason he was talking about them coupled, is because 38 
they have been advised that they cannot make a rule saying that developers have to do a certain 39 
amount of solar, that it has to be incentive-based. He said it’s a fact that solar panels do not work 40 
very well in the shade. He said that is the context around creating an incentive, in order to comply 41 
with the laws and also advance the possibility of more solar.  42 
 Councilmember Gray said he thinks increasing solar is a great goal that they should pursue, 43 
and this was a great first step in looking at creating that incentive, and he isn’t sure if there is 44 

- Page 136 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 44 of 47 
 

something other than RCA that should be the incentive. He appreciates that this is a conversation 1 
that has been started and will be continuing. He said he can understand why this was split in 2 
planning committee, because this was not an easy decision. 3 
 Councilmember Zegerman said there are several things at play here, and they may need to 4 
look at this more holistically. He said if they eliminate mass grading entirely, should it be looked at in 5 
this context, and what should come in in its place. He said there is also the affordable housing policy, 6 
which was not in place when this conversation occurred. He wanted to make sure they were aligned 7 
with that policy with what gets proposed here. He said he is seeing that there is differing views on if 8 
solar vs. RCA is the right mechanism, and if it isn’t solar, then what is. He said this may be a place to 9 
send it back to staff to research and gather further information.  10 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said this is the right conversation to have, but they are 11 
not quite there yet.  12 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked who was going to take the next action on this. 13 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth asked what would happen if this went back to Planning 14 
Committee. 15 
 Councilmember Mahaffey asked if the rest of Council had direction on how they should 16 
proceed, rather than just sending it back as is since it was already split. 17 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she would like to consider other options to 18 
decouple the solar and RCA issue. She added that she was interested in hearing Councilmember 19 
Mahaffey’s mass grading proposal.  20 
 Councilmember Gray said he agrees with that. He said the mass grading proposal was 21 
something out of the box.  22 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if they maintained more RCA, which would aid in 23 
stormwater retention, would there be a potential to decrease other stormwater requirements on 24 
developers.  25 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said to him, the focus was thinking about the goals of a rezoning, 26 
and what dials are available to them in order to achieve them. He said a system of rules where “this 27 
equals this”, is better than ad-hoc negotiations. He said he acknowledges everybody agrees with 28 
that, and said there could be debate about the specifics and the values. He said people in the 29 
development community have said they don’t like it when they have to have these ad-hoc 30 
discussions regarding these things. He said to his point about stormwater, it could potentially be 31 
done as part of it. 32 
 Ms. Bunce said stormwater rules are heavily regulated by the state, and they can’t do 33 
whatever they want, such as how they used to plant around stormwater ponds, but now the state 34 
standards are for it to just be grass.  35 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he thinks Councilmember Zegerman was referring for the 36 
stormwater event that developments would have to cover.  37 
 Councilmember Zegerman said yes, and there are cases where a shorter time period may 38 
suffice as a tradeoff.  39 
 Councilmember Gantt said he’s hearing a desire to have an environmental incentive 40 
document like they now have for affordable housing, and that there could be an issue as sometimes 41 
affordable housing and environmental demands conflict. He asked if they would like to ask the EAB 42 
and Planning Committee to discuss the framework of an environmental incentive policy.  43 

- Page 137 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 45 of 47 
 

 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said yes. She would like them to potentially have a 1 
discussion and make some recommendations, then bring that back to Planning Committee for 2 
discussion.  3 
 Mayor Gilbert asked who was present at the Planning Committee Meetings, and if there are 4 
members of the development community there. 5 
 Ms. Bunce said they have had members of the development community show up, but 6 
generally it is staff and Planning Committee members. She said there was a commitment made at 7 
the last meeting to coordinate with the development community regarding mass grading standards 8 
and get their input before they take anything to Planning Board or Town Council. She said the goal 9 
would be to write an amendment that would reflect the concerns of Council, staff, and the 10 
development community.  11 
 Mayor Gilbert said he has heard from members of the development community, and they 12 
want to be involved in this work, but they want to have some structure around it as well.  13 
 Ms. Bunce said that makes sense, but it some cases a context-based solution is best. She said 14 
predictability was great, but sometimes it wouldn’t lead to the best results. She said it’s about finding 15 
the right balance between the two.  16 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said there are cases outside of the core area of Apex 17 
that the environmental incentives may be a better choice for people, whereas towards the center of 18 
Apex they want to look at more affordable options. She said there is some mix, but these areas 19 
would generally benefit from those priorities the most.  20 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if she was suggesting combining those two types of incentives 21 
into one document.  22 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said not necessarily.  23 
 Councilmember Zegerman said it was worth noting that the area this was proposed for is 24 
outside of the 540 boundary, so closer to Jordan Lake, where there is a deliberate reduction in 25 
density because of the watershed. He said the resource preservation aspect plays really well into 26 
that.  27 
 Councilmember Gantt said the reason the increase from 25% RCA to 30% happened was 28 
because of the desire to protect that part of town. He said this was west of 540. 29 
 Councilmember Mahaffey commented that RCA was reduced more toward the center of 30 
Apex to encourage greater density.  31 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she appreciated them having this conversation and 32 
bringing it to Council, because sometimes more ideas can pop up. 33 
 Councilmember Zegerman asked if the next step was for this to go back to the 34 
Environmental Advisory Board (EAB). 35 
 Ms. Bunce said it had not been reviewed by the Environmental Advisory Board (EAB). 36 
 Councilmember Mahaffey said he thought the idea was for the EAB to review on a more 37 
holistic environmental incentive policy, rather than being specific to this, because of a seeming 38 
desire to separate the issue from solar. He said the idea would be to essentially explore having an 39 
environmental incentive policy.  40 
 Councilmember Gantt asked if the direction was to table this now and go the incentive 41 
route. He said that would slow things down imminently.  42 
 Mayor Pro Tempore Killingsworth said she thinks that’s fair. 43 

- Page 138 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 46 of 47 
 

 Councilmember Mahaffey said what he heard from Council was to not have this exact 1 
proposal but something like it. He said the question would be what else could they do more broadly, 2 
and maybe some good ideas could come out of additional discussion. He said he isn’t opposed to 3 
getting other people’s ideas on how to write the policy.  4 
 5 
[UPDATES BY INTERIM TOWN MANAGER] 6 
 7 
 Interim Town Manager Purvis said the Party in the Peak was a wonderful event despite the 8 
weather. He wanted to recognize a non-exhaustive list of people who helped make the 150th Party in 9 
the Peak such a success: Kerrin Cox, Barbara Belicic, Will Brown, Stacie Galloway, Kendall Hart, 10 
Randall Haskins, Linda Graham Jones, Colleen Merays, Taylor Wray, David Wood, Lisa Raschke, 11 
Marie Neal, and Maren Ward. He said the 150th year party is still going on, and this Sunday there 12 
would be the first ever Love Local event in downtown. He said there are 56 small businesses across 13 
Apex that would be participating. He said last week was a very busy week with Work Sessions and 14 
Committee meeting, and thanked them for their direction. He said last Friday the extended 15 
leadership team of about 70-75 people had a strategic retreat, which included a large list of a year-16 
in-review of what they accomplished. He said they are looking to share that along with the 17 
department’s strategic plan at Council’s Strategic Planning Retreat. He added Saturday he would be 18 
leaving for annual conference, and would be gone from Saturday through Wednesday. He said he 19 
and Demetria would be attending that, but Marty would be in town. He said he would be checking 20 
emails and can step out in an emergency. He said Capital Area Preservation recognized the town in 21 
their awards, for the town’s interactive maps for the communities they had in and around Apex. He 22 
said Will Brown, Jenny Jessen, and Kerrin Cox worked to put this project together, and Capital Area 23 
Preservation was very impressed by the technical expertise of the project, which was all done in-24 
house. He said this is a great way to look at the Past, Present, and Potential of Apex. 25 
 26 
[CLOSED SESSION] 27 
 28 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Mahaffey, seconded by Councilmember Gantt, to 29 
enter into Closed Session for Closed Session items 1 and 2 pursuant to NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6).  30 
 31 
 VOTE: UNANIMOUS (5-0) 32 
 33 
Council entered into closed session at 8:12 p.m.  34 
 35 
CS1 Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor  36 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6): 37 
“To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 38 

appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee or 39 
prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or grievance 40 

by or against an individual public officer or employee.” 41 
 42 

 43 

 44 

- Page 139 -



DRAFT MINUTES 

Page 47 of 47 
 

CS2 Allen Coleman, Town Clerk  1 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6): 2 
“To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 3 

appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee or 4 
prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or grievance 5 

by or against an individual public officer or employee.” 6 
 7 
Council returned to open session at 11:12 p.m.  8 
 9 
[ADJOURNEMENT] 10 
 11 
Mayor Gilbert adjourned the meeting at 11:12 p.m.   12 
 13 

Jacques K. Gilbert 14 
Mayor 15 

 16 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 17 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council  18 
 19 
Submitted for approval by Town Clerk Allen Coleman and approved on ________________________.  20 
 21 

 22 

- Page 140 -



DRAFT MINUTES 
TOWN OF APEX 

SPECIAL TOWN COUNCIL MEETING | APPOINTED PERSONNEL EVALUATIONS 
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 3, 2023 

4:30PM 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 1 
The Apex Town Council met for a Special Meeting on Tuesday, October 3, 2023 at 4:30 pm 2 
in the Executive Conference Room on the 2nd Floor at Apex Town Hall, located at 73 Hunter 3 
Street in Apex, North Carolina. 4 
 5 
The purpose of the Special Town Council meeting was to enter into closed session pursuant 6 
to North Carolina General Statutes NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6) – quoted below:  7 
   8 

NCGS §143-318.11(a)(6): 9 
 “To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, fitness, conditions of 10 
appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an individual public officer or employee 11 
or prospective public officer or employee; or to hear or investigate a complaint, charge, or 12 
grievance by or against an individual public officer or employee.” 13 
 14 
This meeting was open to the public.   15 
 16 
[ATTENDANCE] 17 
 18 
Elected Body  19 
Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert (presiding)  20 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth  21 
Councilmember Brett Gantt  22 
Councilmember Ed Gray  23 
Councilmember Terry Mahaffey  24 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman 25 
Absent: None 26 
 27 
Appointed Staff  28 
Town Attorney Laurie Hohe 29 
Town Clerk Allen Coleman  30 
 31 
 Mayor Gilbert called the meeting to order at 4:33 p.m. and stated the purpose of the 32 
special town council meeting was to enter into closed session pursuant to NCGS § 143-33 
318.11(a)(6) and conducted annual performance reviews for the Town Attorney and the Town 34 
Clerk. 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 

- Page 141 -



DRAFT MINUTES – CONTINUED 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

[CLOSED SESSION] 1 
 2 
 A motion was made by Mayor Pro-Tempore Audra Killingsworth, seconded by 3 
Councilmember Arno Zegerman, to enter into closed session pursuant to NCGS § 143-4 
318.11(a)(3) and NCGS § 143-318.11(a)(6).  5 
  6 

VOTE: 5-0 UNANIMOUS  7 
 8 
Council moved into closed session at 4:33 p.m.  9 
 10 

Mayor Gilbert left the meeting at 5:56 p.m.  11 
 12 
Council returned to open session at 6:28 p.m.  13 

 14 
[ADJOURNMENT] 15 
 16 

Mayor Pro-Tempore Killingsworth announced the meeting adjourned at 6:28 p.m.  17 
 18 

 19 

Jacques K. Gilbert 20 
Mayor  21 

 22 

Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 23 
Town Clerk to the Apex Town Council  24 
 25 
Submitted for consideration and approval by Apex Town Clerk Allen Coleman.  26 
 27 
Minutes approved on the _________________ day of _____________ 20____.  28 
 29 

- Page 142 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Chris Johnson, P.E., MPA, Director   

Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town of Apex and property owner Lennar 

Carolinas, LLC to install a driveway that will encroach 28 square feet (SF) onto the Public Drainage Easement 

and authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to execute on behalf of the Town.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town and property owner Lennar Carolinas, LLC 

(Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0731-67-8709, Book 

of Maps 2023, Page 00349, Lot 10 is also known as 1822 Porch Swing Way, Apex, NC 27502.  Grantee 

wishes to install certain improvements, more particularly described as a driveway that will encroach 28 

square feet (SF) onto the Public Drainage Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 CN6-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10 
 CN6-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement - 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10 

 

- Page 143 -



- Page 144 -



- Page 145 -



- Page 146 -



- Page 147 -



- Page 148 -



- Page 149 -



Bateman Civil Survey Company
Engineers     Surveyors     Planners

2524 Reliance Avenue, Apex, NC 27539   Ph: 919.577.1080  Fax: 919.577.1081

www.batemancivilsurvey.com         info@batemancivilsurvey.com

NCBELS Firm No. C-2378

DEPOT 499 - PHASE 2 - LOTS 7-10
PORCH SWING WAY APEX, NC

WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY

DATE: 2/20/23   DRAWN BY: CPV   CHECKED BY: SPC

REFERENCE: BM2023 PGS. 215-225                BCS# 220469             SCALE: 1" = 20'

B
M

20
23

 P
G

S 
21

5-
22

5

PORCH SWING WAY
57' PUBLIC R/W

SIDEWALK

OPEN SPACE

O
LD

 U
S 1

S 
SA

LE
M

 S
T

SITE

N
C

 540

APEX BARBECUE RD

NOTES:

1. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BY BATEMAN CIVIL SURVEY CO.,
UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEVEN P. CARSON, PLS.

2. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR LAYOUT AND
PERMITTING PURPOSES ONLY.

3. PROPERTY LINES SHOWN WERE TAKEN FROM EXISTING FIELD
EVIDENCE, EXISTING DEEDS AND PLATS OF PUBLIC RECORD,
AND INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE SURVEYOR BY THE
CLIENT.

4. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES AND
ALL BEARINGS ARE NORTH CAROLINA  STATE PLANE
COORDINATE SYSTEM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

5. THIS MAP IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AND SHOULD BE
REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR
COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS.

6. THE BASIS OF NORTH AND ALL EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAYS,
BUFFERS, SETBACKS AND ADJOINERS, ETC. REFERENCED IN

        TITLE BLOCK.

7. NO INVESTIGATION INTO THE EXISTENCE OF JURISDICTIONAL
WETLANDS OR RIPARIAN BUFFERS PERFORMED BY THIS FIRM.

8. SURVEYOR HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR INDEPENDENT
SEARCH FOR EASEMENTS OF RECORD, ENCUMBRANCES,
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, OWNERSHIP TITLE EVIDENCE OR
ANY OTHER FACTS THAT AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE
SEARCH MAY DISCLOSE.

9. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD
ZONE, IT IS LOCATED  IN ZONE "X" AS DEFINED BY F.E.M.A
F.I.R.M MAP NUMBER #3720073100K DATED JULY 19, 2022.

10. CERTAIN PORTIONS OF THE PROPERTY DEPICTED HEREON
HAVE BEEN DETERMINED TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS FOR
DESIGNATION AS A REGULATORY WETLAND AND ARE
DESIGNATED HERE ON AS "WETLANDS". NO SUBSEQUENT FILL
OF ALTERATION OF ANY PROPERTY SO DESIGNATED SHALL BE
PERMITTED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE CURRENT
APPLICABLE WETLANDS RULES ADOPTED BY THE FEDERAL
GOVERNMENT AND/OR THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA.
SUCH RULES MAY REQUIRE SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION
FOR FILL BY THE PROPERTY OWNER TO THE GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCY OR AUTHORITY THEN HAVING JURISDICTION FOR
WETLAND REGULATIONS, WHICH APPLICATION SHALL REPORT
THE NAME OF THE SUBDIVISION AND MAY BE APPROVED OR
DENIED WITHIN THE DISCRETION AND AUTHORITY OF SUCH
AGENCY. THIS RESTRICTION SHALL RUN WITH THE LAND AND
SHALL BE BINDING ON ALL PARTIES AND ALL PERSON HAVING
INTEREST THEREIN AND SHALL INJURE TO THE BENEFIT OF,
AND MAY BE ENFORCED BY, ANY AND ALL GOVERNMENTAL
AGENCIES OR AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION FOR THE
WETLANDS AND REGULATIONS.

11. ZONING IS PUD-CZ, CASE #20CZ01.

12. PROPERTY OWNER:  LENNAR CORPORATION
                                            1100 PERIMITER PARK DRIVE,
                                             SUITE 112
                                             MORRISVILLE, NC 27560

LOT 10 INFORMATION:
PIN: IN REVIEW
ADDRESS: 1822 PORCH SWING WAY
TOTAL LOT AREA = 0.099 AC = 4,328 SF

HOUSE = 1,253 SF
PORCH = 26 SF
SIDEWALK = 39 SF
DRIVEWAY = 396 SF
SCREENED PORCH = 100 SF
AC PAD = 9 SF

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS = 1,823 SF
PERCENT IMPERVIOUS = 42.1 %

7
3,526 SF
0.081 AC

VICINITY MAP
(Not to Scale)

 

5' FRONT
SETBACK

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'P'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

11

SCALE:
1" = 20 ft.

0 10 20

RESOURCE CONSERVATION

PLAY
LAWN 1

C41

CURVE

225.00'

RADIUS

30.12'

LENGTH

S57°52'07"W

CHORD DIRECTION

30.10'

CHORD

CURVE TABLE

8
2,613 SF
0.060 AC

9
2,613 SF
0.060 AC

10
4,328 SF
0.099 AC

20' GARAGE
SETBACK

FFE: 418.17
GFE: 417.17

FFE: 417.17
GFE: 416.17

FFE: 416.17
GFE: 415.17

FFE: 415.17
GFE: 414.17

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'N'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'M'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'N'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

PO

SW

DW

SW SW SW

CO

CO

TBCO

CO

DW DW DW

AC AC AC ACSP SP SP SP

20.0'

5
.0'

10.0'

10.5'
7.4'

10.0'

22.8'

1
7.3'

1
9

.6'

1
9

.6'

1
9

.6'

1
9

.6'

2
2.6' 2

1
.3

'

2
4

.8
'

2
1

.9'

2
0.5

'

16.5'

16.5' 16.5' 16.5'

10' PRIVATE
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH
TOWN OF APEX

PUBLIC DRY UTILITY
EASEMENT

5' TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT

C42 225.00' 26.06' S65°01'17"W 26.04'

C43 225.00' 26.06' S71°39'26"W 26.04'

C44 225.00' 24.28' S78°03'59"W 24.27'

OPEN
SPACE

PO PO PO

E G E G E G E G

3.5' FLARES
(TYP.)

CB

YI

CB

3.0'

5.1'

- Page 150 -

mthobe
Rectangle

mthobe
Rectangle

nmaynard
Polygon

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A

nmaynard
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 

nmaynard
Callout
Driveway will encroach 28 square feet (SF) onto the TOA 20' Public Drainage Easement 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Chris Johnson, P.E., MPA, Director   

Department(s): Transportation & Infrastructure Development  

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve an encroachment agreement between the Town of Apex and property owner Lennar 

Carolinas, LLC to install a driveway that will encroach 18 square feet (SF) onto the Public Drainage Easement 

and authorize the Interim Town Manager, or their designee, to execute on behalf of the Town.  

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The proposed Encroachment Agreement is between the Town and property owner Lennar Carolinas, LLC 

(Grantee) for the property described as a residential lot known as Wake County PIN #0731-67-6604, Book 

of Maps 2023, Page 00349, Lot 18 is also known as 1842 Porch Swing Way, Apex, NC 27502.  Grantee 

wishes to install certain improvements, more particularly described as a driveway that will encroach 18 

square feet (SF) onto the Public Drainage Easement.  

 

 

Attachments 

 CN7-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18 
 CN7-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement - 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18 

 

- Page 151 -



- Page 152 -



- Page 153 -



- Page 154 -



- Page 155 -



- Page 156 -



- Page 157 -



Bateman Civil Survey Company
Engineers     Surveyors     Planners

2524 Reliance Avenue, Apex, NC 27539   Ph: 919.577.1080  Fax: 919.577.1081

www.batemancivilsurvey.com         info@batemancivilsurvey.com

NCBELS Firm No. C-2378

DEPOT 499 - PHASE 2 - LOTS 15-18
PORCH SWING WAY APEX, NC

WHITE OAK TOWNSHIP, WAKE COUNTY

DATE: 3/3/23   DRAWN BY: MJA CHECKED BY: SPC

REFERENCE: BM2023 PGS. 215-225                BCS# 220469             SCALE: 1" = 20'

LENNAR HOMES

BM
20

23
 P

GS 
21

5-
22

5

PORCH SWING WAY
57' PUBLIC R/W

SIDEWALK

OPEN SPACE

O
LD

 U
S 1

S 
SA

LE
M

 S
T

SITE

N
C

 540

APEX BARBECUE RD

NOTES:

1. THIS SURVEY WAS PREPARED BY BATEMAN CIVIL SURVEY CO.,
UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEVEN P. CARSON, PLS.

2. THIS PLAN HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR LAYOUT AND PERMITTING
PURPOSES ONLY.

3. PROPERTY LINES SHOWN WERE TAKEN FROM EXISTING FIELD
EVIDENCE, EXISTING DEEDS AND PLATS OF PUBLIC RECORD, AND
INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE SURVEYOR BY THE CLIENT.

4. ALL DISTANCES ARE HORIZONTAL GROUND DISTANCES AND ALL
BEARINGS ARE NORTH CAROLINA  STATE PLANE COORDINATE
SYSTEM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN.

5. THIS MAP IS NOT FOR RECORDATION AND SHOULD BE REVIEWED
BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY
APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS.

6. THE BASIS OF NORTH AND ALL EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAYS,
BUFFERS, SETBACKS AND ADJOINERS, ETC. REFERENCED IN

        TITLE BLOCK.

7. NO INVESTIGATION INTO THE EXISTENCE OF JURISDICTIONAL
WETLANDS OR RIPARIAN BUFFERS PERFORMED BY THIS FIRM.

8. SURVEYOR HAS MADE NO INVESTIGATION OR INDEPENDENT
SEARCH FOR EASEMENTS OF RECORD, ENCUMBRANCES,
RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS, OWNERSHIP TITLE EVIDENCE OR ANY
OTHER FACTS THAT AN ACCURATE AND CURRENT TITLE SEARCH
MAY DISCLOSE.

9. THIS PROPERTY IS NOT LOCATED IN A SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD
ZONE, IT IS LOCATED  IN ZONE "X" AS DEFINED BY F.E.M.A F.I.R.M
MAP NUMBER #3720073100K DATED JULY 19, 2022.

10. CERTAIN PORTIONS OF THE PROPERTY DEPICTED HEREON BEEN
DETERMINED TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS FOR DESIGNATION AS
A REGULATORY WETLAND AND ARE DESIGNATED HERE ON AS
"WETLANDS". NO SUBSEQUENT FILL OF ALTERATION OF ANY
PROPERTY SO DESIGNATED SHALL BE PERMITTED EXCEPT IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE CURRENT APPLICABLE WETLANDS RULES
ADOPTED BY THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND/OR THE STATE OF
NORTH CAROLINA. SUCH RULES MAY REQUIRE SUBMISSION OF AN
APPLICATION FOR FILL BY THE PROPERTY OWNER TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY OR AUTHORITY THEN HAVING
JURISDICTION FOR WETLAND REGULATIONS, WHICH APPLICATION
SHALL REPORT THE NAME OF THE SUBDIVISION AND MAY BE
APPROVED OR DENIED WITHIN THE DISCRETION AND AUTHORITY
OF SUCH AGENCY. THIS RESTRICTION SHALL RUN WITH THE LAND
AND SHALL BE BINDING ON ALL PARTIES AND ALL PERSON HAVING
INTEREST THEREIN AND SHALL INJURE TO THE BENEFIT OF, AND
MAY BE ENFORCED BY, ANY AND ALL GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES
OR AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION FOR THE WETLANDS AND
REGULATIONS.

11. ZONING IS PUD-CZ, CASE #20CZ01.

11. PROPERTY OWNER:  LENNAR CORPORATION
                                            1100 PERIMITER PARK DRIVE,
                                             SUITE 112
                                             MORRISVILLE, NC 27560

15
3,388 SF
0.078 AC

VICINITY MAP
(Not to Scale)

 

5' FRONT
SETBACK

19

SCALE:
1" = 20 ft.

0 10 20

RESOURCE CONSERVATION

14

LOT 18 INFORMATION:
PIN: IN REVIEW
ADDRESS: 1842 PORCH SWING WAY
TOTAL LOT AREA = 0.086 AC = 3,742 SF

HOUSE = 1,251 SF
PORCH = 26 SF
SIDEWALK = 41 SF
DRIVEWAY = 350 SF
SCREENED PORCH = 100 SF
AC PAD = 9 SF

PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS = 1,777 SF
PERCENT IMPERVIOUS = 47.5 %

16
2,487 SF
0.057 AC

17
2,512 SF
0.058 AC

18
3,742 SF
0.086 AC

20' GARAGE
SETBACK

C39

10' PRIVATE
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

20' TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

10' PRIVATE
DRAINAGE
EASEMENT

VARIABLE WIDTH
HOA RETAINING WALL

MAINTENANCE EASEMENT

5' TOWN OF APEX
PUBLIC UTILITY

EASEMENT

5
0

.0
'

50' JORDAN
LAKE BUFFER

FFE: 407.55
GFE: 405.89

FFE: 406.55
GFE: 404.89

FFE: 405.55
GFE: 403.22

FFE: 404.55
GFE: 402.22

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'P'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'N'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'N'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

PROPOSED
1945 COLEMAN

'M'
SLAB

2 CAR - LEFT

SW

DW

ACSP

PO

ACSPACSPACSP

POPOPO

SWSWSW

DWDWDW

NOTE: HOUSE SITS
ON DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

N53°58'21"E
3.90'

0.4'0.4'

VARIABLE WIDTH
TOWN OF APEX

PUBLIC DRY UTILITY
EASEMENT

2
1

.0'

2
1

.0'

2
1

.0'

2
1 .0

'

8.7'

14.9'

1
6

.6
'

1
5

.6
'

1
3

.7
'

10.0'

10.0'

10.0'

5
.0

'

10.0'

20.0'

16.5'
16.5' 16.5' 16.5'

3.5' FLARES
(TYP.)

ROOF DRAIN
COLLECTOR PIPE

1
5

.1
'

E G E G E G E G

7.7'21.8' 23.5' 23.5' 23.5'
3.0'

P
:\

2
0

2
2

 P
ro

je
ct

s\
2
2

0
4

6
9

 D
EP

O
T
 4

9
9

\d
w

g
\2

2
0

4
6

9
 D

E
P
O

T
 4

9
9
.d

w
g

, 4
/6

/2
0
2

3
 1

:5
8

:1
9
 P

M
, F

o
xi

t 
R

e
ad

e
r 

P
D

F 
P
ri

n
te

r

- Page 158 -

jweatherman
Text Box
NOTE:THIS MAP MAY NOT BE A CERTIFIED SURVEY AND HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED BY A LOCAL GOVERNMENT AGENCY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ANY APPLICABLE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS AND HAS NOT BEEN REVEIWED FOR COMPLIANCE WITH RECORDING REQUIREMENTS FOR PLATS. 

jweatherman
Polygon

jweatherman
Callout
Driveway encroaches 18 SF upon Town of Apex Public Drainage Easement

nmaynard
Text Box
EXHIBIT A



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023  

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Mary Beth Manville, Director 

Department(s): Human Resources 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve updates to the Town’s Paid Parental Leave, Paid Caregiver Leave, and Tuition 

Reimbursement personnel policies. 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

On September 28, 2023, Council’s Personnel Committee unanimously approved the proposed changes to 

the Town’s Paid Parental Leave, Paid Caregiver Leave, and Tuition Reimbursement policies.  Changes to 

these policies are identified in the agenda attachment. 

 

The Personnel Committee of the Council consist of Mayor Jacques K. Gilbert and Mayor Pro-Tempore 

Audra Killingsworth.  

 

Attachments 

 CN8-A1: Human Resources (HR) Policy Updates - Town's Paid Parental Leave, Paid Caregiver Leave, 

and Tuition Reimbursement 

 

 

- Page 159 -



Section 26.  Paid Parental Leave 
 
Employees who have completed their initial probationary period (or successfully completed six 
months of their probationary period for Police and Fire) one year of service with the Town of 
Apex and who qualify for Family Medical Leave are eligible for Paid Parental Leave.  Paid 
parental leave is in addition to an employee’s accrued vacation or sick leave.   Qualifying events 
for parental leave include the following: 
 

 Birth of a child of the employee;  

 The legal placement of a child with the employee for adoption, foster care or 
guardianship; or  

 The placement of a child with the employee for whom the employee permanently 
assumes and discharges parental responsibilities (in loco parentis). 
 

An employee may receive paid parental leave for one qualifying event within a rolling twelve 
month period. The amount of paid parental leave for any one person shall not exceed eight 
weeks in a twelve month period. 
 
If both parents are employed by the Town and have one qualifying event, each parent is eligible 
for the eight weeks of paid parental leave. Each parent can use their allocated eight weeks of 
paid parental leave, either consecutively or intermittently. 
 
Paid parental leave will run concurrently with FMLA and may be used consecutively or 

intermittently in one week increments.  Employees shall provide advance notice to their 

supervisor of paid parental leave dates.  The total amount of paid parental leave shall not 

exceed 320 hours for employees who work a 40-hour week schedule and is pro-rated for 

employees who work more or less than 40 hours per week.   

 

An employee out of work and receiving paid parental leave may not work a secondary job 

during the same hours an employee would normally be at work, or work any off duty 

assignments during the parental leave period.  

 

All Town-provided benefits will continue to be paid by the Town during the time the employee 
is out of work on Parental Leave.  Sick and vacation leave will continue to accrue while the 
employee is in a paid parental leave status.  
 
An employee who wishes to use parental leave shall follow the Town’s procedures for 
requesting FMLA and request paid parental leave at the same time.  FMLA leave and  Paid 
parental leave are is approved through the HR Department, and no individual supervisor may 
deny an employee’s request for FMLA or paid parental leave.  An eEmployees may will be 
required to submit supporting documentation to satisfy eligibility requirements for paid 
parental leave and FMLA.   
 

- Page 160 -



An employee must return to work after the duration of any approved parental/FMLA leave.  An 
employee who does not return and at least provide and work the 2 week notice requirement will 
be required to pay the Town back for any paid parental leave received and their last day physically 
worked will be considered their last day of employment. remain actively employed by the Town 
for a minimum of 6 months after returning from paid parental leave will be required to reimburse 
the Town for one-half the paid parental leave received.  If an employee returns to work after 
parental leave, and is actively employed for greater than 6 months but less than 12 months, the 
employee will be required to reimburse the Town for one-quarter the paid parental leave 
received. The value of the paid parental leave received will be deducted from the employee’s 
final paycheck, including any annual leave or compensatory time paid out in compliance with the 
Fair Labor Standards Act.   The Town Manager or their designee may waive the payback provision 
if medical complications, a special needs birth, or other documented family hardship impacts the 
employee’s ability to return to work.   
 
Section 27.  Paid Caregiver Leave  
 
Employees who have completed their initial probationary period (or successfully completed six 
months of their probationary period for Police and Fire) one year of service with the Town of 
Apex and who qualify for Family Medical Leave are eligible for up to three (3) weeks of Paid 
Caregiver Leave. Paid Caregiver leave is in addition to an employee’s accrued vacation or sick 
leave. Qualifying events for Caregiver leave include the following:  
 

 To care for an immediate family member with a serious health condition. “Immediate 
family member” shall be defined as spouses, children (regardless of age), parents, 
siblings, grandparents, grandchildren (regardless of whether such family members are 
related by blood, adoption or marriage) and guardians.  “Serious health conditions” 
include conditions covered under the Family Medical Leave Act.  Family Medical Leave 
certification documenting the need to provide care will be required. 
 

An employee may receive paid Caregiver leave for all qualifying events within a rolling twelve 
month period. The amount of paid Caregiver leave for any one person shall not exceed three 
weeks in a twelve month period. 
 
Paid Caregiver leave will run concurrently with FMLA and may be used consecutively or 
intermittently in one week increments. Employees shall provide advance notice to their 
supervisor of paid Caregiver leave dates. The total amount of paid Caregiver leave shall not 
exceed 120 hours for employees who work a 40-hour week schedule and is pro-rated for 
employees who work more or less than 40 hours per week. An employee out of work and 
receiving paid Caregiver leave may not work a secondary job during the same hours an 
employee would normally be at work, or work any off duty assignments during the Caregiver 
leave period.  
 

- Page 161 -



All Town-provided benefits will continue to be paid by the Town during the time the employee 
is out of work on Caregiver Leave. Sick and vacation leave will continue to accrue while the 
employee is in a paid Caregiver leave status.  
 
An employee who wishes to use Caregiver leave shall follow the Town’s procedures for 
requesting FMLA and request Paid Caregiver leave at the same time. FMLA leave and pPaid 
Caregiver leave are is approved through the HR Department, and no individual supervisor may 
deny an employee’s request for FMLA or Paid Caregiver leave. An eEmployees may will be 
required to submit supporting documentation to satisfy eligibility requirements for Paid 
Caregiver leave and FMLA.  
 
An employee must return to work after the duration of any approved Caregiver/FMLA leave.  
An employee who does not return and at least provide and work the 2 week notice 
requirement will be required to pay the Town back for any paid caregiver leave received and 
their last day physically worked will be considered their last day of employment.  An employee 
who does not remain actively employed by the Town for a minimum of 6 months after 
returning from paid Caregiver leave will be required to reimburse the Town for one-half the 
paid Caregiver leave received.  If an employee returns to work after Caregiver leave, and is 
actively employed for greater than 6 months but less than 12 months, the employee will be 
required to reimburse the Town for one-quarter the paid Caregiver leave received. The value of 
the paid Caregiver leave received will be deducted from the employee’s final paycheck, 
including any annual leave or compensatory time paid out in compliance with the Fair Labor 
Standards Act. 
 

Section 10.  Tuition Assistance Program 
 
It is the policy of the Town of Apex to provide educational tuition assistance to employees who 
desire to further their education through a degree program in a career field that would benefit 
the Town and increase their ability and knowledge to pursue promotional opportunities. The 
amount of educational assistance provided per employee will be determined annually based on 
the approved budget and maintained in the Human Resources Department. Employees are 
expected to pursue coursework outside regular work hours, on their own time. 

Employees interested in pursuing a degree from an accredited university or college shall submit 
an Educational Assistance Tuition Reimbursement Application form annually for Town approval. 
Priority will be given to employees in a degree program for which approval has been given in 
the prior budget year (assuming the employee continues to meet all policy requirements). 
Town of Apex will reimburse the costs of registration, fees, tuition, student and lab fees, upon 
completion of the course and certification by the institution that final grades meet the 
standards of the Town of a “C” or better up to the maximum allowed for the fiscal year.  For 
classes that are considered “Pass/Fail,” a “Pass” for the course will be considered as satisfactory 
completion.  The first and/or last day of the course must be within the fiscal year for which 
reimbursement is requested Employees receiving additional reimbursements for coursework 
from sources outside the Town may not receive total reimbursements in excess of 100 percent 

- Page 162 -



of the total tuition cost.  Requests for tuition assistance shall be submitted to the Human 
Resources Department Office prior to course registration and are subject to review and 
approval by Human Resources.                                   

All full-time regular employees who have successfully completed the Town’s probationary 
period are eligible to receive this benefit.  Eligible employees must be employed continuously 
for the entire academic session in order to qualify for reimbursement. Employees are expected 
to continue Town employment for one year from the date of the education reimbursement. 
Employees separating from Town employment prior to one year from reimbursement must 
repay the Town the total amount of the reimbursement(s) received for the year calculated by 
counting backwards one year from the last day of work. Tuition reimbursement monies owed 
to the Town may be deducted from any compensation received upon the employee’s 
separation from employment. Employees who have been approved for tuition assistance but 
separate from the Town prior to the ending of the course and/or receiving reimbursement will 
not be eligible for reimbursement. 

Human Resources will notify employees of the application period process for participation in 
the Educational Assistance Tuition Reimbursement Program and will provide the forms for both 
application and reimbursement.   

 

- Page 163 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 12, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Allen Coleman, Town Clerk 

Department(s): Town Clerk’s Office 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Wake County Tax Administration Tax Report for the Town of Apex dated September 

10, 2023. 

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

The Wake County Board of Commissioners, in regular session on October 2, 2023, approved and accepted 

the enclosed tax report for the Town of Apex, dated September 10, 2023 for the period of August 1, 2023 

through August 31, 2023.  

 

 

Attachments 

 CN9-A1: Tax Report for August 2023 

 

- Page 164 -



- Page 165 -



- Page 166 -



- Page 167 -



- Page 168 -



- Page 169 -



- Page 170 -



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: CONSENT AGENDA 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Amanda Bunce, Current Planning Manager 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Motion to approve the Statement(s) of the Apex Town Council pursuant to G.S. 160D-605(a) addressing 

action on the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments (Items 1 & 3-6) and (Item 2) on 

September 26, 2023.  

Approval Recommended? 

The Planning Department recommends approval. 

Item Details 

 

Attachments 

 CN10-A1: Statement of Town Council (Items 1 & 3-6) - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 
Amendments - September 2023 

 CN10-A2: Statement of Town Council (Item 2) - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) 
Amendments - September 2023 

 

- Page 171 -



STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160D-605(a) ADDRESSING ACTION ON 
THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AMENDMENTS OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Planning 
Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), 
of a public hearing on UDO Amendments before the Town Council on the 26th day of September 2023. 
 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 26th day of September 2023. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager presented the Planning Board's vote to recommend approval by a vote of 8-0 
at the public hearing. 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the UDO were allowed to present 
evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned 
away. 
 
 The Town Council on the 26th day of September 2023 by a vote of 5-0 approved the Ordinance for 
UDO Amendments.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that 
the approval of the various UDO Amendments of September 26, 2023 are consistent with the Advance 
Apex: The 2045 Plan and reasonable and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 

 
1. The amendments to UDO Secs. 4.2.2 Use Table and 4.4.5 Supplemental Standards, Commercial 

Uses change the use “Tattoo parlor and body piercing” from a Special Use to a Permitted Use 
where the use is currently allowed except for within the Small Town Character Overlay District in 
order to simply finding a location for such use. The amendments also remove the supplemental 
use standards related to signage for this use since the same standards exist in Sec. 8.7 Signs. 
 

2. The amendments to Secs. 4.4.1 Supplemental Use Standards, Residential Uses and 8.2.8.B 
Screening, Screening Methods change references to dumpster enclosure screening standards 
from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual to the Town of Apex Standard 
Specifications and Standard Details due to the relocation of those standards. Amendments to 
6.1.11.I Notification on Site Plan and Subdivision Plan and Recording of Information change a 
reference from the Town of Apex Design and Development Manual to the Site Plan Final Plat or 
Master Subdivision Final Plat application to reflect the location of the information referenced and 
make other edits to simplify the wording of the standard. 
 

3. The amendments to Sec. 2.3.8.D Variance Permit, Standards change the word “ordinance" to 
“regulation” in accordance with the wording in State law. 

 
4. The amendments to Sec. 4.4.2 Supplemental Standards, Public and Civic Uses remove 

supplemental standards for the uses “Day Care Facility” and “Drop-In or Short-Term Child Care” 
in the Downtown Business (B2) zoning district as those uses are no longer permitted uses in that 
district. 

 
5. The amendments to various sections of the UDO reflect changes to department titles and 

responsibilities due to the division of the former Public Works and Transportation Department 
into the Public Works Department and Transportation & Infrastructure Development 
Department; move floodplain administrator duties to the Water Resources Department; and add 
Water Resources Department to the list of departments included in the Technical Review 

- Page 172 -



Committee. Sections affected include the following: 2.1.7.B, 2.3.7, 6.2.13.A, 7.1.7, 7.2.1, 7.5.13, 
7.5.14, 7.5.16, 8.3.6.G, and 13.16.1. 

 
 
______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 
 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 173 -



 

STATEMENT OF THE APEX TOWN COUNCIL PURSUANT TO G.S. 160D-605(a) ADDRESSING ACTION ON THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE (UDO) AMENDMENTS OF SEPTEMBER 26, 2023 
 
 Pursuant to G.S. §160D-601 and Sec. 2.2.11.E of the Unified Development Ordinance, the Planning 
Director for the Town of Apex, Dianne Khin, caused proper notice to be given (by publication and posting), of 
a public hearing on UDO Amendments before the Town Council on the 26th day of September 2023. 
 
 The Apex Town Council held a public hearing on the 26th day of September 2023. Amanda Bunce, 
Current Planning Manager presented the Planning Board's vote to recommend approval by a vote of 8-0 at 
the public hearing. 
 
 All persons who desired to present information relevant to the UDO were allowed to present 
evidence at the public hearing before the Apex Town Council. No one who wanted to speak was turned away. 
 
 The Town Council on the 26th day of September 2023 by a vote of 3-2 approved the Ordinance for 
UDO Amendments.  
 

The Apex Town Council finds from information and testimony provided at the public hearing that the 
approval of the various UDO Amendments of September 26, 2023 are consistent with the Advance Apex: The 
2045 Plan and reasonable and in the public interest for the following reason(s): 

 
1. The amendment to UDO Sec. 8.2.6.B Landscape Buffers Between Uses removes greenways from the 

list of Class 1 uses resulting in no requirement for buffers along greenways thereby providing more 
flexibility in design. 
 

 
 

______________________________________ 
Jacques K. Gilbert 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
___________________________________ 
Allen Coleman, CMC, NCCCC 
Town Clerk 

 
_________________________ 
Date 

- Page 174 -



Proclamation 
  Fire Prevention Week 2023 

from the Office of the Mayor 

WHEREAS, Fire is a serious public safety concern, and the Town of Apex is 
committed to educating the public about prevention strategies, and implementing 
measures that help mitigate fire risk; and, 

WHEREAS, Home fires killed more than 2,800 people in the United States in 
2021, and fire departments responded to 338,000 home fire calls across the country; 
and, 

 WHEREAS, 40% of home fires start in kitchens, with more than half of reported 
non-fatal home cooking fire injuries occurring from victims attempting to fight the 
fires themselves; and,  

 WHEREAS, Some kitchen fire safety measures residents can take include turning 
pot handles toward the back of the stove, keeping a lid nearby when cooking, 
maintaining a 3 foot “kid free zone” around hot kitchen appliances, setting timers to 
remind themselves of cooking, and planning and practicing a fire escape plan; and, 

WHEREAS, Working smoke alarms cut the risk of dying in home fires in half, 
and Town of Apex first responders are dedicated to reducing the occurrence and 
impact of home fires through prevention and protection education. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby proclaim the week of October 8 - October 14, “Fire Prevention Week” in the 
Town of Apex, and urge all residents to use fire protection measures and remember 
the 2023 fire prevention theme: “Cooking safety starts with YOU. Pay attention to fire 
prevention.” 

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the Town of Apex,  
North Carolina, to be affixed this the 10th day of October 2023 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 

- Page 175 -



Proclamation 
  Down Syndrome Awareness Month 2023 

from the Office of the Mayor 

WHEREAS, Down syndrome, also known as trisomy 21, is a genetic condition 
caused by the presence of all or part of a third copy of chromosome 21, which affects 
how the body and brain develops; and, 

WHEREAS, Down syndrome continues to be the most common chromosomal 
condition, affecting 1 in every 700 babies born in the United States, and is usually 
diagnosed before or at birth; and, 

 WHEREAS, In addition to causing mental & physical challenges and 
developmental delays, about half the children with Down syndrome are born with 
some form of congenital heart defect; and,  

 WHEREAS, World Down Syndrome Day’s 2023 theme is “With Us Not for Us”, 
emphasizing the importance of respecting the self-determination of individuals with 
Down syndrome and involving them in various organizations for all aspects of 
teamwork and decision making; and, 

 WHEREAS, The Town of Apex recognizes the achievements and abilities of 
people with Down syndrome, and seeks to remove any stigmas associated with the 
disability.  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jacques K. Gilbert, Mayor of Apex, North Carolina, do 
hereby proclaim the month of October, 2023 “Down Syndrome Awareness Month” in 
the Town of Apex, and urge all residents to work together to promote awareness of 
Down syndrome and to celebrate the accomplishments of these beautiful individuals 
and their families.  

I hereby set my hand and have caused the Seal of the Town of Apex,  
North Carolina, to be affixed this the 10th day of October 2023 

 

 

Jacques Gilbert, Mayor 



 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jenna Shouse, Senior Long-Range Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion to amend the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map to upgrade 

the designation of Schieffelin Road between US 1 and the future intersection with Apex Peakway from a Minor 

Collector to a Major Collector.   

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendment.  

 

Planning Board will consider this item at their October 9, 2023 meeting. Planning Department staff will 

share the results of the Planning Board meeting with Town Council at their October 10, 2023 meeting.  

 

Item Details 

The purpose of the proposed amendment to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map is to continue 

the Major Collector designation north from the future grade separation at US 1 to the future intersection 

with Apex Peakway. Additionally, the upgrade from a Minor Collector to a Major Collector will allow this 

segment of Schieffelin Road to accommodate bicycle lanes in the future.  

 

Attachments 

• PH1-A1: Staff Report - Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map Amendment - Schieffelin Road 
Upgrade 

• PH2-A2: Planning Board Report to Town Council - Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map 
Amendment - Schieffelin Road Upgrade 

 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

The Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map, Transit Plan map, and Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map 
collectively represent a network of current and future facilities that provide guidance on what is likely to be 
suitable for long term growth, connectivity, recreation, and multimodal travel. The Transportation Plan does 
not provide a schedule for implementation, nor does it set aside funding for improvements. The purpose of the 
public hearing is to consider a proposed amendment to the Transportation Plan along a segment of Schieffelin 
Road, in order to make a decision. 
 
The proposed amendment to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map is to upgrade the designation of 
Schieffelin Road between US 1 and the future intersection with Apex Peakway from a Minor Collector to a 
Major Collector.  A map of the proposed amendment to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map is 
displayed in Figure 1 below. 

 
Figure 1. Proposed Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map Amendment 

The purpose of the proposed amendment to the Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan map is to continue the 
Major Collector designation north from the future grade separation at US 1 to the future intersection with Apex 
Peakway. A Major Collector designation is appropriate to consider in this location as Schieffelin Road would 
provide one of the limited crossing opportunities from a thoroughfare (Apex Peakway) over US 1. Additionally, 
the upgrade from a Minor Collector to a Major Collector will allow this segment of Schieffelin Road to 
accommodate bicycle lanes in the future. A proposed amendment to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan 
map to add proposed bicycle lanes along this segment of Schieffelin Road is included in the following Town 
Council agenda item on October 10, 2023.   
 

- Page 177 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Staff Recommendation: 
Planning Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendment.  
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
Planning Board will consider this item at their October 9, 2023 meeting. Planning Department staff will share 
the results of the Planning Board meeting with Town Council at their October 10, 2023 meeting.  
 

- Page 178 -





 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 
 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: PUBLIC HEARING 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Jenna Shouse, Senior Long-Range Planner 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Public hearing and possible motion to amend the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map based on a review 

of existing and future Major Collector streets for the addition of proposed bicycle lanes and shared lane 

markings.  

Approval Recommended? 

Planning Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments.  

 

Planning Board will consider this item at their October 9, 2023 meeting. Planning Department staff will 

share the results of the Planning Board meeting with Town Council at their October 10, 2023 meeting.  

 

Item Details 

The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map is to plan for 

future on-road bicycle facilities along existing and future streets designated as Major Collector on the 

Town’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan. All existing and future Major Collector streets have been 

reviewed for the possible addition of bicycle lanes or shared lane markings. The addition of these bicycle 

facilities will enhance multi-modal options throughout Town and expand the bicycle network.  

 

Attachments 

• PH2-A1: Staff Report - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on 
Major Collectors 

• PH2-A2: Planning Board Report to Town Council - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map 
Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on Major Collectors 

 



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

The Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map represents a network of current and future facilities that provide 
guidance on what is likely to be suitable for long term growth, connectivity, and recreation. The Plan does not 
require a schedule for implementation nor does it set aside funding for improvements. Instead, it helps the 
Town establish long term priorities and identify requirements for new development. The Plan was last 
amended on August 22, 2023. The purpose of the public hearing is to consider the facts in order to make a 
decision.  
 
The proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan map are based on a review of all existing 
and future streets designated as Major Collector on the Town’s Comprehensive Transportation Plan for the 
possible addition of bicycle lanes and shared lane markings. Table 1 lists all existing and future Major Collector 
streets and proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map. The Map ID numbers in 
Table 1 correspond with the numbers displayed on the exhibit of proposed amendments to the Bicycle and 
Pedestrian System Plan Map available online at: 
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/44735/BikeLanes_MajorCollectors_Amendment_36x24v4?bid
Id=  
 
The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map is to plan for future 
on-road bicycle facilities along existing and future streets designated as Major Collector on the Town’s 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan. All existing and future Major Collector streets have been reviewed for the 
possible addition of bicycle lanes or shared lane markings. The current Major Collector standard specification 
can accommodate bicycle lanes, consistent with American Association of Highway and Transportation Officials 
(AASHTO) guidelines, without additional widening or right of way. Therefore, the proposed amendments do not 
add widening or new location facilities to the Transportation Plan; rather, they guide how existing and future 
roadways already on the Transportation Plan would be striped and signed to accommodate bicycles. The review 
of Major Collectors for bicycle lanes included the following considerations. 

• Roadway status 

• Roadway width 

• Presence of curb and gutter or shoulder and ditch section 

• Presence of striping per the current Major Collector standard 

• Planned or existing side path 

• Parallel planned or existing bicycle facilities 

• Connections to other planned bicycle facilities  

• Bicycle or pedestrian crash 

• Presence of on-street parking 

• Land uses  

• Proposed and approved development plans 

• Proposed and approved rezoning cases 
 

The addition of these bicycle facilities will enhance multi-modal options throughout Town and expand the 
bicycle network.  
 

- Page 180 -

https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/44735/BikeLanes_MajorCollectors_Amendment_36x24v4?bidId
https://www.apexnc.org/DocumentCenter/View/44735/BikeLanes_MajorCollectors_Amendment_36x24v4?bidId


STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Table 1. Summary of Amendments for each Major Collector Street 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

1 Lawson Lane US 64 Olive Chapel 
Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Development to construct to the 
current Major Collector standard. 
Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Olive Chapel Road. 

2 Lovage Drive Lawson 
Lane 

Transit Trail Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Bicycle lanes recommended on 
the intersecting street to the 
west, Lawson Lane. Side path 
proposed along both sides of the 
intersecting street to the east, 
Transit Trail. 

3 Transit Trail US 64 Olive Chapel 
Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Olive Chapel Road and 
proposed greenway in Legacy 
PUD. 

4 Chanticlair Drive 
extension 

Core Banks 
Street 

Rothwood 
Way 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to Sweetwater and Core 
Banks Street, an existing Major 
Collector. 

5 Core Banks Street Richardson 
Road 

Chanticlair 
Drive 
extension 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Constructed to the current Major 
Collector standard. Connects to 
Sweetwater, a large-scale mixed-
use development. 

6 Hasse Avenue Richardson 
Road 

Olive Chapel 
Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Existing portion constructed to 
the current Major Collector 
standard. Multiple developments 
are constructing the roadway to 
the current Major Collector 
standard. Hasse Avenue connects 
to Sweetwater and to planned 
bicycle lanes on Olive Chapel 
Road. 

7 Kinship Lane  Richardson 
Road 

Hammocks 
Beach Trail 
extension 

Add Shared 
Lanes 

Existing portion cannot 
accommodate bicycle lanes. 
There is a parallel planned 
greenway.  

8 Milano Avenue Richardson 
Road 

Evans Road Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Constructed to the current Major 
Collector standard. Connects to 
existing side path along the west 
side of Evans Road.  

- Page 181 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

9 Horton Ridge 
Boulevard 

Horton 
Road 

Richardson 
Road 
extension 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Development underway either 
has constructed or will construct 
the roadway to the current Major 
Collector standard. Connects to 
Richardson Road side path to the 
east. Connects to recommended 
bicycle lanes on Horton Road. 

10 Horton Road Old US 1 Horton 
Ridge 
Boulevard 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Narrower than current Major 
Collector standard. When 
upgraded in the future, there is 
an opportunity to provide bicycle 
lanes that connect to the 
proposed bicycle lanes along Old 
US 1 and Horton Ridge Boulevard. 

11 Bosco Road 
collector 

New Hill 
Holleman 
Road 

Richardson 
Road 
extension 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed paved 
shoulder and proposed side path 
along New Hill Holleman Road. 
Connects to proposed side path 
along Richardson Road extension. 

12 Future collector 
street 

Friendship 
Road 

Pleasant 
Plains Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Pleasant Plains Road and 
Friendship Road. 

13 Pleasant Plains Road Old US 1 US 1 No Change Narrower than current Major 
Collector standard. Existing curb 
and gutter roadway will not 
accommodate two travel lanes 
and bicycle lanes.  

14 Boyette Street Old US 1 Kelly Road Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Constructed wider than current 
Major Collector Standard. 
Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Kelly Road and Old US 1. 

15 Woodall Crest Drive 
and Aspen River 
Lane 

Apex 
Barbecue 
Road 

Future 
Aspen River 
Lane 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

The Major Collector Portion of 
Woodall Crest Drive (Apex 
Barbecue Road to Future Aspen 
River Lane) was constructed to 
the current Major Collector 
standard. Development to 
construct side path along one side 
of Aspen River Lane. Street 

- Page 182 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

narrows when it transitions from 
a Major Collector to a residential 
street at the future intersection 
with Aspen River Lane.  

16 Aspen River Lane 
extension 

Woodall 
Crest Drive  

Woodall 
Crest Drive 
extension 

Add Shared 
Lanes 

Development to construct the 
roadway narrower than the 
current Major Collector standard 
due to on-street parking and 
median plans. Shared lane 
markings proposed to complete 
bicycle route between two 
segments of Woodall Crest Drive.  

17 Woodall Crest Drive 
extension 

Poe Farm 
Avenue 

Future 
Aspen River 
Lane 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Under construction to current 
Major Collector standard. 
Connects to Poe Farm Ave, Major 
Collector with bicycle lanes 
recommended.  

18 Poe Farm Avenue Woodall 
Crest Drive 

S Salem 
Street 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Roadway width varies. There is 
room for bicycle lanes. Connects 
to recommended bicycle lanes on 
Woodall Crest Dr and planned 
bicycle lanes on S Salem Street.  

19 Apex Peakway Loop Apex 
Peakway 

S Salem 
Street 

No Change Apex Peakway SW plans have 
been approved and include side 
path along both sides. Bicycle 
lanes are not proposed along 
Apex Peakway.  

20 James Street Apex 
Peakway 

Tingen Road Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Constructed to current Major 
Collector standard, with the 
exception of residential 
driveways. Connects to 
recommended bicycle lanes on 
Future CJS Apex 
Assemblage/Cuthrell Loop Road. 

21 Future CJS Apex 
Assemblage/Cuthrell 
Loop Road 

Apex 
Peakway 

Veridea 
Parkway 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed side path 
along Apex Peakway and 
proposed bicycle lanes on Veridea 
Parkway. 

22 Widger Lane  Future CJS 
Apex 
Assemblag
e/Cuthrell 
Loop Road 

Tingen Road Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Existing section constructed to 
current Major Collector standard. 
Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Tingen Road. Connects 
to proposed Salem Village 
Greenway.  

- Page 183 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

23 Future collector 
street 

Tingen 
Road 

Perry Road Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Tingen Road. 

24 Perry Road Apex 
Peakway 

E Williams 
Street 

Add Shared 
Lanes 

Roadway width varies. Not 
enough pavement width for two 
travel lanes and bike lanes along 
the full corridor. There is existing 
curb and gutter along most of the 
corridor. Shared lane markings 
recommended to provide a 
bicycle route between NC 55 and 
Apex Peakway. 

25 Perry Road/Perry 
Road extension* 

Apex 
Peakway 

Prince Dead 
End Road 

Add Side 
Path 

Veridea-East Village Non-
Residential 2A, 3, 4, 5 cannot 
accommodate bicycle lanes along 
Forest Light Way (Perry Road 
extension). Shared lane markings 
are not recommended along the 
Thoroughfare section of Perry 
Road, north of US 1. Side path is 
proposed along the west side, 
north of US 1, to provide a 
connection to the proposed Big 
Branch Greenway and proposed 
greenway along Prince Dead End 
Road. 

26 Jupiter Creek Drive Perry Road 
extension 

Atlas Lane Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Development to construct a short 
segment to the current Major 
Collector Standard with bicycle 
lanes.  

27 Future collector 
street 

Veridea 
Parkway 

Perry Road 
extension 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes along Veridea Parkway and 
recommended bicycle lanes along 
Jupiter Creek Drive. 

28 Technology Drive 
extension & 
realignment 

Jessie 
Drive 
extension 

Perry Road 
extension 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to future Jessie Drive 
and Veridea Parkway. Side path 
proposed along both sides of 
Jessie Drive. Bicycle lanes 
proposed along both sides of 
Veridea Parkway.  

29 Atlas Lane Perry Road 
extension 

NC 55 No Change Proposed development includes 
on-street parking. Proposed 
typical sections cannot 
accommodate bicycle lanes along 
the entire corridor. 

- Page 184 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

30 Adesso Boulevard Atlas Lane NC 55 Add Shared 
Lanes 

Proposed development includes 
on-street parking. A section of 
this corridor is shown as a future 
local bus route. Shared lane 
markings proposed to provide 
bicycle route between NC 55 and 
Atlas Lane. 

31 Pisgah Forest Drive Forest 
Gate Path 

Jessie Drive 
extension 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to recommended 
bicycle lanes on Forest Gate Path 
and proposed side path along 
Jessie Drive.  

32 Forest Gate Path Pisgah 
Forest 
Drive 

NC 55 Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Typical section in development 
plans includes bicycle lanes. 
Connects to proposed side path 
along NC 55 and recommended 
bicycle lanes on Pisgah Forest 
Drive. 

33 Dinsorette Lane 
extension 

Jessie 
Drive 
extension 

Gladsong 
Drive 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to side path along 
future Jessie Drive and 
recommended bicycle lanes on 
future Gladsong Drive. 

34 Gladsong Drive NC 55 Smith Road Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Planned Unit Development 
includes this as a Major Collector. 
Development to construct a 
section to current Major Collector 
standard. 

35 Colby Chase Drive 
extension 

E Williams 
Street 

Colby Chase 
Drive 

No Change Existing portion is a Minor 
Collector that cannot fit bicycle 
lanes. 

36 Feltonville Road Colby 
Chase 
Drive 
extension 

Reunion 
Creek 
Parkway 

No Change Roadway may need to be 
narrowed in the future to 
accommodate development to 
the west. Parallel side path 
planned along west side of E 
Williams Street. 

37 Reunion Creek 
Parkway extension 

Reunion 
Creek 
Parkway 

Smith Road 
extension 

No Change Existing portion is a Minor 
Collector that cannot fit bicycle 
lanes. Connects to Smith Road, 
which does not include proposed 
bicycle lanes. 

38 Thriftwood Drive Thriftwood 
Drive 
extension 

Stephenson 
Road 

No Change Development to construct 
roadway narrower than current 
Major Collector standard.  

- Page 185 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

39 Horton Park Drive Jessie 
Drive 
extension 

Gladsong 
Drive 

No Change Development to construct 
roadway narrower than current 
Major Collector standard. 
Planned parallel greenway 
facility. 

40 Production 
Drive/extension 

Reliance 
Avenue  

Jessie Drive 
extension 

No Change Existing portion narrower than 
current Major Collector standard. 
Existing roadway is in an 
industrial area with on-street 
parking. Middle Creek Greenway 
Feasibility study underway – 
possible future changes. 

41 Pristine Water Drive 
extension 

Production 
Drive 
extension 

Ten Ten 
Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to proposed bicycle 
lanes on Ten Ten Road. Future 
Land Use is Park, Public or 
Private. Middle Creek Greenway 
Feasibility Study underway– 
possible future changes. 

42 Reliance Avenue Production 
Drive 

Ten Ten 
Road 

No Change Constructed to current Major 
Collector standard. Located in an 
industrial area with substantial 
on-street parking. Middle Creek 
Greenway Feasibility Study 
underway– possible future 
changes. 

43 Lufkin Road NC 55 Ten Ten 
Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

There are development and 
redevelopment opportunities 
along the roadway. Curb has not 
been set along entire roadway. 
Provides a bicycle route 
alternative to US 1 between Ten 
Ten Road and E Williams Street.  

44 Midtown Connector 
(bridge over US 1) 

Lufkin 
Road 

Schieffelin 
Road 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Connects to recommended 
bicycle lanes on Lufkin Road. It 
would be beneficial to include 
bicycle lanes when the bridge is 
constructed as it is unlikely that 
the bridge would be widened in 
the future to accommodate 
bicycle lanes.  

45 Schieffelin Road** Future 
bridge over 
US 1 

Apex 
Peakway 

Add Bicycle 
Lanes 

Proposal to upgrade from Minor 
Collector to Major Collector. Curb 
and gutter have only been set for 
a section on the east side. 

- Page 186 -



STAFF REPORT 
Transportation Plan Amendments 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting  
 

 

Prepared by: Jenna Shouse, Senior Long Range Planner 

Map 
ID 

Street name From To 
Proposed 

Amendment 
Reason 

(Midtown 
Connector) 

Connects to recommended 
bicycle lanes on grade separation 
at US 1 (Midtown Connector). 

46 Energy Drive Schieffelin 
Road 

Markham 
Drive 

No Change Constructed narrower than 
current Major Collector Standard. 
Land uses are not supportive of 
bicycle lanes.  

47 Old Raleigh Road Lake Pine 
Drive 

Kingsway 
Drive (Town 
of Cary 
Boundary) 

Maintain 
Proposed 
Bicycle Lanes 

Proposed bicycle lanes included 
on adopted plan.  

48 Pine Plaza Drive Laura 
Duncan 
Road 

Lake Pine 
Drive 

No Change Constructed narrower than 
current Major Collector standard. 
Partially complete parallel 
greenway connection. Plans for 
bus stops along roadway. 

*Perry Road recommendation includes side path along the Thoroughfare section. 
**A proposed amendment to the Transportation Plan would upgrade Schieffelin Rd to a Major Collector. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
Planning Department staff recommend approval of the proposed amendments. This recommendation is 
supported by staff representing Transportation & Infrastructure Development; Parks, Recreation, and Cultural 
Resources; and Police.   
 
Planning Board Recommendation: 
Planning Board will consider this item at their October 9, 2023 meeting. Planning Department staff will share 
the results of the Planning Board meeting with Town Council at their October 10, 2023 meeting.  
 

- Page 187 -



HOLLAN
DSC

HAPEL
RD

SEMAYNARDRD

NEW
HILLHOLLEMAN

RD

SECARYPKW
Y

HOLLANDRD

SHEARONHARRISRD

KILDAIRE FARM RD

EWILLIAMSST

N SA
LEM
 ST

NEW
HILLOLIVECHAPELRD

NC
 55
 HW
Y

HO
LLY
SPR
ING
SRD

ROBERTSRD

TIN
GE
NR
D

HOLT RD

OLDJENKSRD
SUNSET LAKERD

JENK
SRD

JAMES ST

RE
GE
NC
YP
KW
Y

CENTER ST

S SALEM ST

GREEN
LEVELCHURCH

RD

HOR
TO
NR

IDGEBLV
D

SM
ITH
 RD

PINEPLAZADR

SC
HIE
FFE
LIN
RD

OLD
APEX

RD

KELLYRD

HORTONRD

OLD
HOLLYSPRINGSAPEXRD

RIC
HA
RD
SO
N
RD

STE
PH
EN
SO
N
RD

TRYO
NRD

SALE
MCHUR

CHRD

OLDRALEIGHRD

PENNYRD

APEXP
EAKWAY

APEXPEAKWAY

DAVISDR

HUNTERST

SW CARYPK
WY

MORRISACRESRD

PIERCEOLIVERD

MILAN
OAVE

EDE
RL
EE
DR

LOCHMEREDR

TODYGOOD
WINRD

EV
AN
SR
D

TENTENRD

WOO
DSC

REEK
RD

BEAVERCREEKCOMMONSD R

BEAVERCREEKRD

CAST
LEBE
RRY
RD

KILDAIREFARMRD

GREENL
EVELWEST R

D

N 
MA
IN 
ST

POOLERDE

BARKERRD

W
HITEOAKCHURC H

R D

HUM
IEOLI

VERD

LOCHMEREDRW

HOLLYSP
RINGSNEW HILLRD

BEAVERDAMRD

LUTHERR
D

FR
IEN
DS
HIP
RD

NEW HILL RD

WIMBERLYRD

VE
RID
EA
PK
W
Y

HORTO
NS PO

ND RD

EDINBURGHSOUT HD
R

ARTHURPIERCERD

LA
KEP

INEDR

GB
AL
FO
RD
HW
Y

LAU
RA
DU
NC
AN
RD

APEXBA
RBECUERD

W WILLIAMS ST

OLIVE
CHAPE

LRD

OLD
US1

HWY

Clark Branch Greenway

Camp Bran ch Greenway

Big Branch Greenway

Beaver Creek Greenway

Be a ver Creek Greenway

Am
eric

an Tobacco
Tra

il

Deer
Cr

eek
Green

way

Wh
it e

Oa
k C

ree
k Green

way

Sutton Place Greenway

South White Oak Cre ek Greenway

Shepherds Vineyard

Regency/Swift Creek Greenway Connector

Re edy Bra nch Greenway
Middl e Cree k Gr eenway

Little B eaver Creek Greenway

Little Beaver Cre ek Gree n wa
y

Had
do

nH
all Greenway

Í72
Í72

Í72

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í71

Í75

Í75

Í75

Í75

Í75

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

¾Ã¾Ã¯̄̄̄o
1

"")540

")55

")55

£¤1

£¤64

NC 2 - MOUNTAINS TO SEA

NC
 5 

- C
AP

E F
EA

R R
UN

US 1 - CAROLINA CONNECTION

Com m unity
Center &

Senior Center
Halle
Cultural
Arts Center

OP9

OP36

OP16

OP 6

OP15

OP18

OP4

OP43

OP35

OP22

OP 44

OP46

OP19

OP25

OP14

OP40

OP7

OP29

OP37

OP32

OP8

OP30

OP5

OP 45

OP38

OP 33
OP2

OP34

OP31

OP47

OP11

OP13

OP48

OP17

OP10

OP28

OP 1

OP27

OP42

OP23

OP39

OP20

OP26

OP24

OP12

OP41

OP3

OP21

Apex
Com m unity
Park

Clairm ont
Park

Sue Helton
Mem orial Park

West
Street
Park

Kelly
Glen Park Apex Jayc ee Park

Kelly
Road
Park C.C. Jones

Mem orial Park
(Private)

Apex
Nature
Park

Seag rove Farm
Neig h b orh ood Park

Hunter
Street
Park

Salem
Pond
Park

Pleasant Park

Olive
Farm  Park
(Future)

Future Park

St. Mary
Mag dalene
Sc h ool

Olive Ch apel
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Apex
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Apex Middle
Sc h ool

Salem
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Apex Hig h
Sc h ool

Bauc om
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Salem
Middle
Sc h ool

Lufkin Road
Middle Sc h ool

T h ales
Ac adem y K-5

Laurel Park
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Penny Road
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Sc otts Ridg e
Elem entary
Sc h ool

Apex Friendsh ip
Hig h  Sc h ool

Apex Friendsh ip
Middle Sc h ool

Apex Friendsh ip
Elem entary Sc h ool

Green Level
Hig h  Sc h ool

T h ales
Ac adem y

Junior Hig h /Hig h

Peak Ch arter
Ac adem y

Felton Grove
Hig h  Sc h ool
(Future)

Pleasant
Plains ES
(Future)(WCPSS

Future
Sc h ool)

Triang le Math
and Sc ienc e
Ac adem y K-8

Triang le Math  and
Sc ienc e Hig h  Sc h ool

Woods
Creek

Elem entary Sc h ool

")751

C
HA
T H
AM

  
 C
O
UN
T Y

C
HA
T H
AM

  
 C
O
UN
T Y

NEW HILL

HOLLY
SPRINGS

CARY

B. Everett Jordan Lake

Æ_ Existing  Trailh ead—Am eric an Tob ac c o Trail
Æ_ Future Trailh ead—Am eric an Tob ac c o Trail

89:q Proposed Grade-Separated Bike/Ped Crossing
Natural Area
Apex Corporate Lim its
Apex Extraterritorial Jurisdic tion

Future Road
Existing  Sidewalk

! ! ! ! ! Existing  Nature Trail
Existing Private Greenway
Proposed Private Greenway

Existing Public Greenway
Proposed Public Greenway
Existing Street-Side Greenway
Proposed Street-Side Greenway
Existing Side Path
Proposed Side Path

Existing  Bic yc le Lane
Proposed Bic yc le Lane
Proposed Paved Sh oulder
Proposed Sh ared Lane Marking s

Apex Lake

0 1 2 3Miles
¾¾½ ¾¾½ ¾¾½ ¾¾½½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½ ½0 5 10 15 Minutes Biking

(12 MPH)
Prepared b y
Town of Apex
Planning  Departm ent

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN
SYSTEM PLAN MAP

Major Collector Street
Bike Lanes

Proposed Amendments

- Page 188 -





 | Agenda Item | cover sheet 

 for consideration by the Apex Town Council 

 

 Item Type: NEW BUSINESS 

 Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 

Item Details 

Presenter(s): Dianne Khin, Director 

Department(s): Planning 

Requested Motion 

Possible motion to approve eligibility changes to the Façade Grant Program. 

 

Approval Recommended? 

Yes 

Item Details 

Given that the budgeted funds for the Façade Grant Program have not been fully utilized in the last seven 

years in the Central Business District, Planning staff propose expanding the Façade Grant Program eligibility 

to the Downtown Festival District and presented this idea to the Planning Committee on September 7, 2023. 

The Planning Committee supports the expansion request to the Downtown Festival District.  

 

Additionally, staff propose the following amendments to the Façade Grant Program application:  

• Clarify that only non-residential tenants and property owners are eligible for the grant.  

• Clarify that repair, replacement, or new ADA accessible entrances (e.g. ramps) are eligible for the grant.  

 

Attachments 

 NB1-A1: Staff Report – Façade Grant Program – Proposed Eligibility Changes 

 NB1-A2: Façade Grant Program Application – Proposed Eligibility Changes 
 

 

- Page 189 -



STAFF REPORT 
Façade Grant Program – Proposed Eligibility Changes 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

      
Page 1 of 3 

The purpose of the Town of Apex’s Façade Grant Program is to provide incentive funds in the 
form of a matching grant to tenants/property owners to increase rehabilitation activity and 
encourage appropriate, attractive improvements to downtown buildings, thereby increasing 
their longevity and raising their property values. 
 
Currently, properties must be located within the Central Business District in order to be eligible 
for the matching grant. Planning staff have received numerous requests from business owners 
downtown, but outside of the Central Business District, for Façade Grants.  
 
The current year budget for the Façade Grant Program is $20,000. The following amounts have 
been put toward façade grants in the last 7 years: 
 
FY 2016-17 =$1000.00 
FY 2017-18 = $1,644.16 
FY 2018-19 = $2571.43 
FY 2019-20 = $2,144.20  
FY 2020-21 = $9,213.26  
FY 2021-22 = $7,506.62  
FY 2022-23 = $4,365.78  
 
Given that the budgeted funds have not been fully utilized in the last seven years, Planning staff 
propose expanding the Façade Grant Program eligibility to the Downtown Festival District and 
presented this idea to the Planning Committee on September 7, 2023. The Planning Committee 
supports the expansion request to the Downtown Festival District. Maps of the Central Business 
District and the Downtown Festival District are included below for comparison of the two areas. 
 
In reviewing the Façade Grant Program Application, staff propose the following amendments in 
addition to the expansion to the Downtown Festival District: 
 

• Clarify that only non-residential tenants and property owners are eligible for the grant. 
• Clarify that repair, replacement, or new ADA accessible entrances (e.g. ramps) are 

eligible for the grant. 
 
The revised Façade Grant Application is attached for your information. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning staff recommend approval of the proposed eligibility changes to the Façade Grant 
Program. 
 
 
  

- Page 190 -



STAFF REPORT 
Façade Grant Program – Proposed Eligibility Changes 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

      
Page 2 of 3 

Central Business District (currently eligible area) 
  

 
 
  

- Page 191 -



STAFF REPORT 
Façade Grant Program – Proposed Eligibility Changes 

October 10, 2023 Town Council Meeting 
 

 

      
Page 3 of 3 

Downtown Festival District (proposed expanded boundary) 
 

 

- Page 192 -



FAÇADE GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
 

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s 
website or disclosed to third parties. 

 

  Last Updated: October 10, 2023 

A Small Town Character Overlay District Exempt Site Plan application is required to be submitted 
concurrently with the Façade Grant application. The approval of the Small Town Character Overlay District 
Exempt Site Plan application shall occur concurrently with the Façade Grant approval. 

 

 
For more information on the Façade Grant Program, please contact the Apex Planning Department at 
919-249-3426. 

1.    The Façade Grant Program is designed to provide incentive funds to non-residential 
tenants/property owners to increase rehabilitation activity in the Downtown Festival District as 
shown on the attached Downtown Festival District map and described in Apex’s Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 12.2. The grant can provide up to 50% of the cost of the 
exterior rehabilitation based on the following:  

a. Tier 1 - up to a maximum of $2,000.00 per façade for paint and awnings, or 50% of the cost, 
whichever is less.  

b. Tier 2 – up to a maximum of $5,000.00 per façade for structural improvements including 
window replacement, brick repair and repointing, door replacement, ADA accessible 
entrance improvements, and similar structural repairs or replacement, or 50% of the cost, 
whichever is less.  

c. Applicants can submit for one Tier 1 grant and one Tier 2 grant within the same fiscal year; 
if both are granted, no one property can receive more than $7,000 in one year.  

d. No more than $10,000 can be issued to any one property within any 36 month period.  
e. Total grants issued per fiscal year shall not exceed the amount budgeted for that given year.  

2. Application requirements:  
a. Completed application form signed by the property owner. 
b. Photos of the structure showing the current condition.  
c. Paint samples or fabric swatches for Tier 1 requests.  
d. Detailed drawings and details of features including awnings, windows, doors, or other 

improvements.  
e. Cost estimates from a qualified professional (e.g. Licensed contractor, mason, or 

professional painter or awning company). Cost estimates must be detailed in a line by line 
format.  

3. Applications must be approved before work begins or no funds will be disbursed. 

4. Planning Department staff have been granted authority to administer the Façade Grant Program 
process by Town Council. Town Council allocates the funding for the grant through the yearly 
budgeting process.  

5. Renovations must be completed within four (4) months of application approval for Tier 1 grants and 
18 months for Tier 2 grants. In the Planning Director or designee’s sole discretion, a one-time 
request for an extension of two to twelve months may be approved upon satisfactory explanation 
of the delay. 

6. Grant is to be calculated and used for exterior façades only.  

7. Grant amount shall be paid only when construction is completed and receipt(s) are submitted to 
the Planning Department. If the actual costs are less than the cost estimates, the maximum amount 

- Page 193 -



FAÇADE GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
 

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s 
website or disclosed to third parties. 

 

  Last Updated: October 10, 2023 

shall not exceed 50% of the actual costs or the dollar limits for Tier 1 and Tier 2. In no case shall a 
grant be issued higher than the original approved grant amount.  

8. Renovations on historic buildings shall follow the Secretary of the Interior’s Guidelines for 
Rehabilitation of Historic Structures and applicable regulations in the Unified Development 
Ordinance, Section 6.3 Small Town Character Overlay District and Article 9 Design Standards. Non-
historic structures shall conform to the applicable regulations in the Unified Development 
Ordinance, Section 6.3 Small Town Character Overlay District and Article 9 Design Standards. 

9. Grants may be used for the following types of renovation only:  
a. Removal of false fronts (such as aluminum panels)  
b. Repair or replacement of windows, doors, and cornices  
c. Repair or replacement of façade materials  
d. Repair or replacement of character defining architectural features 
e. Repair, replacement, or new ADA accessible entrance (e.g. ramp) 
f. New awnings  
g. Decorative exterior lighting  
h. Exterior painting  
i. Design and construction costs  

10. Eligibility Criteria:  
a. If tenant will be doing the proposed work, the tenant must obtain the property owner’s 

signature on the application.   
b. Only existing buildings constructed more than 3 years prior to the date of application are 

eligible.  
c. Applicant shall agree at the time of application to maintain the façade and may not receive 

a grant for the same work within any five year period.  
d. Improvements and/or rehabilitation must comply with all state and local regulations, 

including obtaining required building permits through the Building Inspections Department.  
e. Utility and mechanical equipment, if any, must be concealed or screened from view. 

Screening shall be of similar color and design as the building.  
 

I have read the Façade Grant Program Information: 

   
Applicant Signature  Date 
   

 

 

 

 

- Page 194 -



FAÇADE GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
 

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s 
website or disclosed to third parties. 

 

  Last Updated: October 10, 2023 

Application #:    Submittal Date:  
 

Hard Copy Submittal Requirements:  (Submit to Planning Department) 

One (1) copy of Façade Grant Application 
11x 17 Architectural Plans/Drawings 
Material and/or color samples  

One (1) Small Town Character Exempt Site Application  
  

Applicant Information: 

Applicant:  Tax ID:  

Address:  

City:  State:  ZIP:  

Phone:  Email:  
 

Owner Information: 

Owner:  Tax ID:  

Address:  

City:  State:  ZIP:  

Phone:  Email:  
 
Project Information: 

Address:  

Property PIN:  Owner or Tenant Occupied?  

Amount of Street Frontage:  # of Floors:  

Current Building Use:  

Proposed Building Use:  

Major Repairs Needed?  

Cost of Overall Project:  Façade Grant Funds Requested:  
 

Renovation Information: 
1. Please provide as much detail as possible about the types and extent of renovation to be completed.  
Attach separate sheet, if necessary. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- Page 195 -



FAÇADE GRANT PROGRAM APPLICATION 
Town of Apex, North Carolina 
 
 

This document is a public record under the North Carolina Public Records Act and may be published on the Town’s 
website or disclosed to third parties. 

 

  Last Updated: October 10, 2023 

2. On a separate sheet, provide a detailed cost estimate or construction bid for the façade renovation. Once the 
work is completed, please provide the Planning Department with a copy of the receipt(s) for all labor and 
supplies. Façade Grant funds will not be released without receipt(s).  
 

3. Please describe how this renovation will significantly contribute to the historic character of the Downtown 
Festival District. 

 

 

 

 

 
Owner/Applicant Signatures 
I understand the limits and requirements of this program and if approved, agree to complete the project 
according to the approved plan. In addition, I shall indemnify and hold harmless, the Town of Apex from and 
against any and all claims, actions, causes of action, demands, damages, losses, costs, expenses, and 
compensation of whatsoever kind and nature which may hereafter accrue on account of or in any way growing 
out of any and all known or unknown, foreseen and unforeseen bodily and personal injuries and property 
damage and consequences thereof, which might result from any occurrence in connection with this grant. 

                                       Applicant Signature                    Date 

                                       Owner Signature                    Date 

Staff Approval  Date 
   

Conditions of Approval:  
• Please continue working with the Building Inspections Department and obtain a Building Permit. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

- Page 196 -


	Regular Apex Town Council Meeting  
October 10, 2023 
AGENDA
	CN1 2023 Revised Town Council Meeting Calendar
	CN1-A1: Revised - 2023 Council Meeting Calendar No. 8
	CN1-A2: Revised – 2023 Text Calendar No. 8

	CN2 Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 – Position Reclassifications (Building Inspectionsand Permitting and Community Development and Neighborhood Connections)
	CN2-A1: Budget Ordinance Amendment No. 10 - Position Reclassifications (Building Inspectionsand Permitting and Community Development and Neighborhood Connections)

	CN3 Community Special Event Policy
	CN3-A1: Community Special Event Policy – Draft 25

	CN4	Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc. -Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall Replacement
	CN4 - Coversheet - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc. -Lawrence Crossing Sewer Outfall Replacement
	CN4-A1: Recommendation of Award & Certified Bid Tab - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc
	CN4-A2: Notice of Award - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc
	CN4-A3: North American Pipeline Management Bid Package - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc
	CN4-A4: Construction Contract - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc
	CN4-A5: Capital Project Ordinance Amendment No. 2024-7 - Construction Contract Award - North American Pipeline Management, Inc

	CN5	Council Meeting Minutes - Various
	CN5 - Coversheet - Council Meeting Minutes - Various
	CN5-A1: DRAFT Minutes – September 19, 2023 – Work Session Meeting Minutes
	CN5-A2: DRAFT Minutes – September 26, 2023 – Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes
	CN5-A3: DRAFT Minutes – October 3, 2023 – Special Town Council Meeting Minutes – Appointed Personnel Evaluations

	CN6	Encroachment Agreement - 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10
	CN6 - Coversheet - Encroachment Agreement - 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10
	CN6-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10
	CN6-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement - 1822 Porch Swing Way, Lot 10

	CN7	Encroachment Agreement - 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18
	CN7 - Coversheet - Encroachment Agreement - 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18
	CN7-A1: Encroachment Agreement - 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18
	CN7-A2: Exhibit A - Encroachment Agreement - 1842 Porch Swing Way, Lot 18

	CN8 Human Resources (HR) Policy Updates – Town’s Paid Parental Leave, Paid CaregiverLeave, and Tuition Reimbursement
	CN8-A1: Human Resources (HR) Policy Updates - Town's Paid Parental Leave, Paid Caregiver Leave,and Tuition Reimbursement

	CN9	Tax Report - August 2023
	CN9 - Coversheet - Tax Report - August 2023
	CN9-A1: Tax Report for August 2023

	CN10	Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - September 2023
	CN10 - Coversheet - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - September 2023
	CN10-A1: Statement of Town Council (Items 1 & 3-6) - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - September 2023
	CN10-A2: Statement of Town Council (Item 2) - Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Amendments - September 2023

	PR1 Proclamation – Fire Prevention Week – October 8, 2023 through October 14, 2023
	PR2 ADDED – Proclamation – Down Syndrome Awareness Month – October 2023
	PH1	Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map Amendment - Schieffelin Road Upgrade
	PH1 - Coversheet - Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map Amendment - Schieffelin Road Upgrade
	PH1-A1: Staff Report - Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map Amendment - Schieffelin Road Upgrade
	PH2-A2: Planning Board Report to Town Council - Thoroughfare and Collector Street Plan Map 
Amendment - Schieffelin Road Upgrade

	PH2	Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on Major Collectors
	PH2 - Coversheet - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on Major Collectors
	PH2-A1: Staff Report - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on Major Collectors
	PH2-A2: Planning Board Report to Town Council - Bicycle and Pedestrian System Plan Map
Amendment - Bicycle Lanes on Major Collectors

	NB1	Façade Grant Program - Proposed Eligibility Changes
	NB1 - Coversheet - Facade Grant Program - Proposed Eligibility Changes
	NB1-A1: Staff Report – Façade Grant Program – Proposed Eligibility Changes
	NB1-A2: Façade Grant Program Application - Proposed Eligibility Changes




